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Portions of the registrant’s definitive proxy statnt (to be filed pursuant to Reg. 14A) relatinghte Annual Meeting of Shareholders
anticipated to be held on November 8, 2013 arerpurated herein by reference in Part 11l of thigoBre.




Table of Contents

TABLE OF CONTENTS

PART |

Item 1. Business

Item 1A. Risk Factors

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments

Item 2. Properties

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures

PART I

Item 5. Market for Registrart Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters, asddr Purchases of Equity
Securities

Iltem 6. Selected Financial Data

Iltem 7. Managemerls Discussion and Analysis of Financial Conditiod &esults of Operations

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosurdsodit Market Risk

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

Iltem 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accousiam Accounting and Financial Disclosure

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures

Item 9B. Other Information

PART Il

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corper@overnance

Iltem 11. Executive Compensation

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficiai®2rs and Management and Related Stockholder Matter

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Trammastand Director Independence

Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services

PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules

Page

lw

BN






Table of Contents

PART |

Iltem 1. Business

Avnet, Inc., incorporated in New York in 1955, ttiger with its consolidated subsidiaries (the “Comyaor “Avnet”), is one of th
world’s largest valuedded distributors, based on sales, of electromieponents, enterprise computer and storage prqoddctervices ar
embedded subsystems. Avnet creates a vital linkentechnology supply chain that connects the werddading electronic component
computer product manufacturers and software deeetopith a global customer base of original equiphmeanufacturers (“OEMs”glectronic
manufacturing services (“EMS”) providers, origirgdsign manufacturers (“ODMs”), and value-added ll@se(“VARS”"). Avnet distribute
electronic components, computer products and softwas received from its suppliers or through aaruized solution, and offers assen
and other value&dded services. In addition, Avnet provides engingedesign, materials management and logisticacs, system integrati
and configuration, and supply chain services custethto meet specific requirements of both custenaed suppliers.

Organizational Structure

Avnet has two primary operating groups — Electreriarketing (‘EM”) and Technology Solutions (“TSBoth operating groups ha
operations in each of the three major economicoregiof the world: the Americas; Europe, the Midelast and Africa ("EMEA");anc
Asia/Pacific, consisting of Asia, Australia and N&waland (“Asia” or “Asia/Pac”)Each operating group has its own management tedoy
a group president and includes regional presidemtssenior executives within the operating group wianage various functions within
businesses. Each operating group also has didifracicial reporting that is evaluated at the cogp@revel on which operating decisions
strategic planning for the Company as a whole aadenDivisions exist within each operating grougt erve primarily as sales and marke
units to further streamline the sales and markegiifigrts within each operating group and enhanod egerating groug’ ability to work witt
its customers and suppliers, generally along mpeeific product lines or geographies. However, ediofsion relies heavily on the supp
services provided by the operating group as wetleadralized support at the corporate level.

Avnet's operating groups and their sales are dsvist

Fiscal 2013 Percentage of
Region Sales Sales
(Millions)
EM Americas $ 5,263.¢ 20.7%
EM EMEA 4,096.( 16.1
EM Asia 5,734.¢ 22.5
Total EM 15,094.. 59.2
TS Americas 5,452.¢ 21.4
TS EMEA 3,181.¢ 12.t
TS Asia 1,729.¢ 6.8
Total TS 10,364.! 40.7
Total Avnet $ 25,458. 100.(%

A description of each operating group and its besses is presented below. Further financial inftionaby operating group a
geography is provided in Note 16 to the consolidditeancial statements appearing in Item 15 of Report.

Electronics Marketing

EM markets and sells semiconductors, interconnmssive and electromechanical devices (“IP&Bfd embedded products for
world’s leading electronic component manufacturers. ENketa and sells its products and services to arsiveustomer base serving m
endmarkets including automotive, communications, coraphardware and peripherals, industrial and manufang, medical equipment, a
defense and aerospace. EM also offers an arrayalofeiadded services that help customers evaluatggrdn and procure electror
components throughout the lifecycle of their tedbgg products and systems. By working with EM, oas¢rs and suppliers can accele
their time to market and realize cost efficienéreboth the design and manufacturing process.
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EM Design Chain Services

EM offers design chain services that provide ergime host of technical design solutions in suppbthe sales process of comg
products and technologies. With access to a s@ilesign tools and engineering services from arigtpo the design cycle, customers can
product specifications along with evaluation kitelaeference designs that enable a broad rangeptitations from concept through deta
design including new product introduction. EM atsfters engineering and technical resources deplgyaohlly to support product design,
of materials development, design services and teaheducation and training. By utilizing EBldesign chain services, customers can opt
their component selection and accelerate their tonmaarket.

EM Supply Chain Services

EM supply chain services provide endewod solutions focused on OEMs, EMS providers amatelnic component manufactur
enabling them to optimize supply chains on a lomgjonal or global basis. By combining internaingetencies in global warehousing
logistics, finance, information technology and assanagement with its global footprint and exteagpartner relationships, EBIsupply chai
services develop a deeper level of engagementitgittustomers. These customers can continuoushageatheir supply chains to meet
demands of a competitive environment globally witha commensurate investment in physical assetth Woprietary planning tools ant
variety of inventory management solutions, EM caovjile unique solutions that meet a customer’'s-iju$ime requirements in a variety
scenarios including lean manufacturing, demand o outsourcing.

Embedded Solutions

In the Americas, Avnet Embedded provides embeddedpating solutions including technical design, grtgion and assembly
developers of application-specific computing sao$f in the noPC market. Customers include OEMs targeting the icag
telecommunications, industrial and digital editmgrkets.

EM Sales and Marketing Divisions

Each of EMS regions has sales and marketing divisions thagrgdly focus on a specific customer segment, @agi product lines or
specific geography. The divisions offer accessne of the industry’s broadest line cards and coievgronestop shopping with an emphasis
responsiveness, engineering supporttiore delivery and quality. Certain specialty seegicare made available to the individual divis
through common support service units. Customersfather supported by a sophisticatedC@mmerce platform, Avnet Express, wt
includes a host of powerful functions such as patam search capabilities for component part silactbill of material optimization ar
component cross-referencing. The site enables@gdé online service from part and inventory searchese checking and ordering to onl
payment. EM Americas addresses the needs of itoroess and suppliers through focused channels ngceesmall- to mediunsizec
customers, global customers, defense and aerospatemers and contract manufacturers. In EMEA,sibwvis, which are organized
semiconductors, IP&E products and supply chainisesy address customers on both a Barepean and regional basis. EM Asia goe
market with sales and marketing divisions withinin@h South Asia, Australia, New Zealand and Taiwikl Japan has sales and marke
divisions to serve Japanese OEMs in Japan, SottAs@sand China. All regions within EM provide tHesign chain services and supply ¢
services described above.

Technology Solutions

As a leading global IT solutions distributor, TScdges on the valuadded distribution of enterprise computing senad system
software, storage, services and complex solutioms fthe worlds foremost technology manufacturers. TS partneth 8 customers al
suppliers to create and deliver effective dataareand IT lifecycle solutions that solve the busgiehallenges of engser customers loca
and around the world. TS serves a number of cust@egments, from VARs, system integrators ("Slsi)l sndependent software venc
("ISVs") to the worldwide OEM market for computirtgchnology and noRC OEMs requiring embedded systems and solutiociadimg
engineering, product prototyping, integration arileo valueadded services. TS also provides the latest hakl dlives, microprocess
motherboard and DRAM module technologies to manufacs of genergburpose computers and system builders. TS hasatedisales al
marketing teams serving these customer segments.

Customers rely on TS' supplier relationships angegenced sales, marketing, technical and finaretgkrts to help them identify €
capitalize on business opportunities in hggowth technology, vertical markets and geogragkiwices to close deals quickly and profita
Suppliers rely on TS' technology expertise and @ldzale and scope to broaden their customer badg@aw sales in markets around
world. TS has built an ecosystem of higligined and knowledgeable VARs who serve as exiarsof suppliers' sales forces to del
complex IT solutions. Unique to Avnet is its prov@alutionsPath® methodology, which offers markeécific business analysis and planr
training and enablement, and ongoing support tp pattners quickly
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and cost effectively attain solution-selling expartthey can use to develop and deploy an arrahataf center solutions for higirowth marke
segments. Avnet SolutionsP&tincludes practices dedicated to vertical marketh @s healthcare, government, energy, banking eadl, ra:
well as technology practices focused on virtualimgtstorage, networking, security, unified comnmations, mobility and cloud computing.

TS also provides a robust portfolio of software,lifécycle and educational service offerings thgpand customers' solution deliv:
capabilities, extend their reach and resourcesgahdnce project success and return on investroedeployments throughout the IT lifecyt
The TS team sells and delivers complex IT solutiona variety of channel partners, including VAR®Ys, Sls and OEMs. Areas of exper
include infrastructure and application managemeusjness commerce and analytics, cloud enableragtatmarket and IT lifecycle servic
and multilingual vendor accredited training. To tione to meet customer expectations in an evolNingcosystem, TS is also focused
delivering single and multi-vendor converged sysem

TS continues to invest in geographic, technology aertical markets with high growth potential visasegic, valuesreating acquisitior
and organic local market development. These investesnensure that TS has the critical scale and fnesket expertise in place when
where its customers and suppliers want to do besigse that they can capture opportunities quichtysith less risk and cost.

Foreign Operations

As noted in the operating group discussions, Avres significant operations in all three major ecoitoregions of the world: ti
Americas, EMEA and Asia/Pacific. The percentag@wiet’'s consolidated sales by region is presemedtie following table:

Percentage of Sales for Fiscal Year

Region 2013 2012 2011
Americas 42% 45% 43%
EMEA 29 29 32
Asia/Pac 29 26 25
100% 100% 100%

Avnet's foreign operations are subject to a varigtyisks. These risks are discussed further uiRisk Factorsin Iltem 1A and undt
Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About MetrRiskin Item 7A of this Report. Additionally, the spdcitranslation impacts of forei
currency fluctuations, most notably the Euro, oa tompany’s consolidated financial statements arthdr discussed iManagemeng
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition delsults of Operatiorin Item 7 of this Report.

Acquisitions

Avnet has historically pursued a strategic acqoisiprogram to further its strategic objectives angport key business initiatives. T
program was a significant factor in Avnet becomarg of the largest valuedded distributors of electronic components, entsFpcompute
and storage products, IT services and embeddedstebss. Avnet expects to continue to pursue sti@@gpuisitions to expand its mar
presence, increase its scale and scope, and irdtegsoduct or service offerings.

During fiscal 2013 , the Company completed 12 egitions with aggregate annualized revenue of apprately $1.18 billion. Set
Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financiah@tion and Results of Operatioirs Part Il of this Form 10« for additiona
information on acquisitions completed during fis2@lL3 , 2012 and 2011 .

Major Products

One of Avnet's competitive strengths is the breaattl quality of the suppliers whose products itrifiates. IBMproducts accounted 1
approximately 12% , 11% and 12% of the Companyissotidated sales during fiscal 2013 , 2012 and 2011
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respectively, and was the only supplier from whsethes of its products exceeded 10% of consolidsatat. Listed in the table below are
major product categories and the Company’s appratdéreales of each during the past three fiscabyear

Years Ended
June 29, 2013 June 30, 2012 July 2, 2011

(Millions)
Semiconductors $ 13,720.¢ $ 13,461t $ 14,149..
Computer products 9,346.( 9,984. 10,284.1
Connectors 687.¢ 667.t 1,041..
Passives, electromechanical and other 1,704.! 1,594.( 1,059.:
$ 25458.¢ $ 25,707.! $ 26,534

Competition & Markets

The electronic components and computer productssiniés continue to be extremely competitive aredsabject to rapid technologi
advances. The Compasymajor competitors include Arrow Electronics, |rieuture Electronics and World Peace Group, and,l&sser exter
Ingram Micro, Inc. and Tech Data Corp. There amo alertain smaller, specialized competitors whoegaly focus on narrower marke
products or particular sectors. As a result oféHestors, Avnet must remain competitive in ity of goods and services.

A key competitive factor in the electronic componand computer product distribution industry is tieed to carry a sufficient amoun
inventory to meet customergpid delivery requirements. To minimize its expestelated to valuation of inventory on hand, thegarity of
the Company’s products are purchased pursuantrt@xdusive distributor agreements, which typicaligyide certain protections for prod
obsolescence and price erosion. These agreemengei@erally cancelable upon 30 to 180 dagsdice and, in most cases, provide for inver
return privileges upon cancellation. In additiome tCompany enhances its competitive position bgrioff) a variety of valuadded service
which entail the performance of services and/ocesses tailored to individual customer specificetiand business needs such as point ¢
replenishment, testing, assembly, supply chain gema&nt and materials management. For the year ehdexl29, 2013 sales of servici
constituted less than 10% of our total revenues.

A competitive advantage is the size of the supfleese. Because of the number of Aveetlppliers, many customers can simplify 1
procurement process and make all of their requitedhases from Avnet, rather than purchasing fremesal different vendors.

Seasonality

Historically, Avnets business has not been materially impacted byosabty, with the exception of a relatively minanpact ol
consolidated results from the growth in revenuethé TS business during the December quarter pityrdniven by the calendar year enc
key suppliers and customers.

Number of Employees
At June 29, 2013, Avnet had approximately 18,50(leyees.
Available Information

The Company files its annual report on Form 10-#arterly reports on Form 10-Q, current reports om=8K, proxy statements a
other documents with the U.S. Securities and Exgha@iommission (“SEC”under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. A copymy
document the Company files with the SEC is avadldbl review at the SEG’public reference room, 100 F Street, N.E., Wagbm D.C
20549. The public may obtain information on the lmuteference room by calling the SEC at 1-800-SE30. The Compang’SEC filings ar
also available to the public on the SEC’s webditettm://www.sec.goand through the New York Stock Exchange (“NYSE0,Broad Stree
New York, New York 10005, on which the Comp’s common stock is listed.

A copy of any of the Companyfilings with the SEC, or any of the agreementstber documents that constitute exhibits to tHibiegs,
can be obtained by request directed to the Comatthe following address and telephone number:
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Avnet, Inc.
2211 South 47 Street
Phoenix, Arizona 85034
(480) 643-2000
Attention: Corporate Secretary

The Company also makes these filings available, dfecharge, through its website (see “Avnet Webditlow).
Avnet Website

In addition to the information about Avnet containg this Report, extensive information about thenfpany can be found
www.avnet.conm including information about its management teproducts and services and corporate governancéqasc

The corporate governance information on the welisil@des the Company’Corporate Governance Guidelines, the Code of @irah(
the charters for each of the committees of Aw8pard of Directors. In addition, amendments ®@wvde of Conduct, committee charters
waivers granted to directors and executive officarder the Code of Conduct, if any, will be postethis area of the website. These docurr
can be accessed at www.avnet.cander the “Investor Relations — Corporate Goverpargaption. Printed versions of the Corpo
Governance Guidelines, Code of Conduct and chaofetise Board committees can be obtained, freehafge, by writing to the Company
the address listed above in “Available Information.

In addition, the Company’s Annual Report on FormKL0Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q, Current Repants Form 8K anc
amendments to those reports, if any, filed or &hmed pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of Seegriixchange Act of 1934, as well
Section 16 filings made by any of the Compangkecutive officers or directors with respect tenét common stock, are available on
Company's website ( www.avnet.camder the “Investor Relations — SEC Filingsiption) as soon as reasonably practicable aféeregor
is electronically filed with, or furnished to, tisecurities and Exchange Commission.

These details about Avnet’s website and its cordembnly for information. The contents of the Camys website are not, nor shall ti
be deemed to be, incorporated by reference irRéort.

ltem 1A. Risk Factors
Forward-Looking Statements and Risk Factors

This Report contains forwardoking statements with respect to the financiaddition, results of operations and business of Aviikes:
statements are generally identified by words likeelieves,” “expects,” “anticipates,” “should,” “Wjil “may,” “estimates” or similal
expressions. Forward-looking statements are sutgeaimerous assumptions, risks and uncertainties.

Except as required by law, Avnet does not undertakeobligation to update any forwalabking statements, whether as a result of
information, future events or otherwise. Factomt tihay cause actual results to differ materialgnfrthose contained in the forwalabking
statements include the following:

Economic weakness and uncertainty could adversdfeet our results and prospect

The Company's results, operations and prospecendegignificantly on worldwide economic conditiottse demand for its products ¢
services, and the financial condition of its custesnand suppliers. Economic weakness and unceartaimiuding ongoing macroeconor
issues in many countries, have in the past resudted may result in the future, in decreased reegnmargins, earnings and impairmen
longdived assets, including goodwill and other intamgilassets. Economic weakness and uncertainty addee rit more difficult for th
Company to manage inventory levels and/or collestamer receivables, which may result in reducegssto liquidity and higher financi
costs.

The electronics component and computer industriag dighly competitive and if the Company fails t@mpete effectively, its revenu
gross profit margins and prospects may decli

The market for the Company's products and senwcesry competitive and subject to rapid technatabadvances, new market entre
changes in industry standards and changes in castopeds. Not only does the Company compete wiieraglobal distributors, it al
competes for customers with regional distributard aome of the Company's own suppliers that mairdaect sales efforts. The Compa
failure to maintain and enhance its competitiveitpms could adversely affect its business and peesp Furthermore, the Company's effor
compete in the marketplace could cause deteriorafigross profit margins and, thus, overall padfitity.
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The size of the Company's competitors vary acroaket sectors, as do the resources the Compangllogated to the sectors ¢
geographic areas in which it does business. Therefome competitors may have greater financiasgoael, capacity and other resources
more extensive customer base than the Companynhase or more of its market sectors and geogragheas, which may result in 1
Company not being able to effectively compete iate markets which could impact the Company'sitability and prospects.

An industry dowt-cycle in semiconductors could significantly affettie Company's operating results as a large portiohrevenues corr
from sales of semiconductors, which is a highly tigal industry.

The semiconductor industry historically has experéal periodic fluctuations in product supply andndad, often associated w
changes in technology and manufacturing capadaitg,is generally considered to be highly cyclicalirig each of the last three fiscal ye
sales of semiconductors represented over 50% o€trepany's consolidated sales, and the Companyesuies, particularly those of E
closely follow the strength or weakness of the semductor market. Future downturns in the technploglustry, particularly in tt
semiconductor sector, could negatively affect ttmm@any's operating results and negatively impaetGompany's ability to maintain
current profitability levels.

Failure to maintain its relationships with key sutiprs could adversely affect the Company’s sales.

One of the Company's competitive strengths is teadth and quality of the suppliers whose prodthetsCompany distributes. Howe\
sales of products and services from one of the Goiylp suppliers, IBM, accounted for approximated9slof the Company's consolidated s
in fiscal year 2013 Management expects IBM products and servicesmtirtue to account for roughly a similar percentagghe Company
consolidated sales in fiscal year 2QIPhe Company's contracts with its suppliers, idirig those with IBM, vary in duration and are gexly
terminable by either party at will upon notice. the extent IBM or other primary suppliers signifitlg reduce their volume of business v
the Company in the future, because of a produatage, an unwillingness to do business with Avoeptherwise, the Company's business
relationships with its customers could be materialhd adversely affected because its customersndepe the Company's distribution
electronic components and computer products froenidustry's leading suppliers. In addition, to theéent that any of the Company's
suppliers modify the terms of their contracts imlihg, without limitation, the terms regarding prigetection, rights of return, rebates or o
terms that protect or enhance the Company's gr@sging, it could materially and adversely affeot tBompany's results of operatic
financial condition or liquidity.

The Company's norld.S. locations represent a significant portion dsirevenue, and consequently, the Company is insmegly exposed |
risks associated with operating internationally.

During fiscal year 2013 , 2012 and 2011 , approxétya63% , 61% and 62% respectively, of the Company's sales came fr
operations outside the United States. As a resuttedoCompany's foreign sales and locations, itiqdar those in emerging and develog
economies, the Company's operations are subjeciaiety of risks that are specific to internatiboperations, including, but not limited
the following:

» potential restrictions on the Company's abilityepatriate funds from its foreign subsidiar
« foreign currency and interest rate fluctuations emedimpact on the Company's reported results efaipns
* import and export duties and valadded taxe

» compliance with foreign and domestic import and akpegulations, data privacy regulations, businkssnsing requiremen
environmental regulations and antfruption laws, the failure of which could resintsevere penalties including monetary fii
criminal proceedings and suspension of import @oexprivileges;

e changing tax laws and regulatic
* regulatory requirements and prohibitions that diffetween jurisdiction
e economic and political instability, terrorism anok@ntial military conflicts or civilian unre:

» fluctuations in freight costs, limitations on shipg and receiving capacity, and other disruptianshie transportation and shipp
infrastructure;

» natural disasters and health conce

« differing environmental regulations and employmeratctices and labor issues;
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» the risk of norcompliance with local law

In addition to the cost of compliance, the potdrtiaminal penalties for violations of export regtibns and anttorruption laws by tF
Company or its thirgearty agents create heightened risks for the Cogipamternational operations. In the event thabaegning regulator
body determined that the Company had violated eaple import or export regulations or aotirruption laws, the Company could be fi
significant sums, incur sizable legal defense cast¥or its import or export capabilities could restricted, which could have a material
adverse effect on the Company's business. Addltigrellegations that the Company has violated segomental regulation may negativ
impact the Company's reputation, which may resulcustomers or suppliers being unwilling to do hass with the Company. While
Company has adopted measures designed to ensupgiame with these laws, the Company cannot beredsithat such measures will
adequate or that its business will not be matgreild adversely impacted in the event of an allegeldtion.

The Company's acquisition strategy may not prodube expected benefits, which may adversely affaet€ompany's results of operations.

Avnet has made, and expects to continue to makategtc acquisitions or investments in companiesid the world to further i
strategic objectives and support key businesstivgs. Acquisitions and investments involve riaksl uncertainties, some of which may d
from those associated with Avnet's historical opiens. The risks relating to such transactionsude| but are not limited to, risks relating
expanding into emerging markets and business aaglaing additional product lines and services, finng unanticipated costs or liabiliti
associated with the companies acquired and digertianagement's attention from existing businessatipas. As a result, the Compal
profitability may be negatively impacted. In additj the Company may not be successful in integyative acquired businesses or
integration may be more difficult, costly or tinsensuming than anticipated. Further, any litigatielating to a potential acquisition will res
in an increase in the expenses associated withdteisition or cause a delay in completing the aitipn, thereby impacting the Compar
profitability. The Company may experience disrupfidhat could, depending on the size of the adiprisihave a material adverse effect o
business, especially where an acquisition target n@e pre-existing non-compliance or geasting deficiencies or material weaknesse
internal controls as those terms are defined unelevant SEC rules and regulations. Furthermore,Gbmpany may not realize all of
anticipated benefits from its acquisitions, whicluld materially and adversely affect the Compafigancial performance.

Major disruptions to the Compar's logistics capability could have a material adgerimpact on the Company’s operations.

The Company's global logistics services are opérdbmugh specialized, centralized or outsourcsttibution centers around the glc
The Company also depends almost entirely on théndly transportation service providers for thedely of products to its customers. A mi
interruption or disruption in service at one or mof its distribution centers for any reason (sashmatural disasters, pandemics, or signif
disruptions of services from our thighrty providers) could cause cancellations or delaya significant number of shipments to custonaeid
as a result, could have a severe impact on the @oygbusiness, operations and financial performanc

If the Company's internal information systems fail to function pperly, or if the Company is unsuccessful in the égration or upgrade ¢
information systems, its business operations cosiifer.

The Company's expanding operations put increagiegspre on the Company's information systems ibtéde the day-taday operatior
of the business and to produce timely, accurate rafidble reports on financial and operational lissuCurrently, the Company's glo
operations are tracked with multiple informatiorstg®yns, some of which are subject to ongoing ITgutsj designed to streamline or optin
the Company's global information systems. Themoiguarantee that the Company will be successfall éimes in these efforts or that th
will not be integration difficulties that will advsely affect the Company's ability to complete hass transactions timely or the accurate
timely recording and reporting of financial data. addition, the Company's information technologysidject to cybersecurity breact
computer hacking or other general system failuvgntaining and operating these systems requirasiramus investments. A security bre
could result in sensitive data being manipulatedexgosed to unauthorized persons or to the puBlitailure of any of these informati
systems in a way described above or material diffees in upgrading these information systems cdwdgle material adverse effects on
Company's business and its compliance with rempdbiligations under federal securities laws.

Declines in the value of the Company's inventory anexpected order cancellations by the Company'stomers could materially ar
adversely affect its business, results of operasipfinancial condition and liquidity.

The electronic components and computer productssings are subject to rapid technological chamgsy and enhanced produ
changes in customer needs and changes in industngasds, which can contribute to a decline in @atw obsolescence of inventc
Regardless of the general economic environmeist pibssible that prices will decline due to a daseein demand or an oversupply of prod
and, as a result of the price declines, there neagrbater risk of declines in inventory value. Altigh
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it is the policy of many of the Company's suppligr®ffer distributors like Avnet certain proteai®from the loss in value of inventory (sucl
price protection and limited rights of return), tBempany cannot be assured that such policiesfulfyf compensate for the loss in value
that the vendors will choose to, or be able to,dn@uch agreements, some of which are not docuhemte, therefore, subject to the discre
of the vendor. In addition, the majority of the Quany's sales are typically made pursuant to indaliggurchase orders, and the Comj
generally does not have longrm supply arrangements with its customers. Gdgethe Company's customers may cancel ordersa38 grio
to shipment with minimal penalties. The Companynedrbe assured that unforeseen new product develagsmdeclines in the value of
Company's inventory or unforeseen order cancefiathyy its customers will not materially and advbrsdfect the Company's business, res
of operations, financial condition or liquidity.

Substantial defaults by the Company's customersitsmaccounts receivable or the loss of significarstomers could have a significe
negative impact on the Company's business, resofteperations, financial condition or liquidity.

A significant portion of the Company's working dapiconsists of accounts receivable from customiérsustomers responsible fo
significant amount of accounts receivable weredocome insolvent or otherwise unable to pay the amnthey owe the Company, or were
become unwilling or unable to make such payments fimely manner, the Company's business, restiltperations, financial condition
liquidity could be adversely affected. An econoraicindustry downturn could adversely and materialffiect the servicing of these accol
receivable, which could result in longer paymentley, increased collection costs and defaults tegex of management's expectation
significant deterioration in the Company's abilidycollect on accounts receivable could also implaetcost or availability of financing unt
its accounts receivable securitization program EBeancing Transactionappearing in Item 7 of this Report).

The Company may not have adequate or cost-effedtiugdity or capital resources.

The Company's ability to satisfy its cash needseddp on its ability to generate cash from operatemd to access the financial marl
both of which are subject to general economic,rfai@, competitive, legislative, regulatory and eattiactors that are beyond the Compe
control.

The Company may need to satisfy its cash needsighr@xternal financing. However, external financimgy not be available !
acceptable terms or at all. As of June 29, 2013/nef had total debt outstanding of approximately0$2billion under various notes a
committed and uncommitted lines of credit with figal institutions. The Company needs cash to niateeest payments on, and to refina
this indebtedness and for general corporate puspssieh as funding its ongoing working capital aagital expenditure needs. Under the te
of any external financing, the Company may incwhler than expected financing expenses and becobjecttio additional restrictions a
covenants. Any material increase in the Compainyanting costs could have a material adverse effiedts profitability.

Under certain of its credit facilities, the Compagsyrequired to maintain certain specified finahc&tios and meet certain tests. If
Company fails to meet these financial ratios ant#sts, it may be unable to continue to utilizesthéacilities. If the Company is unable
utilize these facilities, it may not have sufficietash available to make interest payments on afidance indebtedness and for ger
corporate needs. General economic or business tmmgjidomestic and foreign, may be less favor#iide management expects and ¢
adversely impact the Company's sales or its abibitycollect receivables from its customers, whicaynimpact access to the Compa
securitization program.

The agreements governing some of the Company's fiiciags contain various covenantand restrictions that limit the discretion
management in operating its business and could gnetvus from engaging in some activities that may beneficial to theCompany"
business.

The agreements governing the Company's financhauiding its credit facility and the indentures gaving the Company's outstanc
notes, contain various covenants and restrictibat in certain circumstances, limit the Compaapiity, and the ability of certain subsidiari
to:

e grantliens on asse

* make restricted payments (including paying dividead capital stock or redeeming or repurchasingalagiock)
* make investment

* merge, consolidate or transfer all or substéyt#l of the Companys asset

e incur additional debt; (
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* engage in certain transactions with affilia

As a result of these covenants and restrictiorsCibmpany may be limited in the future in how ihdocts its business and may be un
to raise additional debt, compete effectively okeméurther investments.

The Company may become involved in intellectual peoty disputes that could cause it to incur subdiah costs, divert the efforts
management or require it to pay substantial damagedicensing fees.

From time to time, the Company receives notifiaatialleging infringements of intellectual properights allegedly held by othe
relating to the Company's business or the prodaictervices it sells. Litigation with respect tagyets or other intellectual property mat
could result in substantial costs and diversiomahagement and other resources and could havevarsacdffect on the Company's operati
Further, the Company may be obligated to indemaifg defend its customers if the products or sesvibe Company sells are allege:
infringe any thirdparty's intellectual property rights. While the Quany may be able to seek indemnification from ugggiers for itself and i
customers against such claims, there is no assithatit will be successful in obtaining such imaéfication or that the Company will be fu
protected against such claims. If an infringemeaint is successful, the Company may be requireplaip damages or seek royalty or lice
arrangements, which may not be available on comaibraeasonable terms. The Company may have tp s#alling certain products
services, which could affect its ability to competéectively.

Failure to comply with the requirements of envirorantal regulations could adversely affect its busase

The Company is subject to various federal, statglland foreign laws and regulations addressiviy@mmental and other impacts fri
product disposal, use of hazardous materials idymis, recycling of products at the end of theafuklife and other related matters. While
Company strives to ensure it is in full compliangigh all applicable regulations, certain of thesgulations impose liability without fat
Additionally, the Company may be held responsilde the prior activities of an entity it acquiredailare to comply with these regulatic
could result in substantial costs, fines and aiilcriminal sanctions, as well as thipdsty claims for property damage or personal in
Further, environmental laws may become more strihgeer time, imposing greater compliance costs mmdeasing risks and penali
associated with violations.

Tax legislation initiatives or challenges to the @many's tax positions could impact the Company'sults of operations and financi
condition.

As a multinational corporation, the Company is subjto the tax laws and regulations of the Unit¢ates federal, state and Ic
governments and of many international jurisdictidaom time to time, legislation may be enacted twald adversely affect the Compal
tax positions. There can be no assurance thatfteatige tax rate and the resulting cash flow wilit be adversely affected by these pote
changes in regulations. The tax laws and regulatifnthe various countries where the Company hasatipns are extremely complex i
subject to varying interpretations. Although then@any believes that its historical tax positions smund and consistent with applicable Ii
regulations and existing precedent, there can bessorance that these tax positions will not béleriged by relevant tax authorities or that
Company would be successful in any such challenge.

If the Company fails to maintain effective internaontrols, it may not be able to report its finaatiresults accurately or timely or prevent
detect fraud, which could have a material adverggeet on the Company’s business or the market prafeahe Company's securities.

Effective internal controls are necessary for ttmmPany to provide reasonable assurance with redpeit$ financial reports and
effectively prevent or detect fraud. If the Comparannot provide reasonable assurance with respeit$ financial reports and effectivi
prevent or detect fraud, its brand and operatisglte could be harmed. Pursuant to the Sarb@mxésy Act of 2002, the Company is require:
furnish a report by management on internal corakar financial reporting, including management'seasment of the effectiveness of ¢
control. Internal control over financial reportimgay not prevent or detect misstatements becauses afherent limitations, including t
possibility of human error, the circumvention oreavding of controls, or fraud. Therefore, eveneefive internal controls cannot prov
absolute assurance with respect to the preparatidnfair presentation of financial statements. ddion, projections of any evaluation
effectiveness of internal control over financigbaeting to future periods are subject to the rtskt tthe control may become inadequate be«
of changes in conditions, or that the degree offd@nce with the policies or procedures may detat@ If the Company fails to maintain
adequacy of its internal controls, including anjluf@ to implement required new or improved corgrobr if the Company experien:
difficulties in their implementation, the Companyasiness and operating results could be harmedt tren Company could fail to meet
reporting obligations, which could have a matesiderse effect on its business or the market pfitee Company's securities.
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Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments
Not applicable.
Item 2. Properties

The Company owns and leases approximately 1,55&0600,391,000 square feet of space, respectiotlyhich approximately 42%s
located in the United States. The following tahlexenarizes certain of the Company’s key facilities.

Leased

Sq. or
Location Footage  Owned Primary Use
Poing, Germany 423,000 Leased EM warehousing, value-added operations and offices
Chandler, Arizona 399,000 Owned EM warehousing and value-added operations
Tongeren, Belgium 388,000 Owned EM and TS warehousing and value-added operations
Grove City, Ohio 297,000 Leased EM warehousing, integration and value-added opmmati
Poing, Germany 296,000 Owned EM warehousing, value-added operations and offices
Groveport, Ohio 266,00( Leased TS warehousing, integration and value-added opmersiti
Chandler, Arizona 231,000 Leased EM warehousing, integration and value-added opmrati
Atlanta, Georgia 195,00( Leased TS warehousing, integration and value-added opmersiti
Hong Kong, China 181,00( Leased EM warehousing and value-added operations
Phoenix, Arizona 176,00( Leased Corporate and EM headquarters
Coppell, Texas 174,00 Leased EM warehousing, integration and value-added opmmati
Nettetal, Germany 137,000 Owned EM warehousing, value-added operations and offices
Tempe, Arizona 132,00( Leased TS headquarters
Nettetal, Germany 126,00( Owned TS warehousing, value-added operations and offices
Nogales, Mexico 124,000 Leased EM warehousing and value-added operations

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

As a result primarily of certain former manufachgioperations, Avnet has incurred and may havedutability under various feder.
state and local environmental laws and regulatiomduding those governing pollution and exposureand the handling, storage and disg
of, hazardous substances. For example, under tmep@bhensive Environmental Response, CompensatidnLability Act of 1980, a
amended (“CERCLA™and similar state laws, Avnet is and may be lidbtethe costs of cleaning up environmental contatiam on or fror
certain of its current or former properties, anafhtsite locations where the Company disposed of wastéise past. Such laws may imp
joint and several liability. Typically, however gltosts for cleanup at such sites are allocatedch@rpotentially responsible parties based 1
each party’s relative contribution to the contartiorg and other factors.

Pursuant to SEC regulations, including but nottimito Item 103 of RegulationS-the Company regularly assesses the status ¢
developments in pending environmental legal proecgmsdto determine whether any such proceedingsl@tmmiidentified specifically in th
discussion of legal proceedings, and has concltittcho particular pending environmental legal peating requires public disclosure. Be
on the information known to date, management betighat the Company has appropriately accrued icoibsolidated financial statements
its share of the estimated costs of environmengdters.

The Company is also party to various other lawsugigims, investigations and other legal proceesliagsing from time to time in t
normal course of business. While litigation is gabjto inherent uncertainties, management currémtigves that the ultimate outcome of tt
proceedings, individually and in the aggregatel mot have a material adverse effect on the Comgaiityancial position, liquidity or results
operations.

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures

Not applicable.
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PART Il

Item 5. Market for Registrant's Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Edty Securities
Market price per share

The Companys common stock is listed on the New York Stock Exafe under the symbol AVT. Quarterly high and lales closin
prices (as reported for the New York Stock Excharmyaposite transactions) for the last two fiscargevere:

2013 2012
Fiscal Quarters High Low High Low
1st $ 3351 % 2891 $ 32.8¢ $ 24.1¢
2nd 31.6: 27.01 31.7¢ 24.71
3rd 36.8¢ 30.61 36.8: 31.0¢
4th 35.3¢ 31.5¢ 36.6¢ 29.2¢

The Company did not pay any dividends on its commstmek during the last two fiscal years. Any fetudecision to declare or [
dividends will be at the discretion of the BoardDifectors and will be dependent upon the Compdimesicial condition, results of operatio
capital requirements, and such other factors asBBthard of Directors deems relevant. In additiorrtaie of the Company's debt facilit
contain restrictions on the declaration and payroédividends.

Record Holders
As of July 26, 2013, there were 3,330 register@ddrs of record of Avnet's common stock.
Equity Compensation Plan Information as of June 292013

Number of Securities
Remaining Available

Number of for
Securities Future Issuance
to be Issued Upon Weighted-Average Under Equity
Exercise of Exercise Price of Compensation Plans
Outstanding Outstanding (Excluding Securities
Options, Warrants Options, Warrants  Reflected in Column
Plan Category and Rights and Rights (@)
(a) (b) (€)
Equity compensation plans approved by securityédrsid 5,5659,75. @ $26.65 2,995,58! @

(1) Includes 2,579,188 shares subject to optianstanding and 2,009,510 stock incentive shares9digd55performance shares awar:
but not yet delivered. Included in the performasbares is the number of shares anticipated tosoedsin the first quarter of fiscal 2(
relating to the level of achievement reached utitkeiperformance share program,that ended on Jur2023 (see Note 12 in tidotes ti
Consolidated Financial Statememmsluded in Item 15 of this Report)

(2) Does notinclude 432,789 shares availabléuimre issuance under the Employee Stock Purchase Which is a norwompensatory pla
Stock Performance Graphs and Cumulative Total Retuns

The graph below compares the cumulative 5-yeal tetarn of holders of Avnet, Ins’common stock with the cumulative total returr
the S&P 500 index and certain of Avreepeer companies in the electronics distributiatustry. The graph tracks the performance of a
investment in Avnet's common stock, in the peerugraand the index (with the reinvestment of allidiénds) from June 28, 2008 done 2¢
2013. The companies comprising the peer group that Avraes historically used are: Agilysys, Inc., Anixteiternational, Inc., Arro
Electronics, Inc., Ingram Micro, Inc., Insight Ergases, Inc., Scansource, Inc., Synnex Corp. aathData Corp. Brightpoint, Inc. termina
its registration with the SEC as a result of ingeacquired and, therefore, is not included ingiraph below.

13




Table of Contents

COMPARISON OF 5§ YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN*
Among Avnet, Inc., the S&P 500 Index, and a Peer Group
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*$100 invested on 6/28/08 in stock or index, including reinvestment of dividends. Index calculated on month-end basis.

Copyright© 2013 S&P, a division of The McGraw-Hill Companies Inc. All rights reserved.

6/28/2008 6/27/2009 7/3/2010 7/2/2011 6/30/2012 6/29/2013
Avnet, Inc. 100.00 78.11 87.04 118.15 112.01 121.96
S&P 500 100.00 73.79 84.43 110.35 116.36 140.32
Peer Group 100.00 82.26 83.84 125.55 112.07 130.55

The stock price performance included in this griphot necessarily indicative of future stock prformance. The Company does
make or endorse any predictions as to future gpeciormance. The performance graph is furnisheelystd accompany this Report and is
being filed for purposes of the Securities ExchaAgeof 1934, as amended, and is not to be incatedrby reference into any filing of -
Company, whether made before or after the dateohergardless of any general incorporation languaguch filing.

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

In August 2011, the Company's Board of Directote (tBoard") approved the repurchase of up to $506illlon of the Company
common stock through a share repurchase programndéugust 2012, the Board approved an additigg280.0 millionfor the shar
repurchase program. With this increase, the Compaeny repurchase up to a total of $750.0 milladrthe Company's common stock under
share repurchase program. The following table ey if any, the Company's monthly purchases ofefsrcommon stock during the fou
quarter ended June 29, 2013 under the share regag&rgnogram, which is
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part of a publicly announced plan, and purchasedenom the open market to obtain shares for the @ogip Employee Stock Purchase |
(“ESPP”), which is not part of a publicly announgadn:

Total Number of
Shares Purchased
as Part of Publicly

Approximate Dollar
Value of Shares That

Total Number May Yet Be Purchased

of Shares Average Price Announced Plans Under the Plans
Period Purchased® Paid per Share or Programs or Programs
April 5,60( $33.8€ — $224,475,000
May 5,50( $32.82 = $224,475,000
June 4,40( $33.0E — $224,475,000

(1) Consists entirely of purchases of Avnet's camnrstock associated with the CompanigSPF
Item 6. Selected Financial Data

Years Ended

June 27,
June 29, 2013 June 30, 2012 July 2, 2011 July 3, 2010 2009@
(Millions, except for per share and ratio data)
Income:
Sales $ 25,458 $ 25,707 $ 26,534. $ 19,160. $ 16,229.
Gross profit 2,979.¢ 3,050.¢ 3,107.¢ 2,280.: 2,023.(
Operating income (loss) 626.C (b) 884.2 (c) 930.C (d) 635.¢ (e) (1,019.00 ()
Income tax provision 99.2 (b) 223.¢ (c) 201.¢ (d) 174.7 (e) 347 ()
Net income (loss) 450.1 (b) 567.C (c) 669.1 (d) 410.2 (e) (1,229.) ()
Financial Position:
Working capital® 3,535. 3,455.° 3,749.! 3,190.¢ 2,688.«
Total assets 10,474, 10,167.¢ 9,905.¢ 7,782. 6,273.!
Long-term debt 1,207.( 1,272.( 1,273t 1,243, 946.¢
Shareholders’ equity 4,289.: 3,905." 4,056.: 3,009.: 2,760.¢
Per Share:
Basic earnings (loss) 3.2¢ (b) 3.88 (¢) 4.3¢ (d) 2.71 (e) (7.49 ()
Diluted earnings (loss) 3.21 (b) 3.7¢ (c) 4.32 (d) 2.6¢ (e) (7.49 ()
Book value per diluted share 30.6¢ 26.12 26.2¢ 19.6¢ 18.3(
Ratios:
Operating income (loss) margi
on sales 2.5% (b) 3.4% (c) 3.5% (d) 3.2% (e) (6.9)% (f)
Net income (loss) margin on
sales 1.8% (b) 2.2% (c) 2.5% (d) 2.1% (e) (7.0% ()
Return on capital 10.€% (b) 12.9% (c) 15.2% (d) 14.(% (e) (26.6)% (f)
Quick 1.2:1 1.2:1 1.2:1 1.4:1 1.5:1
Working capital 1.7:1 1.7:1 1.8:1 1.9:1 2.1:1
Total debt to capital 32.2% 35.4% 27.2% 29.8% 26.(%

(@) As adjusted for the retrospective application ofagsounting standard. The Financial Accounting &aels Board issued authorital
guidance that requires the issuer of certain cdiblerdebt instruments that may be settled in dashother assets) on conversiot
separately account for the debt and equity (commersption) components of the instrument. The stathdequires the convertible deb
be recognized at the present value of its cashsfldiscounted using the naonvertible debt borrowing rate at the date ofasse. Th
resulting debt discount from this present valuew@ation is to be recognized as the value of theitgccomponent and recorded
additional paid in capital. The discounted conwetidebt is then required to be accreted up téaite value and recorded as roast
interest expense over the expected life of the ediile debt. In addition, deferred financing casssociated with the convertible debt
required to be allocated between the debt andyegoinponents based upon relative values. Durinditeequarter of fiscal 2010, t
Company
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adopted this standard; however, there was no imjgatite fiscal 2010 consolidated financial statetmdrecause the Compary2%
Convertible Senior Debentures, to which this stathdgpplied, were extinguished in fiscal 2009. Doethe required retrospect
application of this standard to prior periods, ©empany adjusted the prior period comparative dafeted financial statements. 1
following table summarizes the adjustments to iasee(decrease) previously reported balances.

June 27,
Adjustments-increase (decrease) 2009
(Millions,
except per
share data)
Selling, general and administrative expenses $ (0.3
Interest expense 12.2
Income tax provision (4.6
Net income (7.3
Basic EPS $ (0.05)
Diluted EPS $ (0.0%)
(b) Includes the impact of (i) restructuring, igtation and other charges, which totaled $149.%ianilpre-tax, $116.4 milliorafter tax an

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

(9)

$0.83 per share on a diluted basis; (ii) a gaibangain purchase and other, which totaled $31.0Domipre-tax and after tax and $0.g&i
share on a diluted basis; and (iii) a tax bendfi#50.4 million and $0.3@er share on a diluted basis primarily due to tiease of certa
tax valuation allowances net of additional tax rese (see Note 9 and 17 in tRetes to the Consolidated Financial Statemenistaine:
in Item 15 of this Report for further discussiorntloése items).

Includes the impact of (i) restructuring, igtation and other charges, which totaled $73.6anilpre-tax, $53.0 million after tax a$@.3t
per share on a diluted basis; (ii) a gain on bargarchase and other, which totaled $2.9 millioe-farx, $3.5 million after tax arD.0z
per share on a diluted basis; and (iii) a tax biewréf$8.6 million and $0.0er share on a diluted basis primarily due to tlease ¢
certain tax valuation allowances net of additiolaal reserves (see Note 9 and 17 inNmtes to the Consolidated Financial Statem
contained in Item 15 of this Report for furtheradission of these items).

Includes the impact of (i) restructuring, igtation and other charges, which totaled $77.Zonilpre-tax, $56.2 million after tax a$g.3¢
per share on a diluted basis; (ii) a gain on bargarchase and other which totaled $22.7 milliogjaix, $25.7 million after tax arD.17
per share on a diluted basis; and (i) a tax hiewéf$32.9 million and $0.2per share on a diluted basis primarily due to #lease ¢
certain tax valuation allowances net of additiolaal reserves (see Note 9 and 17 inNtes to the Consolidated Financial Statem
contained in Item 15 of this Report for furtheradission of these items).

Includes the impact of (i) restructuring, or&tion and other charges, which totaled $25.4ianilpre-tax, $18.8 million after tax a$@.1-
per share on a diluted basis; and (ii) a gain ¢&@ afassets, which totaled $8.8 million pre-ta&,4bmillion after tax and $0.08er shar
on a diluted basis.

Includes (i) goodwill and intangible asset iamment charges of $1.41 billion pre-tax, $1.38dwil after tax and $9.1Ber share; and (
the impact of restructuring, integration and otttearges, which totaled $99.3 million pre-tax, $3#iflion after tax and $0.23 per share.

This calculation of working capital is defined asrent assets less current liabilit
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Item 7. Management'’s Discussion and Analysis of Financiab@dition and Results of Operations

For an understanding of Avnet and the significatdrs that influenced the Compasiperformance during the past three fiscal yehe
following discussion should be read in conjunctwith the description of the business appearingemll1 of this Report and the consolid:
financial statements, including the related notes schedule, and other information appearing im [1& of this Report. The Company oper
on a “52/53 week” fiscal year. Fiscal 2013, 20b& 2011 all contained 52 weeks.

There are references to the impact of foreign caydranslation in the discussion of the Companygsults of operations. When
stronger U.S. Dollar exchange rates of the curyeatr are used to translate the results of opematdrAvnets subsidiaries denominatec
foreign currencies, the resulting impact is a daseein U.S. Dollars of reported results as compatitdthe prior period. When the U.S. Do
weakens, the resulting impact is an increase in DdHars of reported results as compared withptier period. In the discussion that follo!
this is referred to as the “translation impact ldicges in foreign currency exchange rates.”

In addition to disclosing financial results tha¢ @letermined in accordance with U.S. generally gteckaccounting principles (“GAAR,”
the Company also discloses certain non-GAAP fir@noformation, including:

* Income or expense items as adjusted for the trémslenpact of changes in foreign currency excharmages, as discussed ab

» Sales adjusted for certain items that impact/ter-over-year analysis, which included the immd@tcquisitions by adjusting Avnet’
prior periods to include the sales of businessgsiezd as if the acquisitions had occurred at #girining of the period presented
addition, the prior year sales are adjusted fom(© divestitures by adjusting Avnetprior periods to exclude the sales of the bus
divested as if the divestiture had occurred athibginning of the period presented, and (ii) thagfer of the existing commerc
components business from TS Americas to EM Ameribas occurred in the first quarter of fiscal 20drid the transfer of anott
business unit from TS Americas to EM Americas thas completed at the beginning of fiscal 2013. S#&ing into account tl
combination of these adjustments are referred torgsnic sales.”

e Operating income excluding restructuring, intgigm and other charges incurred in fiscal 20181,2and 2011 The reconciliation 1
GAAP is presented in the following table:

Years Ended

June 29, June 30, July 2,
2013 2012 2011
(Thousands)
GAAP operating income $ 625,98: $ 884,16! $ 929,97¢
Restructuring, integration and other 149,50: 73,58t 77,17¢
Adjusted operating income $ 775,48. $ 957,75( $ 1,007,15!

Management believes that providing this additiomdibrmation is useful for the reader to better assand understand opera
performance, especially when comparing results pi#vious periods or forecasting performance feureiperiods. Furthermore, manager
typically monitors the business both including @xdluding these items and uses these @A measures to establish operational goals
in some cases, for measuring performance for cosgtiem purposes. However, analysis of results aldak on a norGAAP basis should |
used as a complement to, and in conjunction witka gresented in accordance with GAAP.

Results of Operations
Executive Summary

Revenue for fiscal 2013 was $25.46 billion , a dase of 1.0% from fiscal 2012 revenue of $25.7lohil, and revenue on an orga
basis was down 5.3%ear over year. This decrease in revenue refleetkmess in the western regions at both operatimgpgrdue primarily 1
the global macroeconomic environment, partiallsetfby strength in Asia. EM revenue of $15.09dmillincreased 1.1%ver the prior year ai
organic revenue decreased 1.2&@ar over year in constant currency. This decr@asgganic revenue was primarily related to the Aloa=
region, which (i) experienced weaker demand ancefited the lower margin commercial componentsnass. TS revenue &10.36 billior
decreased 3.8% over the prior year and its orgavienue decreased 8.3#bconstant currency over the prior year. This dase in organ
revenue was also attributable to weakness in tisteneregions.
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Gross profit margin of 11.7% declined 17 basis fover the prior year. EM gross profit margin desll 52basis points year over y«
due to competitive pressures most notably in th&eEMegion and a higher mix of lower margin Asiagaue. TS gross profit margin impro
24 basis points year over year primarily driven by #tmeericas and EMEA offset by a decrease in Asiasehincreases were driven prime
by the revenue mix of higher margin products anslises.

Consolidated operating income margin was 2.5% apeoed with 3.4%n the prior year. Both periods included restruictyy integratiol
and other charges. Excluding these charges frommriods, operating income margin was 3.0% ofssaldéiscal 2013 as compared to 3.6%
sales in the prior year. EM operating income margnreased 90 basis points year over year to 4.IBe decline in EM operating inco
margin was primarily due to lower profitability the western regions due to lower gross profit nmexgpartially offset by the benefit of ¢
reduction actions taken. TS operating income madgtreased 27 basis points year over year to du@primarily to recent acquisitions as
related cost synergies have not yet been attaingadyrticular in EMEA.

Three-Year Analysis of Sales: By Operating Group ad Geography

Years Ended Percent Change
June 29, % of June 30, % of July 2, % of 2013 to 2012 to
2013 Total 2012 Total 2011 Total 2012 2011

(Dollars in millions)
Sales by Operating

Group:
EM Americas $ 5,263.¢ 20.7% $ 5,678. 22.1% $ 5,113.¢ 19.3% (7.9% 11.C%
EM EMEA 4,096.( 16.1 4,203.: 16.4 4,816. 18.1 (2.6) (2.7
EM Asia 5,734.¢ 22.5 5,051.: 19.6 5,136.: 19.4 13t 1.7
Total EM 15,094.- 59.3 14,933.: 58.1 15,066.: 56.8 1.1 (0.9
TS Americas 5,452.¢ 21.4 5,820.¢ 22.6 6,404. 24.1 (6.3 (9.
TS EMEA 3,181.¢ 125 3,205.¢ 12.5 3,577.: 13.5 (0.7 (10.9
TS Asia 1,729.¢ 6.8 1,748.: 6.8 1,486. 5.6 (1.2 17.€
Total TS 10,364.! 40.7 10,774.. 41.9 11,468.. 43.2 (3.8) (6.0)
Total Avnet, Inc. $ 25,458. $ 25,707 $ 26,534. (1.0% (3.1)%
Sales by Geographic
Area:
Americas $ 10,716.( 42.1% $ 11,499. 448% $ 11,518 43.4% (6.8% (0.2%
EMEA 7,277.¢ 28.6 7,408.¢ 28.8 8,393. 31.6 (1.9) (11.7)
Asia/Pacific 7,464.. 29.3 6,799. 26.4 6,622.! 25.0 9.8 2.7

$ 25,458.¢ $ 25,707. $ 26,534.
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Sales

Items Impacting Year-over-Year Sales Comparisons

During the past three fiscal years, the Companyiaed several businesses impacting both operatiogps, as presented in the follow
table. To facilitate easier and more meaningfukrymeeryear comparisons, the discussions that follow ielsales on an organic basis as

as on a reported basis.

Approximate

Annualized
Acquired Business Group & Region Revenues? Acquisition Date
(Millions)

Fiscal 2013
RTI Holdings EM Asia $ 78 April 2013
TSSLink, Inc. TS Americas 10 December 2012
Universal Semiconductor, Inc. EM Americas 75 December 2012
Genilogix TS Americas 23 November 2012
Brightstar Partners, Inc. TS Americas 14 November 2012
Magirus AG TS EMEA 633 October 2012
Tekdata Interconnections, Limited EM EMEA 10 October 2012
Internix, Inc. EM Asia 264 August 2012
C.R.G. Electronics, Ltd. EM EMEA 24 August 2012
Pepperweed Consulting TS Americas 12 August 2012
Mattelli Limited TS EMEA 1 July 2012
Altron GmbH & Co KG EM EMEA 34 July 2012

Total $ 1,17¢
Fiscal 2012
Ascendant Technology TS Americas & TS $ 86 April 2012
EMEA
Nexicore Services EM Americas 85 April 2012
Controlling interest in a non-wholly owned entity EM Americas 62 January 2012
Pinnacle Data Systems EM Americas 27 January 2012
Canvas Systems TS Americas & TS 11€ January 2012
EMEA

Unidux Electronics Limited (Singapore) EM Asia 14t January 2012
Round 2 Tech EM Americas 54 January 2012
DE2 SAS EM EMEA 11 November 2011
JC Tally Trading Co. & Shanghai FR Internationahding EM Asia 99 August 2011
Prospect Technology EM Asia 14z August 2011
Amosdec SAS TS EMEA 83 July 2011

Total

$ 91z
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Approximate

Annualized
Acquired Business Group & Region Revenues? Acquisition Date
(Millions)
Fiscal 2011
itX Group Ltd. TS Asia $ 16( January 2011
Center Cell EM Americas 5 November 2010
Eurotone EM Asia 3C October 2010
Broadband EM Americas 8 October 2010
Unidux EM Asia 37C July 2010
Tallard Technologies TS Americas 25C July 2010
Bell Microproducts Inc. EM & TS Americas 3,021 July 2010
TS EMEA
Total $ 3,84«

(1) Represents the approximate annual revenuthéoracquired businessasost recent fiscal year prior to acquisition by Avmand base
upon average foreign currency exchange rates éetperiods.

Sales on an organic basis also include the eftdasdivestiture of a small business in TS Asi®acember 2012 and the exit of a si
business in EM Americas in April 2013 that genetatembined annual revenues of approximately $20amil

Fiscal 2013 Comparison to Fiscal 2012

The table below provides the comparison of repdiitarhl 2013 and 2012ales for the Company and its operating groupsgarac sale
(as defined earlier in this MD&A) to allow readéosbetter assess and understand the Company’sueypanformance by operating group.

Salesas  Acquisition/Divested  Organic 2013 to 2012
Reported Revenue Sales Change
(Dollars in millions)
EM $ 15,094 $ 148« $ 15,242. (2.5%
TS 10,364 153.¢ 10,518.: (9.0
Fiscal 2013 $ 25,458.¢ $ 302.2 $ 25,761. (5.9
EM $ 14,933.. $ 707.€¢ $ 15,640
TS 10,774.. 789.2 11,563.
Fiscal 2012 $ 25707! % 1,496.¢ $ 27,204.

Consolidated sales for fiscal 2013 were $25.460bil| a decrease of 1.0% , or $248.6 millidnom the prior year consolidated sale
$25.71 billion . Organic sales (as defined eailliethis MD&A) decreased 5.3% year over year andided 4.2%excluding the translatic
impact of changes in foreign currency exchangesrdtke organic revenue decline was primarily duta¢orevenue decline at TS.

EM sales of $15.09 billion for fiscal 2013 incredsk1% from the prior year sales of $14.93 billioBM organic revenue in const
currency decreased 1.2%ar over year primarily related to the Americagion, which (i) experienced weaker demand ancefijed the lowe
margin commercial components business. On a regimasss, the Americas organic revenue decreasdi¥dear over year primarily due
the decision to exit the lower margin commerciahponents business. For EMEA, despite the ongoiogsstonary trends in the region orgi
revenue was relatively flat year over year in cansturrency. Asia organic revenue increased 6686 over year, which was primarily dut
higher revenue in the lower gross margin fulfillmhéusiness. The higher growth rate in Asia resuited regional shift in the mix of sa
between the lower-margin Asia region and the highargin western regions, which negatively impactethtEM's consolidated gross pr
and operating income margins.
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TS sales of $10.36 billion for fiscal 2013 decreb363% from the prior year sales of $10.77 billid@rganic revenue declined 8.3féal
over year in constant dollars primarily due to weradales in the western regions. In the Americg®nre year-overear organic sales decrea
8.5% , and sales in EMEA decreased 11ii%onstant currency. On a product level, declimeservers and hardware were partially offse
growth in storage, services, and software.

Fiscal 2012 Comparison to Fiscal 2011

The table below provides the comparison of repdiitarhl 2012 and 2014ales for the Company and its operating groupsgarac sale
(as defined previously) to allow readers to bettesess and understand the Company’s revenue parfoenby operating group.

Sales as Acquisition 2012 to 2011
Reported Sales Organic Sales Change
(Dollars in millions)
EM $ 14,933.. $ 2112 % 15,144.. (6.9%
TS 10,774.. 137.¢ 10,912.. @.7
Fiscal 2012 $ 25,707.! $ 349.C % 26,056.! (4.4
EM $ 15,066.. $ 1,092 % 16,158.!
TS 11,468.. (365.9) 11,102.¢
Fiscal 2011 $ 26,534.. $ 726.¢ $ 27,261..

Consolidated sales for fiscal 2012 were $25.710hill a decrease of 3.1% , or $826.9 millidnom the prior year consolidated sale
$26.53 hillion . Organic sales (as defined eaitighis MD&A) decreased 4.4%, which was primarilyedto a doubleligit decline in the EME.
region in both operating groups.

EM sales of $14.93 billion for fiscal 2012 decrah€e9% from the prior year sales of $15.07 billioEM organic revenue in const
currency decreased 6.0% year over year due toatmbioation of exceptionally high growth in fisc@d2L driven by the \&haped recovery
electronic components, which led to negative orggndowth in EM for fiscal 2012. On a regional ba&i¢MEA experienced double-digit, year-
overyear revenue declines for both organic and repageenue, as a result of weaker demand amid cosisemnounding economic conditic
in Europe. Asia organic revenue declined 7.5 %narily due to slowing growth in China, and salethia Americas were flat as compared 1
fiscal 2011.

TS sales of $10.77 billion for fiscal 2012 decreb8el% from the prior year sales of $11.47 billiofhe year-oveyear revenue decre:
was due primarily to the Americas and EMEA regiombich were down 9.1% and 10.4%, respectively,ipliyrtoffset by growth of 17.6%
Asia. Organic revenue decreased 1.7% year overprgaarily due to EMEA, which decreased 12.7% add4% in constant currency. T
doubledigit decline in EMEA was due to weaker demand urdpe due primarily to the macroeconomic environnpaviously mentione
The organic decline in EMEA was mostly offset byiacrease of 11.5% in Asia and 1.7% in the Ameri¢as a product level, software ¢
services experienced strong double-digit growthr pyear year and storage, processors and other haedalso grew year over year.

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margins

Consolidated gross profit in fiscal 2013 was $2b#iBon , a decrease of $70.8 million , or 2.3%om the prior year and a decreas
7.0% on an adjusted basis in constant currencys<poofit margin of 11.7% decreased dakis points over the prior year. EM gross p
margin declined 5Basis points year over year primarily related tolides in gross margins in the EMEA region andghbr mix of revenu
from the lower gross profit margin Asia region. Ttlecline in EMEA gross margin was primarily dueth® effects of market pressu
associated with relatively short product lead timWgh respect to regional mix, the Asia region tritmuted 38%of EM sales in the current ye
from 34%in the prior year, attributable to higher growtkesain Asia, the effects of the acquisition of tnig, Inc. in Japan, and lower grov
rates in the western regions.TS gross profit mairgproved 24basis points year over year, primarily driven by fkmericas and EMEA offs
by a decrease in Asia. These increases were doiverarily by the revenue mix of higher margin prottuand services.

Consolidated gross profit in fiscal 2012 was $30kon , a decrease of $57.2 million , or 1.8%om the prior year and decreased 4
on an adjusted basis in constant currency. Gras# pnargin of 11.9%mproved 16 basis points over the prior year. EMsgrprofit margi
was down 38 basis points year over year, withhaifle regions experiencing declines. The Americg®bnewas impacted by the transfer of
lower gross margin Latin America commercial compdséiusiness from TS Americas to EM Americas atltbginning of fiscal 2012.
addition, the regional mix of business was slightigre skewed to the lower
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margin regions in the current fiscal year as thlghéi gross margin EMEA region represented 28% eftlerall EM revenue mix as compe
with 32% in the prior year. TS gross profit margimproved 73 basis points year over year. The ygar-pear improvement was driven by
western regions, particularly EMEA. The Americagioa's gross profit margin benefited from the tfansf the Latin America business to |
as mentioned previously.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses

Selling, general and administrative expenses (“SG&fenses”) were $2.20 billion in fiscal 2013 ,iacrease of $111.5 million or
5.3% , from the prior year. This increase consigiédi) an increase of approximately $184.4 milliorlated to expenses from busine
acquired and (ii) the effects of inflation and otli@ctors, which increased the Company's SG&A espsrby an estimated $61.0 millign
partially offset by (iii) a decrease of approximat®$100.0 millionrelated to recent cost reduction actions, andgidecrease of approximat
$33.9 millionrelated to the translation impact of changes igifpr currency exchange rates. Metrics that managemenitors with respect
its operating expenses are SG&A expenses as anpagecof sales and as a percentage of gross drofiscal 2013, SG&A expenses as
percentage of sales were 8.7% and were 74.0% ascanpage of gross profit as compared with 8.1%6h6% , respectively, in fiscal 2012
SG&A expenses as a percentage of gross profit atriEkased 541 basis points year over year, aledalthe effects of recent acquisition
the related cost savings have not yet been futbiregd and due to declines in total gross profltade relative to operating expenses. SC
expenses as a percentage of gross profit at T8ased 360 basis points year over year due primarilge effects of the decrease in reve
as previously described and, to a lesser extemtetfects of recent acquisitions as certain coségies have not yet been attained, in parti
in EMEA, and which are not expected to be fullyiagbd for several quarters while the integrationmkais in process.

SG&A expenses were $2.09 billion in fiscal 201Zsentially flat from the prior year, decreasing8billion . The decrease in SGé
expenses was primarily a result of (i) approxima&31 million related to a decrease in expenseshf®existing business due primarily to
reduction actions taken and a decrease in var@atgenses related to the revenue decline; (ii) aqpmately $6 million related to a decrease
to the translation impact of changes in foreigrrenicy exchange rates, partially offset by (iii)iacrease of approximately $49.0 million rele
to expenses from businesses acquired. In fisca2 2BG&A expenses as a percentage of sales weve &tl were 68.6%s a percentage
gross profit as compared with 7.9% and 67.6% ,aethyely, in fiscal 2011 .

Restructuring, Integration and Other Charges
Fiscal2013

During fiscal 2013, the Company continued to take certain actionsethuce costs in both operating groups in respoosmarke
conditions and incurred acquisition and integrattosts associated with acquired businesses dumandidcal year. As a result, the Comp
recorded restructuring, integration and other chamgf $149.5 million . Restructuring charges of (D2million consisted of $73.3 milliofor
severance, $34.4 million for facility exit costsdafixed asset write-downs, and $12.3 millifmm other restructuring charges, including a :
million loss related to the write-down of the neseats and goodwill related to the exit of a muegrated business in the EM Americas re¢
Integration costs were $35.7 million , of which &8nillion related to the exit of two mulémployer pension plans associated with acq
entities in Japan. Acquisition related charges ajdstments were a credit of $3.2 million , consgprimarily of the reversal of an eaon
liability of $11.2 million for which payment is nlmnger expected to be incurred. The Company recoederedit of $3.1 milliorto adjus
reserves related to prior year restructuring agtithat were no longer required. The tffected impact of restructuring, integration, ahde:
charges was $116.4 million and $0.83 per sharediluted basis.

Severance charges recorded in fiscal 2013 relatabet reduction of over 1,608mployees in sales and business support functi
connection with the cost reduction actions takealirthree regions in both operating groups withptayee reductions of approximately10(
in EM, 400 in TS and 150 in business support fumsti Facility exit costs for vacated facilitiesateld to 32 facilities in the Americas, #6
EMEA and 11 in the Asia region, and consisted serees for remaining lease liabilities for exitedifities and the writelown of the relate
fixed assets.

Integration costs incurred were related to thegrggon of acquired businesses and incrementas éostirred as part of the consolida
and closure of certain office and warehouse looatidntegration costs included IT consulting cdetssystem integration assistance, fac
moving costs, legal fees, travel, meeting, marietind communication costs that were incrementalyrired as a result of the integra
activity. Also, included in integration costs aneriemental salary costs associated with the cafeg@in and closure activities, as well as ¢
associated with acquisition activity, primarily agdd to the acquired businesses' personnel who neti@ed by Avnet following the close
the acquisitions solely to assist in the integratib the acquired businesses'dyistems and administrative and logistics operatiottsthose ¢
Avnet. These identified personnel have no othernimegul day-today operational responsibilities outside of thegnation effort. Acquisitio
transaction costs consisted
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primarily of professional fees for due diligenceriwand other legal costs associated with the ttitsga along with the gain from the revel
earn-out liability previously described.

Fiscal 2012

During fiscal 2012, the Company took certain actions to reduce ciostsoth operating groups in response to market itiond ant
incurred acquisition and integration costs assediatith acquired businesses during the fiscal yAar.a result, the Company recon
restructuring, integration and other charges of. @ ¥8illion . Restructuring charges of $50.3 millioansisted of $33.2 milliofor severanc:
$12.0 million for facility exit costs and fixed a&gswrite-downs, and $5.1 milliofor other restructuring charges, primarily otheas
obligations that have no ongoing benefit to the @any. Integration costs and acquisition transactiosts were $9.4 million an§i10.¢
million , respectively. The Company recorded a itrefi$3.3 millionto adjust reserves related to prior year restrutguactivity that were r
longer required. In addition, the Company recorfiéd millionfor (i) a legal claim associated with an acquiredibess and a potential roy:
claim related to periods prior to acquisition byn&t and (ii) a legal claim associated with an indéication of a prior divested business. -
tax-effected impact of restructuring, integratiomather charges was $53.0 million and $0.35 paresbn a diluted basis

Severance charges recorded in fiscal 2012 relatéfuetreduction of over 838mployees in sales, administrative and financetfons ir
connection with the cost reduction actions takeallithree regions in both operating groups wittpapee reductions of approximately 480
EM and 320 in TS. Facility exit costs for vacatedilities related to 12 facilities in the Americ&sin EMEA and 13n the Asia region ar
consisted of reserves for remaining lease liabgditind the write-down of leasehold improvementsatiner fixed assets.

Fiscal 2011

During fiscal 2011 , the Company recognized restmirtg, integration and other charges of $77.2ianllassociated primarily with tl
integration of the acquired Bell business. Restnirng costs included $28.6 million for severance &17.3 million for facility exit costs fi
lease liabilities, fixed asset writbewns and other related charges associated withtemcfacilities and $1.8 million for other charg
Integration costs were $25.1 million and acquisitteansactions costs were $15.6 millioim addition, the Company recorded a revers
$11.3 millionrelated to (i) the reversal of restructuring ressrestablished in prior years that were deemedmgel required, (ii) acquisitit
adjustments for which the purchase allocation gkehad closed and (iii) exielated reserves originally established throughdgolb in prior
years that were deemed no longer required and eredited to the consolidated statement of operatrather than to goodwill because
associated goodwill was impaired in fiscal 2009e Tax-effected impact of restructuring, integratiand other charges was $56.2 millimc
$0.36 per share on a diluted basis

Severance charges recorded in fiscal 2011 relatguetsonnel reductions of over 58Mployees in administrative, finance and ¢
functions primarily in connection with the integoat of the acquired Bell business into the existidd Americas, TS Americas and TS EM
regions and, to a lesser extent, other cost regtueictions in other regions. Facility exit costasieted of lease liabilities, fixed asset write
downs and other related charges associated withiab@ted facilities: 23 in the Americas, B6 EMEA and two in the Asia region. To
amounts utilized during fiscal 2012 consisted a2.$1million in cash payments and $3.2 milli@iated to adjustments to reserves and fo
currency translation.

Operating Income

During fiscal 2013 , the Company generated opeagaticome of $626.0 million , representing a 29.8é¢line as compared with pr
year operating income $884.2 million . Consolidated operating income nrangas 2.5% as compared with 3.4%6the prior year. Bof
periods included restructuring, integration andeotbharges as described Restructuring, Integration and Other Chargesove. Excludin
these charges from both periods, operating income $775.5 million , or 3.0% of sales, in fiscal 2Gs compared with $957.8 milliqrot
3.7% of sales, in the prior year. EM operating mecof $624.0 million decreased 17.Q%ar over year and operating income margin decd
90 basis points year over year to 4.1%he decline in EM operating income margin wasngrily due to lower gross profit margin
previously mentioned, resulting in lower profitatyilin the western regions, offset partially by thenefits of cost reduction actions taken
operating income of $278.4 million decreased 12y8%r over year and operating income margin decde@3ebasis points to 2.7%ue
primarily to the effects of the decline in revenas,previously described and, to a lesser extieateffects of recent acquisitions as certain
synergies have not yet been attained, in partianl&MEA, and which are not expected to be fullyiaeed for several quarters while
integration work is in process. Corporate operatirgenses were $126.9 million in fiscal 2013 asganmad with $112.9 million in fiscal 2012 .

During fiscal 2012 , the Company generated opegaticome of $884.2 million , down 4.9% , as compangth $930.0 millionin the
prior year. Consolidated operating income margis &% as compared with 3.5% in the prior yearhBariods
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included restructuring, integration and other ckargs described iRestructuring, Integration and Other Chargakove. Excluding the
charges from both periods, operating income wag 88iillion , or 3.7% of sales, in fiscal 2012 asnpared with $1.01 billion , or 3.8%f
sales, in the prior year. EM operating income di%4 million was down 9.7%ear over year. While EM's operating income margimaine:
within management's target range of 5.0% to 5.5%e¢lined 50 basis points year over year to 5.0Pkis decline in EM operating incol
margin was primarily due to the negative operatlgrage, particularly in EMEA related to the ye&er-year decline in sales in fisc01z
due to macroeconomic conditions in the region aspayed with the positive operating leverage dufisgcal 2011 due to the particularly strc
sales growth in fiscal 2011In addition, lower operating income margin in Eia, due to economic slowing in China, also cdmtied tc
EM's overall decline in operating income margineTecline at EM was somewhat mitigated by the biesngdm cost reduction actions tal
in response to business conditions. TS operatiognie of $319.3 million increased 11.46ar over year and operating income me
increased 46 basis points to 3.@#marily due to improvement in the western regjonkich was driven by the combination of higherg
profit margins and the benefits from restructurimigjatives. Corporate operating expenses were Rlafllion in fiscal 2012as compared wi
$112.0 million in fiscal 2011 .

Interest Expense and Other Income (Expense), net

Interest expense for fiscal 2013 was $107.7 milliam increase of $16.8 million , or 18.5%ompared with the prior year. The incre
in interest expense was primarily due to higheraye debt balances and incremental interest expelaed to the 4.875% Notes issued du
the second quarter of fiscal 2013, the proceedshi¢h were used to repay the short-term debt, whiath lower interest rates. SEmancing
Transactiondor further discussion of the Company's outstandieigt.

Interest expense for fiscal 2012 was $90.9 milljaown $1.6 million , or 1.7% , compared with th@op year. The year-overeal
decrease in interest expense was due to (i) thefi@f $104.4 million of 3.75% convertible debthfarch 2011 and (ii) lower interest expe
incurred under foreign bank credit facilities asnpared with the prior year.

During fiscal 2013 , the Company recognized $0.llioni of other expense as compared with $5.4 nillio the prior year. The year-
overyear increase in other income is attributable tecaiction in foreign currency exchange lossesénctirrent year. Included in other incc
for fiscal 2013 is a gain on sale of marketablaugées partially offset by a loss due to the denadion of the Venezuelan currency.

During fiscal 2012 , the Company recognized $5.4ioni of other expense as compared with other ireah$10.7 millionin the prio
year. The yeoveryear increase in other expense was due primarifgrieign exchange losses in fiscal 2012 comparel f@reign currenc
exchange gains in the prior year.

Gain on Bargain Purchase and Other

During fiscal 2013 , the Company recognized a gairbargain purchase and other of $31.0 milliontpre-which consisted of (i) a g:
on bargain purchase related to the acquisitiomugrhix of $32.7 million pre- and after tax and Z®per share on a diluted basis, which
partially offset by (ii) a loss of $1.7 million ptex and after tax and $0.Q@kr share on a diluted basis as a result of thestiture of a sme
business in the TS Asia region.

During fiscal 2012, the Company recognized a gaithargain purchase of $4.3 million pamd after tax and $0.03 per share on a di
basis. In January 2012, the Company acquired Unitlextronics Limited, a Singapore publicly tradesnpany, through a tender offer. Al
assessing the assets acquired and liabilities assuime consideration paid was below the fair valuthe acquired net assets and, as a r
the Company recognized the gain. In addition, tbenfany recognized other charges of $1.4 milliontpre $0.9 million after tax and $0.
per share on a diluted basis related to the woterdof an investment in a small technology compang the writesff of certain deferre
financing costs associated with the early termamatf a credit facility (seEinancing Transaction®or further discussion).

During fiscal 2011, the Company acquired Unidudapanese publicly traded company, through a tesftkr After reassessing all ass
acquired and liabilities assumed, the consideratiaid was below the fair value of the acquired a&tets and, as a result, the Com
recognized a gain on bargain purchase of $31.Gomifpre-and after tax and $0.20 per share on a diluted bls addition, the Compa
recognized other charges of $2.0 million pa&; $1.4 million after tax and $0.01 per shareadtiluted basis primarily related to an impairn
of buildings in EMEA and recognized a loss of $&illion pretax, $3.9 million after tax and $0.02 per shareaatiluted basis related to
write-down of prior investments in smaller techrgicstart-up companies.
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Income Tax Provision

Avnet'’s effective tax rate on income before incorages was 18.1% in fiscal 2013 as compared witleféactive tax rate of 28.3%
fiscal 2012 . Included in the fiscal 2013 effecttea rate is a net tax benefit of $50.4 millionhieh is comprised of (i) a tax benefit $41.¢
million for the reversal of previously established valuatitiowances against deferred tax assets that me@tedetermined to be realizable
portion of which related to a legal entity in EMEdiscussed further below), (ii) net favorable awgdittlements resulting in a benefit¥83.2
million , partially offset by (iii) a tax provisionf $24.4 millionprimarily related to the establishment of a valatallowance against defer
tax assets that were determined to be unrealizalrlag fiscal 2013 . The fiscal 2013 effective take is lower than the fiscal 20&#ective ta:
rate primarily due to a favorable impact from awsdittlements and, to a lesser extent, the amouthteofaluation allowance released in fi:
2013 (as discussed further below) as comparedthitfamount released in fiscal 20di2e to the reduced level of income and mix of inean
the current year. In fiscal 203 2vithholding tax related to legal entity reorgaatian resulted in an increase to the rate that doegxist in th
current year.

Prior to fiscal 2011, the Company established bvailuation allowance against significant defertad assets related to a legal entit
EMEA due to, among several other factors, a histifrjosses in that entity. Since fiscal 2011, th@mPany determined a portion of
valuation allowance related to this entity was mager required due to the expected continuatiampfoved earnings in the foreseeable fu
and, as a result, the Company's effective taxwate positively impacted (decreased) upon the releathe valuation allowance. In fiscal 2
and 2012, the valuation allowance released assaocwith this EMEA legal entity was $27.1 millionca$22.1 million, respectively, net of tl
U.S. tax expense associated with the release. dhgpé@ny will continue to evaluate the need for aiabn allowance against these tax a
and will adjust the valuation allowance as deenmat@priate which, when adjusted, will result inierpact to the effective tax rate. Fac
that are considered in such an evaluation includitic levels of income, expectations and riskoagged with estimates of future taxe
income and ongoing prudent and feasible tax planstnategies. Excluding the benefit in both fisgahrs related to the release of the
valuation allowance associated with the EMEA legafity, the effective tax rate for fiscal 2013 wibllave been 23.0%s compared wi
31.1% for fiscal 2012.

Avnet's effective tax rate on income before incaiapees was 28.3% in fiscal 2012 ; compared withféecgve tax rate of 23.2% fiscal
2011 . The fiscal 201&ffective tax rate is higher than the fiscal 20fféative tax rate primarily due to a lower amouhtwaluation allowanc
released in fiscal 2012 as compared with fiscall2@hd, to a lesser extent, a more favorable imfzant audit settlements and change
existing tax positions in fiscal 2012 as compareth iscal 2011. These favorable impacts were phytioffset by withholding tax in fisc
2012.

Avnet's effective tax rate is primarily a functiohthe tax rates in the numerous jurisdictions hiclu it does business applied to the
of pretax book income. The effective tax rate may vargryever year as a result of changes in tax req@ndsnin these jurisdictior
management's evaluation of its ability to genesaficient taxable income to offset net operatiagsl carryforwards and the establishmen
reserves for unfavorable outcomes of tax posittaken on certain matters that are common to mdidinal enterprises and the actual outc
of those matters.

Net Income

As a result of the factors described in the premgdections of this MD&A, the Company’s net incomédiscal 2013 was $450.1 million
or $3.21 per share on a diluted basis, compare mgt income of $567.0 million , or $3.79 per shanea diluted basis, in fiscal 205hc¢
$669.1 million , or $4.34 per share on a dilutesi®an fiscal 2011 .

Fiscal 2013, 2012 and 2011 results were impacgfezkhtain items as presented in the following table

Year Ended June 29, 2013

Operating Pre-tax Net Diluted
Income (Loss) Income (Loss) Income (Loss) EPS
(Thousands, except per share data)
Restructuring, integration and other charges $ (149,50) $ (149,50) $ (116,38) $ (0.89)
Gain on bargain purchase and other — 31,01 30,97 0.2z
Net tax benefit — — 50,37¢ 0.3¢€
Total $ (149,50) $ (118,490 $ (35,03) $ (0.25)
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Year Ended June 30, 2012

Operating Pre-tax Net Diluted
Income (Loss) Income (Loss) Income (Loss) EPS
(Thousands, except per share data)
Restructuring, integration and other charges $ (73,58) $ (73,585 $ (52,969 $ (0.35)
Gain on bargain purchase and other — 2,91¢ 3,46: 0.0z
Net tax benefit — — 8,61¢ 0.0¢
Total $ (73,585 $ (70,667 $ (40,88 $ (0.279)
Year Ended July 2, 2011
Operating Pre-tax Net Diluted
Income (Loss) Income (Loss) Income (Loss) EPS
(Thousands, except per share data)
Restructuring, integration and other charges $ (77,17¢ $ (77,17¢ 3 (56,169 $ (0.3¢)
Gain on sale of assets — 22,71* 25,72( 0.17
Release of tax valuation allowance, net of taxmese
adjustments — — 32,90: 0.21
Total $ (77,17¢ 3 (54,46) $ 2452 % 0.0z

Liquidity and Capital Resources
Cash Flows
Cash Flows from Operating Activities

The Company generated $696.2 million of cash frgarating activities in fiscal 2013 as compared v#i#28.7 million in fiscal 2012
These results are comprised of: (i) cash flow gateerfrom net income excluding non-cash and othewnciling items, which includes the add
back to net income of depreciation and amortizatitwierred income taxes, stock-based compensatidrother norcash items (primarily tt
provision for doubtful accounts and periodic pensiosts) and (ii) cash flow used for working capiexcluding cash and cash equivale
Cash generated by working capital changes was $4illidn during fiscal 2013 , resulting from a dease in inventory of $225.7 million
partially offset by a decrease in accounts payallé accrued expenses and other of $78.8 million&m#a million, respectively, and i
increase in accounts receivable of $94.2 millidtet days outstanding, in particular, receivaldgs] has not changed significantly as thert
not been any significant change in terms provideciistomers nor are customers changing their patypagterns.

During fiscal 2012 , the Company generated $528lifom of cash from operating activities as comphreith $278.1 millionin fiscal
2011 . Cash generated by working capital in fit@#l2 resulted from a decrease in accounts rece\aid inventory of $72.3 millioanc
$133.2 million , respectively, offset by a decreasaccounts payable of $319.1 million and in aedrexpenses and other of $136.9 million
Cash used for working capital during fiscal 201hsisted of growth in accounts receivable and inmgnof $421.5 million and $321.9 million
respectively, partially offset by an increase in@mts payable of $165.2 million .

Cash Flows from Financing Activities

During fiscal 2013 , the Company repaid $490.9 iomllunder the accounts receivable securitization pragaad its revolving crec
facility, a portion of which was funded by the iasge of $350 million of 4.875% Notes due Decemb&022. In addition, during fiscal 2013
the Company used $207.2 million of cash to repwwel@mmmon stock under the $750.0 millgimare repurchase program authorized b
Board of Directors in August 2012 (skem 5. Market for Registrants' Common Equity, Related IStolder Matters and Issuer Purchase
Equity Securitiein this Form 10-K).

During fiscal 2012 , the Company received proceefl$595.8 million, primarily from borrowings under the accounts reakle
securitization program and bank credit facilitiés.addition, during fiscal 2012 , the Company u$318.3 millionof cash to repurcha
common stock under the Company's share repurchageam.
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During fiscal 2011 , the Company received proceed$160.0 millionfrom borrowings under the accounts receivable sgzation
program and repaid $109.6 million for the 3.75%ééodcquired in the Bell acquisition which were &ned during fiscal 2011The Compan
also received proceeds of $8.9 million , net oBsgpents, related to its revolving credit facilitydaother debt.

Other financing activities, net, during fiscal 2013012 and 201tvere primarily a result of cash received for thereise of stock optiol
and the associated excess tax benefit.

Cash Flows from Investing Activities

During fiscal 2013 , the Company used $262.3 nillaf cash for acquisitions, net of cash acquired] $97.4 millionfor capita
expenditures primarily related to system developnwasts and computer hardware and software pursh@dseo during fiscal 2013 the
Company received $3.6 million , net of cash divésfer an earreut payment associated with a divestiture completedprior year and a sm
divestiture in TS Asia.

During fiscal 2012 , the Company used $313.2 niillaf cash for acquisitions, net of cash acquired] $128.7 millionfor capita
expenditures primarily related to system developmeests and computer hardware and software purshase

During fiscal 2011 , the Company used $691.0 nrillaf cash for acquisitions, net of cash acquired #148.7 millionfor capita
expenditures primarily related to system developgnuexsts and computer hardware and software expendit Also during fiscal 2011the
Company received $19.1 million of proceeds assediatith a divestiture and $10.6 million of proceédsn the sale of fixed assets.

Capital Structure

The Company uses a variety of financing arrangespdmith short-term and lortgrm, to fund its operations in addition to fu
generated from cash flow from operations. The Cam@dso uses diversified sources of funding soitrdaes not become overly depender
one source and to achieve lower cost of fundingutn these different alternatives. These finanaimgngements include public bonds, shor
term and long-term bank loans and an accountsvalei securitization program. For a detailed desiom of the Compang’ external financir
arrangements outstanding at June 29, 2013 , efdote 7 to the consolidated financial statemepggearing in Item 15 of this Report.

The following table summarizes the Company’s céitaucture as of the end of fiscal 20d@h a comparison with the end of fis
2012:

June 29, % of Total June 30, % of Total
2013 Capitalization 2012 Capitalization
(Dollars in thousands)
Short-term debt $ 838,19 13.2% $ 872,40« 14.4%
Long-term debt 1,206,99. 19.1 1,271,98 21.0
Total debt 2,045,18 32.3 2,144,38! 35.4
Shareholders’ equity 4,289,12! 67.7 3,905,73. 64.6
Total capitalization $ 6,334,30: 100.0 $ 6,050,12. 100.0

Financing Transactions

The Company has a five-year $1.0 billisenior unsecured revolving credit facility (the 120Credit Facility") with a syndicate of ban
which expires in November 2016. In connection wite 2012 Credit Facility, the Company terminatedeikisting unsecured $500.0 mill
credit facility (the "2008 Credit Facility"), whictvas to expire in September 2012. Under the 20&2iCFacility, the Company may elect fr
various interest rate options, currencies and nigsir As of the end of fiscal 2013 , there wererdaillion in borrowings outstanding under
2012 Credit Facility included in “long-term debtf the consolidated financial statements. In addjtibere were $2.3 milliom letters of cred
issued under the 2012 Credit Facility, which repnés a utilization of the 2012 Credit Facility caipa but is not recorded in the consolide
balance sheet as the letters of credit are not debof June 30, 2012 , there were $110.1 millioddrrowings outstanding included in “long-
term debt” in the consolidated financial statemeamts $17.2 million in letters of credit issued.

In August 2012, the Company amended its accountivable securitization program (the "Securitizatirrogram" or “Program’vith a
group of financial institutions to allow the Compa sell, on a revolving basis, an undivided iagtrof up to $800.0 million $750.0 millior
prior to the amendment) in eligible receivablesleshétaining a subordinated interest in a portion
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of the receivables. The Program does not qualifyséde treatment and, as a result, any borrowimgeiuthe Program are recorded as de
the consolidated balance sheet. The Program centaitain covenants, all of which the Company wasompliance with as of June 29, 2013
The Program has a oyear term that expires at the end of August 2018¢chvis expected to be renewed for another yeamomparable term
There were $360.0 million in borrowings outstandimgler the Program at June 29, 2013 and $670.lbmdutstanding at June 30, 2012 .

Notes outstanding at June 29, 2013 consisted of:
»  $300.0 million of 5.875% Notes due March 15, 2Qteflected as shoterm debt
e $250.0 million of 6.00% Notes due September 1, :
e $300.0 million of 6.625% Notes due September 156
*  $300.0 million of 5.875% Notes due June 15, :
+  $350.0 million of 4.875% Notes due December 1, :

In addition to its primary financing arrangemertkee Company has $180.3 milliaf debt outstanding with foreign financial instituts
and several small lines of credit in various lomasi to fund the shoterm working capital, foreign exchange, overdrafd setter of credit nee
of its wholly owned subsidiaries in EMEA, Asia aBdnada. Avnet generally guarantees its subsidiatdigations under these facilities.

Covenants and Conditions

The Securitization Program requires the Companydmtain certain minimum interest coverage andrigge ratios in order to contin
utilizing the Program. The Program also containtag@ covenants relating to the quality of the reakles sold. If these conditions are not |
the Company may not be able to borrow any addititmals and the financial institutions may consittés an amortization event, as define
the agreement, which would permit the financiakiinfons to liquidate the accounts receivablesd ol cover any outstanding borrowir
Circumstances that could affect the Company’s tgbib meet the required covenants and conditionth@fProgram include the Compasiy’
ongoing profitability and various other economicarket and industry factors. Management does naéveelthat the covenants under
Program limit the Compang’ability to pursue its intended business stratagis future financing needs. The Company wasoimgliance witl
all covenants of the Program as of June 29, 2013 .

The 2012 Credit Facility contains certain covenanith various limitations on debt incurrence, diedis, investments and cag
expenditures and also includes financial covenaetpiiring the Company to maintain minimum intereswverage and leverage rat
Management does not believe that the covenantei2®12 Credit Facility limit the Compasyability to pursue its intended business stre
or its future financing needs. The Company wasimgliance with all covenants of the Credit Facility of June 29, 2013 .

Seeliquidity below for further discussion of the Company’s aafaility under these various facilities.
Liquidity

As of June 29, 2013 , the Company had total bomgvagapacity of $1.80 billiomnder the 2012 Credit Facility and the Program.r@
were $6.7 million in borrowings outstanding and 3illion in letters of credit issued under the 20Credit Facility andb360.0 millior
outstanding under the Securitization Program rempiin $1.4 billion of net availability at the eraf fiscal 2013 . During fiscal 2013the
Company had an average daily balance outstandidgrithe 2012 Credit Facility of approximately $&fllion and $570.0 milliorunder th
Securitization Program. During fiscal 2012the Company had an average daily balance ouisgnehder the 2012 Credit Facility
approximately $115.0 million and $620.0 million endhe Securitization Program.

The Company had cash and cash equivalents of $lllioh as of June 29, 2013, of which $918.4 roitlwas held outside the U.S. As
June 30, 2012 , the Company had cash and cashaéentiv of $1.01 billion , of which $874.0 milliamas held outside of the U.S. Liquidity
subject to many factors, such as normal businessatipns as well as general economic, financiampetitive, legislative, and regulatc
factors that are beyond the Compangbntrol. Cash balances generated and held iigfotecations are used for ongoing working car
capital expenditures and to support acquisitiofses€ balances are currently expected to be perithameimvested outside the U.S. If th
funds were needed in the U.S., the Company wouldrisignificant income taxes to repatriate cashl refforeign locations to the extent tl
are in excess of outstanding intercompany loanstalde/net, Inc. from the foreign subsidiaries. bidéion, local government regulations n
restrict the Company'’s ability to move
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funds among various locations under certain circamt®s. Management does not believe such restisctimuld limit the Compang’ability tc
pursue its intended business strategy.

During fiscal 2013 , the Company utilized $262.3ion of cash, net of cash acquired, for acquisitiorre Tompany expects to contil
to make strategic investments through acquisitiotividy to the extent the investments strengthemetis competitive position and m
management’s return on capital thresholds.

In addition to continuing to make investments igsitions, the Company may repurchase up to aneggte of $750.0 millioof the
Companys common stock through a share repurchase progsprmaed by the Board of Directors (as amended igusti2012). The Compa
plans to repurchase stock from time to time atdiseretion of management, subject to strategic idenstions, market conditions and of
factors. The Company may terminate or limit thecktoepurchase program at any time without prioiaeotThe timing and actual numbeil
shares purchased will depend on a variety of facsoich as price, corporate and regulatory requinesnand prevailing market conditio
Since the beginning of the repurchase program tiirahe end of fiscal 2013 , the Company repurchdsefl million shares at an averz
market price of $29.38 per share for total cost5#5.5 million . Shares repurchased were retired.

During periods of weakening demand in the electrarimponent and enterprise computer solutions ingduthe Company typical
generates cash from operating activities. Converseé Company is more likely to use operating déslhis for working capital requiremel
during periods of higher growth. During fiscal 201the Company generated $696.2 million in casmfoperations as revenue declirled%
over the prior year. Management believes that Asri@irrowing capacity, its current cash availapibind the Compang’expected ability
generate operating cash flows are sufficient totrite@rojected financing needs.

The following table highlights the Company'’s ligitidand related ratios for the past two fiscal wear
COMPARATIVE ANALYSIS — LIQUIDITY

Years Ended

June 29, June 30, Percentage
2013 2012 Change
(Dollars in millions)

Current Assets $ 8,356.¢ $ 8,254.: 1.2%
Quick Assets 5,878.: 5,614.: 4.7
Current Liabilities 4,821. 4,798. 0.5
Working Capital? 3,5635.« 3,455.° 2.3
Total Debt 2,045.. 2,144.. (4.€)
Total Capital (total debt plus total shareholderlity) 6,334.: 6,050.: 4.7
Quick Ratio 1.2:1 1.2:1
Working Capital Ratio 1.7:1 1.7:1
Debt to Total Capital 32.% 35.4%

(1) This calculation of working capital is defined asrent assets less current liabilit

The Company’s quick assets (consisting of cashcastl equivalents and receivables) increased 4 1% June 30, 2012 ttune 29, 201
primarily due to an increase in receivables assalt®f the change in foreign currency exchange sgtes at June 30, 2012 and the year-ove
year decline in revenue. These factors, when comebimith a decrease in inventory, led to an increaseurrent assets 1.2% . Curren
liabilities increased 0.5%rimarily due to an increase in accounts payabbtk a@strued expenses, which was partially offset loeerease
short-term borrowings. As a result of the factoosed above, total working capital increased by 2d#%ing fiscal 2013 Total debt decreas
by 4.6% , primarily due to the decrease in borr@sinnder the 2012 Credit Facility and the Secuwatitin Program, total capital increased@%
and the debt to capital ratio decreased to 32.3% .
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Long-Term Contractual Obligations

The Company has the following contractual obligagioutstanding as of June 29, 2013 (in millions):

Due in Less Due in Due in Due After
Total Than 1 Year 1-3 Years 4-5 Years 5 Years
Long-term debt, including amounts due
within one yeaf” $ 2,047.¢ $ 838.. % 258.¢ % 300.¢ $ 650.¢
Interest expense on long-term nofés $ 378t % 84.C % 1272 % 735 $ 93.7
Operating leases $ 272z $ 86.1 $ 100.1 $ 47 $ 38.4

(1) Excludes discount on lorigkm notes

(2) Represents interest expense due on long-tetes nvith fixed interest rates and variable debtasng the same interest rate aduate 2¢
2013.

At June 29, 2013, the Company had a liabilityifmome tax contingencies of $123.9 millipwhich is not included in the above ta
Cash payments associated with the settlement eéthigbilities that are expected to be paid witiie next 12 months is $16.3 millionThe
Company does not currently have any material comanits for capital expenditures.

Critical Accounting Policies

The Companys consolidated financial statements have been mdpm accordance with U.S. GAAP. The preparatidnth@se
consolidated financial statements requires the Gmypo make estimates and assumptions that affeaeported amounts of assets, liabili
revenues and expenses during the reporting pefioglse estimates and assumptions are based up@othpanys continuous evaluation
historical results and anticipated future eventsuAl results may differ from these estimates unlifégrent assumptions or conditions.

The Securities and Exchange Commission defineisariiccounting policies as those that are, in ganments view, most important
the portrayal of the Compars/financial condition and results of operations #rat require significant judgments and estimatésnagemer
believes the Company’s most critical accountinggies relate to:

Valuation of Receivables

The Company maintains an allowance for doubtfubaots for estimated losses resulting from custodedaults. Bad debt reserves
recorded based upon historic default averages hsisvthe Companyg regular assessment of the financial conditioitsafustomers. Therefo
if collection experience or the financial conditiafi specific customers were to change, managemenidvevaluate whether additio
adjustments are required.

Valuation of Inventories

Inventories are recorded at the lower of costt(fins— first out) or estimated market value. Then@any’s inventories include high-
technology components, embedded systems and cargpetthnologies sold into rapidly changing, cydliead competitive markets wher
such inventories may be subject to technologicabtascence.

The Company regularly evaluates inventories foreescobsolescence or other factors that may remekemtories less marketable. Write-
downs are recorded so that inventories reflectpproximate net realizable value and take into aetcthe Companyg contractual provisiol
with its suppliers, which may provide certain paitens to the Company for product obsolescencepaitg erosion in the form of rights
return and price protection. Because of the langmber of transactions and the complexity of maradie process around price protect
and stock rotations, estimates are made regardijuptenents to the carrying amount of inventoriedditionally, assumptions about fut
demand, market conditions and decisions to diseoattertain product lines can impact the decisiowrite-down inventories. If assumptic
about future demand change or actual market conditare less favorable than those projected by gemmant, management would evall
whether additional write-downs of inventories aquired. In any case, actual values could be @iffieirom those currently estimated.

Accounting for Income Taxes

Management's judgment is required in determinireg ghovision for income taxes, deferred tax assetsl@bilities and the valuatis
allow ance recorded against net deferred tax asBeéscarrying value of the Company's net operdtisg carryforwards is dependent upon
ability to generate sufficient future taxable inain certain tax jurisdictions. In addition, ther@umany
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considers historic levels of income, expectationd sk associated with estimates of future taxaideme and ongoing prudent and feas
tax planning strategies in assessing a tax valalmwance. Should the Company determine thad itdt able to realize all or part of
deferred tax assets in the future, an additionkiaten allowance may be recorded against the oifaiax assets with a corresponding ch
to income in the period such determination is m&imilarly, should the Company determine that ialide to realize all or part of its defer
tax assets that have been reserved for, the Compayyelease a valuation allowance with a corredipgnbenefit to income in the period s
determination is made.

The Company establishes reserves for potentialiguamable outcomes of positions taken on certaimtatters. These reserves are b
on management's assessment of whether a tax bisnaifitre likely than not to be sustained upon eratn by tax authorities. There may
differences between the anticipated and actualoouts of these matters that may result in reverfaleserves or additional tax liabilities
excess of the reserved amounts. To the extent adicistments are warranted, the Company's effetdiveate may potentially fluctuate a
result. In accordance with the Company's accounpiolicy, accrued interest and penalties, if anyatesl to unrecognized tax benefits
recorded as a component of income tax expense.

In determining the Company's effective tax ratepaggement considers current tax regulations in thmemous jurisdictions in which
operates, and exercises judgment for interpretadioth application. Changes to such tax regulationdisagreements with the Compal
interpretation or application by tax authoritiesany of the Company's major jurisdictions may havsignificant impact on the Compar
provision for income taxes.

Restructuring, Integration and Impairment Charges

The Company has been subject to the financial itnpiaimtegrating acquired businesses and chardatedeto business reorganizatic
In connection with such events, management is requio make estimates about the financial impacsuwth matters that are inhere
uncertain. Accrued liabilities and reserves araldsthed to cover the cost of severance, faciligsolidation and closure, lease termine
fees, inventory adjustments based upon acquisittated termination of supplier agreements andierreevaluation of the acquired worki
capital assets (inventory and accounts receivadte) writedown of other acquired assets including goodwititual amounts incurred could
different from those estimated.

Additionally, in assessing goodwill for impairmettte Company is required to make significant asgiong about the future cash flo
and overall performance of its reporting units. Twmnpany is also required to make judgments reggritie evaluation of changes in even
circumstances that would more likely than not redtie fair value of any of its reporting units belis carrying value, the results of wh
would determine whether an interim impairment tesist be performed. Should these assumptions omjadts change in the future ba
upon market conditions or should the structurehef€ompanys reporting units change based upon changes indsssstrategy, the Compi
may be required to perform an interim impairmest tehich may result in a goodwill impairment charge

During fiscal 2013 , 2012 and 2011the Company performed its annual goodwill impa&nintest and determined there was no goo
impairment in any of its reporting units. The Comypaloes not believe there were any reporting uhéswere at risk of failing "step 1" of 1
goodwill impairment test. However, in fiscal 201®te was one reporting unit for which the estimdiééidvalue was not substantially in exc
of the carrying value of the reporting unit. Theqentage by which the estimated fair value exceedeying value was approximately 2306
TS Asia. As of June 29, 2013, TS Asia had apprasety $54 million of allocated goodwill.

In order to estimate the fair value of its repagtimits, the Company uses a combination of an iecapproach, specifically a discour
cash flow methodology, and a market approach. Tikeodnted cash flow methodology includes assumgtfon, among others, forecas
revenues, gross profit margins, operating profitgimes, working capital cash flow, perpetual growdttes and longerm discount rates, all
which require significant judgments and estimatgsnanagement which are inherently uncertain. Thassemptions, judgments and estim
may change in the future based upon market comgitio other events and could result in a goodwipairment charge.

Contingencies and Litigation

From time to time, the Company may become a partpit otherwise involved in, various lawsuits, olaj investigations and other le
proceedings in the ordinary course of conductirsghitisiness. While litigation is subject to inherentertainties, management does
anticipate that any current matters will have aamal adverse impact on the Company'’s financialdétion, liquidity or results of operations.
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Revenue Recognition

The Company does not consider revenue recognitidreta critical accounting policy due to the natofrés business because rever
are generally recognized when persuasive evidehem @arrangement exists, delivery has occurredeorices have been rendered, the ¢
price is fixed or determinable and collectabilgyréasonably assured. Generally, these criterimateipon the actual shipment of product tc
customer. Accordingly, other than for estimatesitesl to possible returns of products from custoprgisgounts or rebates, the recordin
revenue does not require significant judgmentsstmates.

Provisions for returns are estimated based onrfiatcsales returns, credit memo analysis and dthewn factors. Provisions are mi
for discounts and rebates, which are primarily wwtbased, and are generally based on historical trandsanticipated customer buy
patterns. Finally, revenues from maintenance cotgravhich are deferred and recognized in incomer ¢ie life of the agreement, are
material to the consolidated results of operatwirthe Company.

The Company evaluates the criteria outlined in ABdpic 605-45,Principal Agent Considerations in determining whether it
appropriate to record the gross amount of revemderelated costs or the n@mount (gross fees less related cost of salesreicss) earne
when acting as an agent for certain customers applisrs. Generally, transactions that qualify riet accounting treatment consist of the
of supplier service contracts for which the Comphag no continuing involvement or the performantckgistics services to deliver prod
for which the Company is not the primary obligor.

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

See Note 1 in th&lotes to Consolidated Financial Statemettsitained in Item 15 of this Report for the disemssof recently issue
accounting pronouncements.
ltem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures Aout Market Risk

The Company seeks to reduce earnings and cashvii@tility associated with changes in interest saaed foreign currency exchai
rates by entering into financial arrangements, fitoime to time, which are intended to provide a leedgainst all or a portion of the ri
associated with such volatility. The Company camisto have exposure to such risks to the extegtdahe not hedged.

The following table sets forth the scheduled méesgiof the Company’s debt outstanding at Jun2@®3 (dollars in millions):

Fiscal Year
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Thereafter Total
Liabilities:
Fixed rate deb® $ 3612 $ 04 $ 250« % 300.z $ — 8 650.« $ 1,562.t
Floating rate debt $ 477.C % 0.8 % 72 % 02 % — 3 — 3 485.2

(1) Excludes discounts on lorigrm notes

The following table sets forth the carrying valul dair value of the Company’s debt at June 29 32@bllars in millions):

Carrying Value at Fair Value at Carrying Value Fair Value at
June 29, 2013 June 29, 2013 atJune 30, 2012 June 30, 2012

Liabilities:

Fixed rate deb® $ 1562t $ 1,645.. $ 1,152.¢ % 1,285.¢
Average interest rate 5.8% 6.1%

Floating rate debt $ 485 % 485.2 $ 994.1 % 994.1
Average interest rate 1.1% 1.5%

(1) Excludes discounts on long-term notes. Fauwevavas estimated primarily based upon quoted mamkees for the Company's longerr
notes.
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Many of the Companyg' subsidiaries, on occasion, purchase and seluptedn currencies other than their functional endies. Thi
subjects the Company to the risks associated Withuations in foreign currency exchange rates. Thempany reduces this risk by utiliz
natural hedging (offsetting receivables and paygbks well as by creating offsetting positions tigio the use of derivative financ
instruments, primarily forward foreign exchange ttaats with maturities of less than sixty days. Td@mmpany continues to have exposul
foreign currency risks to the extent they are nedded. The Company adjusts all foreign denominbtddnces and any outstanding fort
exchange contracts to fair market value througtctitesolidated statements of operations. Theretbeemarket risk related to foreign excha
contracts is offset by changes in valuation of wheerlying items being hedged. The asset or lighikpresenting the fair value of fore
exchange contracts is classified in the captionhelocurrent assets” or “accrued expenses and,bdthsrapplicable, in the accompany
consolidated balance sheets. A hypothetical 109 gdan currency exchange rates under the contmadttanding at June 29, 20%®uld
result in an increase or decrease of approxim&2(.6 millionto the fair value of the forward foreign exchangmteacts, which wou
generally be offset by an opposite effect on theted hedged positions.

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

The financial statements and supplementary dathséed under Item 15 of this Report.

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Account&mon Accounting and Financial Disclosure

None.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures
Disclosure Controls and Procedures

The Companys management, including its Chief Executive Offiaad Chief Financial Officer, have evaluated tHeaiveness of tt
Company’s disclosure controls and procedures (els ®rm is defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15@) under the Securities Exchange A
1934 (the “Exchange Act”)) as of the end of theortipg period covered by this report on FormKL.OBased on such evaluation, the C
Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer hagencluded that, as of the end of the period covdémedhis report on Form 1K; the
Companys disclosure controls and procedures are effecivgh that material information required to be dised by the Company in 1
reports that it files or submits under the ExchaAgeis recorded, processed, summarized and rafposti¢hin the time periods specified by
Securities and Exchange Commission’s rules and oamd is accumulated and communicated to managemnehiding the Company’
principal executive officer and principal financa@ficer, as appropriate to allow timely decisigrgarding required disclosure.

During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2013 , thereravao changes to the Compasiyniternal control over financial reporting (asidedl ir
Rule 13a-15(f) of the Exchange Act) that have niallgraffected, or are reasonably likely to matbyiaffect, the Companyg internal contrc
over financial reporting.

Management's Report on Internal Control Over Finandal Reporting

The Companys management, including its Chief Executive Offieerd Chief Financial Officer, is responsible fotaidishing an
maintaining adequate internal control over finahc@porting as defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 18(6{f) under the Exchange Act. 1
Companys internal control over financial reporting is dgmd to provide reasonable assurance regardingeliadility of financial reportin
and the preparation of financial statements foemel purposes in accordance with generally acdegateounting principles in the United St:
of America. Because of inherent limitations, introontrol over financial reporting may not preventdetect misstatements. Also, cont
may become inadequate because of changes in angjitor the degree of compliance with the policesprocedures may deterior:
Management conducted an evaluation of the effentige of the Company’s internal control over finahceporting as of June 29, 2013
making this assessment, management used the 186%Mork established iinternal Control — Integrated Frameworissued by th
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Tread@ommission and concluded that the Company miagdeaeffective internal contr
over financial reporting as of June 29, 2013 .

The Company’s independent registered public acaogrfirm, KPMG LLP, has audited the effectivenedstltee Companys interna
controls over financial reporting as of June 29,20as stated in its audit report which is inciitierein.

Item 9B. Other Information
Not applicable.
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PART IlI

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Govente

The information called for by Item 10 is incorpa@mtin this Report by reference to the Compardgfinitive proxy statement relating
the Annual Meeting of Stockholders anticipatedechkeld on November 8, 2013 .

Item 11. Executive Compensation

The information called for by Item 11 is incorpaatin this Report by reference to the Compardeéfinitive proxy statement relating
the Annual Meeting of Stockholders anticipated ¢chield on November 8, 2013 .

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners aiianagement and Related Stockholder Matters

The information called for by Item 12 is incorpamtin this Report by reference to the Compardgfinitive proxy statement relating
the Annual Meeting of Stockholders anticipatedeckeld on November 8, 2013 .

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, abitector Independence

The information called for by Item 13 is incorpamtin this Report by reference to the Compardgfinitive proxy statement relating
the Annual Meeting of Shareholders anticipatededéld on November 8, 2013 .

Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services

The information called for by Item 14 is incorpaatin this Report by reference to the Compardefinitive proxy statement relating
the Annual Meeting of Stockholders anticipated ¢chield on November 8, 2013 .
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PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules

1.

3.

a. The following documents are filed as part of fReport:

Consolidated Financial Statements:

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounfinm

Avnet, Inc. and Subsidiaries Consolidated Figr8tatements:

Consolidated Balance Sheets at June 29, 2013 &ed3lu 2012

Consolidated Statements of Operations for the yeadsd June 29, 2013, June 30, 2012 and July 2, 201

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Incom#éoyears ended June 29, 2013, June 30, 2012 and
July 2, 2011

Consolidated Statements of ShareholdEruiity for the years ended June 29, 2013, Jun2®I®, and
July 2,011

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the yaadsd June 29, 2013, June 30, 2012 and July 2, 201

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Financial Statement Schedule:

Schedule 1l (Valuation and Qualifying Accounts) fhe years ended June 29, 2013, June 30, 2012 and
July 2, 2011

Schedules other than that above have been omitteslibe they are not applicable or the requirednrdton is shown in the

financial statements or notes thereto

Exhibits
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&fdhe Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Regyigthas duly caused this Repol
be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, theoeduly authorized.

AVNET, INC.
(Registrant)

By: /s RICHARD HAMADA
Richard Hamada
Chief Executive Officer and Director

Date: August 9, 2013

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that each personost signature appears below hereby authorizes goirds each «
Richard Hamada and Kevin Moriarty his or her atdystinfact, for him or her in any and all capacitiessign any amendments to this Ref
and to file the same, with exhibits thereto, arfteodocuments in connection therewith, with theusiies and Exchange Commission, hel
ratifying and confirming all that said attorneystact, or their substitute, may do or cause to dreecby virtue hereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, this Report has been signed bbiothe following persons on bef
of the Registrant and in the capacities indicatedogust 9, 2013 .

Signature Title
/sI RICHARD HAMADA Chief Executive Officer and Director
Richard Hamada (Principal Executive Officer)

/s/ WILLIAM H. SCHUMANN, Il
William H. Schumann, Il

Chairman of the Board and Director

/sl J. VERONICA BIGGINS

Director
J. Veronica Biggins
/sl MICHAEL A. BRADLEY Director
Michael A. Bradley
/s/ R. KERRY CLARK Director
R. Kerry Clark
/s JAMES A. LAWRENCE Director
James A. Lawrence
/sl FRANK R. NOONAN Director
Frank R. Noonan
/s/ RAY M. ROBINSON Director
Ray M. Robinson
/s/ WILLIAM P. SULLIVAN Director
William P. Sullivan
1o/ KEVIN MORIARTY Chief Financial Officer

(Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)
Kevin Moriarty



36




Table of Contents

Report of Independent Registered Public Accountingrirm

The Board of Directors and Shareholders
Avnet, Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balaheets of Avnet, Inc. and subsidiaries (the Gaypas of June 29, 2013 ahahe 3(
2012, and the related consolidated statements of dpesatcomprehensive income, shareholders' equitycash flows for each of the year
the three-year period ended June 29, 20I8 connection with our audits of the consolidafedncial statements, we have also auditet
financial statement schedule for each of the ygathe three-year period ended June 29, 2048 listed in the accompanying index. We
have audited the Company's internal control ovearftial reporting as of June 29, 201Based on the 1992 criteria established in Int
Control - Integrated Framework issued by the Committee @nSpring Organizations of the Treadway Commiss@®$%0). The Compan'
management is responsible for these consolidatedidial statements, for maintaining effective ing&control over financial reporting, and
its assessment of the effectiveness of internalrabaver financial reporting, included in the aogeanying Management's Report on Inte
Control over Financial Reporting. Our responsipiiié to express an opinion on these consolidateantiial statements, an opinion on
financial statement schedule and an opinion orCibrapany's internal control over financial reportbased on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstats of the Public Company Accounting OversightuBiogUnited States). Those stand.
require that we plan and perform the audits to iobtaasonable assurance about whether the finastaéments are free of mate
misstatement and whether effective internal contreér financial reporting was maintained in all evél respects. Our audits of
consolidated financial statements included exarginion a test basis, evidence supporting the amaoamds disclosures in the financ
statements, assessing the accounting principled asd significant estimates made by management,eaatiiating the overall financ
statement presentation. Our audit of internal adndver financial reporting included obtaining anderstanding of internal control o
financial reporting, assessing the risk that a neteveakness exists, and testing and evaluatiegdiésign and operating effectivenes
internal control based on the assessed risk. Oditsaalso included performing such other procedwagsve considered necessary in
circumstances. We believe that our audits provideaaonable basis for our opinions.

A company's internal control over financial repogtis a process designed to provide reasonableamssuregarding the reliability of financ
reporting and the preparation of financial stateisidor external purposes in accordance with gelyeealcepted accounting principles
company's internal control over financial reportingludes those policies and procedures that (ftpimeto the maintenance of records tha
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly refleet ttansactions and dispositions of the assetseottimpany; (2) provide reasonable assui
that transactions are recorded as necessary toitpgraparation of financial statements in accor@amdgth generally accepted accoun
principles, and that receipts and expenditureshef dompany are being made only in accordance withoasizations of management
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasanaslsurance regarding prevention or timely deteatfounauthorized acquisition, use
disposition of the company's assets that could hawaterial effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohwver financial reporting may not prevent or @ttemisstatements. Also, projections of
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods agexct to the risk that controls may become inadégjbecause of changes in conditions, ol
the degree of compliance with the policies or pdoces may deteriorate.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetaarferred to above present fairly, in all matespects, the financial position of Avnet, |
and subsidiaries as of June 29, 2013 and Juned3@, ,2and the results of their operations and tesh flows for each of the years in the thre:
year period endeJune 29, 2013 in conformity with U.S. generally accepted acamm principles. Also in our opinion, the relatadancia
statement schedule for each of the years in theetpear period ended June 29, 2018hen considered in relation to the basic conatdi
financial statements taken as a whole, presenty,fai all material respects, the information $etth therein. Furthermore, in our opini
Avnet, Inc. maintained, in all material respectfecive internal control over financial reportirgg of June 29, 2013based on the 19
criteria established in Internal Controllntegrated Framework issued by the Committee odnSpring Organizations of the Tread\
Commission.

/sl KPMG LLP

Phoenix, Arizona
August 9, 2013
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AVNET, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

ASSETS

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables, less allowances of $95,656 and $196r8%pectively (Note 3)
Inventories
Prepaid and other current assets

Total current assets
Property, plant and equipment, net (Note 5)
Goodwill (Notes 2 and 6)
Other assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

Current liabilities:
Borrowings due within one year (Notes 3 and 7)
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses and other (Note 8)

Total current liabilities
Long-term debt (Note 7)
Other long-term liabilities (Notes 9 and 10)

Total liabilities
Commitments and contingencies (Notes 11 and 13)
Shareholders’ equity (Notes 4, 12 and 14):

Common stock $1.00 par; authorized 300,000,00Ceshasued 137,127,000 shares and
142,586,000 shares, respectively

Additional paid-in capital

Retained earnings

Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) (Mpte

Treasury stock at cost, 38,238 shares and 37,8t2slrespectively
Total shareholders’ equity

Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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June 29, 2013

June 30, 2012

(Thousands, except share amounts)

$ 100934 $ 1,006,836
4,868,97: 4,607,32.
2,264,34. 2,388,64:

214,22 251,60
8,356,87 8,254,43
492,60 461,23
1,261,28 1,100,62
363,90 351,57
$ 1047468 $ 10,167,86
$ 838,19( $ 872,40
3,278,15; 3,230,76!
705,10: 695,48
4,821,44. 4,798,65:
1,206,99: 1,271,98
157,11 191,49°
6,185,55! 6,262,13.
137,12° 142,58
1,320,90. 1,263,81
2,802,96/ 2,545,85,
28,89t (45,837)
(764) (697)

4,289,12! 3,905,73;

$ 1047468 $ 10,167,86
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Sales
Cost of sales
Gross profit

AVNET, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Selling, general and administrative expenses
Restructuring, integration and other charges (N@je

Operating income
Other income (expense), net
Interest expense

Gain on bargain purchase and other (Note 2)

Income before income taxes
Income tax provision (Note 9)
Net income

Net earnings per share (Note 14):
Basic

Diluted

Shares used to compute earnings per share (Nate 14)

Basic
Diluted

Years Ended

June 29, 2013  June 30, 2012 July 2, 2011

(Thousands, except share amounts)

$ 2545892 $ 25,70752 $  26,534,41

22,479,12 22,656,96 23,426,60

2,979,80 3,050,55 3,107,80!

2,204,31 2,092,80 2,100,65!

149,50: 73,58t 77,17¢

625,98: 884,16! 929,97¢

(74) (5,442 10,72«

(107,65 (90,85¢) (92,45))

31,01: 2,91¢ 22,71¢

549,26! 790,78 870,96t

99,19: 223,76: 201,89

$ 450,07 $ 567,01¢ $ 669,06

$ 3.2¢ $ 3.8 % 4.3¢

$ 321 $ 3.7¢ % 4.3¢

137,95: 147,27¢ 152,48:

140,00: 149,55! 154,33°

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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AVNET, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Years Ended

June 29, 2013 June 30, 2012 July 2, 2011

(Thousands)
Net income $ 450,07 $ 567,01¢ $ 669,06
Other comprehensive income, net of tax:
Foreign currency translation adjustments 44,59 (370,41Y 329,88:
Pension liability adjustments $ 30,13 $ (52,62¢) $ 19,96¢
Total comprehensive income $ 524,80 $ 143,97¢  § 1,018,91

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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AVNET, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Years Ended June 29, 2013, June 30, 2012 and Jaly2011

Balance, July 3, 2010
Net income

Translation adjustments (Note 4)

Pension liability adjustment, net of tax of $12,{Rtes 4,10
and 15)

Stock option and incentive programs, including teslaax
benefits of $4,689

Balance, July 2, 2011
Net income

Translation adjustments (Note 4)

Pension liability adjustment, net of tax of $32,38btes 4,10
and 15)

Repurchase of common stock (Note 4)

Stock option and incentive programs, including teslaax
benefits of $4,442

Balance, June 30, 2012
Net income

Translation adjustments (Note 4)

Pension liability adjustment, net of tax of $19,{Bbtes 4,10
and 15)

Repurchases of common stock (Note 4)

Stock option and incentive programs, including teslaax
benefits of $4,110

Acquisition of non-controlling interest (Note 2)

Balance, June 29, 2013

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

Accumulated

Additional Other Total
Common Paid-In Retained Comprehensive Treasury Shareholders’
Stock Capital Earnings Income (Loss) Stock Equity
(Thousands)

151,87 1,206,13: $ 1,624,444 $ 27,36: $ 692 $ 3,009,11
— — 669,06 — — 669,06

— — — 329,88: — 329,88:

— — — 19,96¢ — 19,96¢

961 27,077 — — 3) 28,03t
152,83! 1,233,20 2,293,51 377,21 (695) 4,056,07!
— — 567,01¢ — — 567,01¢

— — — (370,41) — (370,41))

— — — (52,629 — (52,628
(11,27() — (314,67)) — — (325,94)
1,021 30,60¢ — — @) 31,627
142,58t 1,263,81 2,545,85: (45,837) (697) 3,905,73.
— — 450,07- — — 450,07.

— — — 44,59° — 44,591

— — — 30,13( — 30,13(
(6,620 (192,96 (199,58))
1,161 33,29: — — (67) 34,38t
— 23,79¢ — — — 23,79t
137,12 1,320,90. $ 2,802,961 $ 28,89F $ (7649 $ 4,289,12:
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AVNET, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income
Non-cash and other reconciling items:
Depreciation and amortization
Deferred income taxes (Note 9)
Stock-based compensation (Note 12)
Gain on bargain purchase and other (Note 2)
Other, net (Note 15)
Changes in (net of effects from businesses acquired
Receivables
Inventories
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses and other, net
Net cash flows provided by operating activities
Cash flows from financing activities:

(Repayments of) borrowings under accounts recedvadturitization
program, net (Note 3)

Issuance of notes in a public offering, net of &ste costs (Note 7)
Repayment of notes (Note 7)
(Repayments of) proceeds from bank debt, net (Mpte
(Repayments of) proceeds from other debt, net (Npte
Repurchases of common stock (Note 4)
Other, net (Note 12)
Net cash flows (used for) provided by financing\ates
Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchases of property, plant and equipment
Cash proceeds from sales of property, plant angptant
Acquisitions of operations and investments, netash acquired (Note 2)
Cash proceeds from divestiture activities (Note 2)
Net cash flows used for investing activities
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and casbatnts
Cash and cash equivalents:
— increase (decrease)
— at beginning of year

— at end of year

Additional cash flow information (Note 15)

Years Ended

June 29, 2013 June 30,2012  July 2, 2011
(Thousands)

$ 450,07 $ 567,01¢ $ 669,06
120,67t 101,33t 81,38¢
(10,019 11,78: 15,96¢
43,67 35,731 28,93:
(31,01) (2,919 (22,719
75,321 66,26 56,84¢
(94,209 72,26 (421,45)
225,66 133,17¢ (321,939
(78,83 (319,09 165,18!
(5,156 (136,85)) 26,80
696,19 528,71t 278,07!
(310,001 510,00( 160,00(
349,25¢ — —
— — (109,601

(179,86)) 86,82: 1,644
(1,080 (1,007% 7,23¢
(207,19)) (318,33) —
4,792 5,59( 3,93(
(344,08)) 283,07: 63,21:
(97,379 (128,65)) (148,70

3,01¢ 1,04¢ 10,62:
(262,301) (313,219 (690,99
3,61 — 19,10¢
(353,05/) (440,82) (809,97
3,41¢ (39,43) 51,91¢
2,47¢ 331,53 (416,769
1,006,86: 675,33 1,092,10:

$ 100934 $ 1,006,866 $ 675,33

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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AVNET, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Summary of significant accounting policies

Principles of consolidatior— The accompanying consolidated financial statememiside the accounts of the Company and all ¢
majority-owned and controlled subsidiaries. Aller@ompany accounts and transactions have beematieai.

Cash and cash equivalents The Company considers all highly liquid investmenith an original maturity of three months or lége
cash equivalents.

Inventories— Inventories, comprised principally of finishedagls, are stated at cost (first-in, first-out) orked, whichever is lower.

Investments— Investments in joint ventures and entities inehhihe Company has an ownership interest greaaer30%and exercise
control over the venture are consolidated in thmampanying consolidated financial statements. Bamirolling interests in the years prese
are not material and, as a result, are includetthéncaption “accrued expenses and otlierthe accompanying consolidated balance st
Investments in joint ventures and entities in whitol Company exercises significant influence butaomtrol are accounted for using the ec
method. The Company invests from time to time intuees in which the Company’s ownership interedess than 20%nd over which tt
Company does not exercise significant influencehdovestments are accounted for using the costadefThe fair values for investments
traded on a quoted exchange are estimated basadhghistorical performance of the ventures, thieturesforecasted financial performar
and management’s evaluation of the ventuvébility and business models. To the extent thekbealue of an investment exceeds its assi
fair value, the Company will record an appropriatpairment charge. Thus, the carrying value ofGeenpanys investments approximates
value.

Depreciation and amortization- Depreciation and amortization is generally preddor by the straighine method over the estima
useful lives of the assets. The estimated usef@slifor depreciation and amortization are typically follows: buildings — 30years
machinery, fixtures and equipment — 2 - 10 years] leasehold improvements — over the applicadteaining lease term or useful life
shorter .

Long-lived assets— Longdived assets are reviewed for impairment whenewen&s or changes in circumstances indicate the
carrying amount of the assets may not be recoweradsl impairment is recognized when the estimatediscounted cash flows expectet
result from the use of the asset and its eventspbdition is less than its carrying amount. An &nment is measured as the amount by w
an asses$ net book value exceeds its estimated fair valhe. Company continually evaluates the carrying &#and the remaining econor
useful life of all longhkved assets and will adjust the carrying value tedrelated depreciation and amortization peti@hd when appropriat

Goodwill — Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase mer the fair value of net assets acquired. Ahtasis for goodwi
impairment are performed by applying a fair-valeesdd test to Avnet's six reporting units, definsdeach of the threeegional businesse
which are the Americas, EMEA (Europe, Middle Eastl &frica), and Asia, within each of the Compangperating groups. The Comp.
conducts its periodic test for goodwill impairmemnually , on the first day of the fiscal fourthaaier. A twostep process is used to evali
goodwill for impairment. The first step is to deténe if there is an indication of impairment by queming the estimated fair value of e
reporting unit to its carrying value including eiig goodwill. Goodwill is considered impaired ife carrying value of a reporting unit exce
the estimated fair value. The second step, whicpeidormed only if there is an indication of impaént, determines the amount of
impairment by comparing the implied fair value bé treporting unit goodwill with its carrying value. To estimaterfaalue of each reportii
unit, the Company uses a combination of presentevaind market valuation techniques that utilizegelL 8 criteria under the fair val
measurement standards. The estimated fair valudd change in the future due to changes in mankétbaisiness conditions that could af
the assumptions and estimates used in these \@luatihniques.

Foreign currency translation— The assets and liabilities of foreign operations anslated into U.S. Dollars at the exchangesra
effect at the balance sheet date, with the relatedslation adjustments reported as a separate @onp of shareholdersquity ani
comprehensive income. Results of operations arslated using the average exchange rates prevdiiiogighout the period. Transacti
denominated in currencies other than the functianatency of the Avnet business unit that is pddythe transaction (primarily tra
receivables and payables) are translated at exehaatgs in effect at the balance sheet date or sptitement of the transaction. Gains
losses from such translation are recorded in tisaalated statements of operations as a compafiéather income (expense), netr fiscal
2013, 2012 and 2011, gains or losses on foraigrecy translation were not material.
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AVNET, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Conti nued)

Income taxes— The Company follows the asset and liability metlodcaccounting for income taxes. Deferred income dagets ar
liabilities are recognized for the estimated futtew impact of differences between the financiatesnent carrying amounts of assets
liabilities and their respective tax bases. Defireome tax assets and liabilities are measured) shacted tax rates in effect for the ye:
which those temporary differences are expectedteebovered or settled. The effect on deferrednrectax assets and liabilities of a chang
tax rates is recognized in earnings in the penodhich the new rate is enacted. Based upon histioaind projected levels of taxable ince
and analysis of other key factors, the Company reagrd a valuation allowance against its defereedatssets, as deemed necessary, tc
such assets at their estimated net realizable value

The Company establishes reserves for potentiafiguanable outcomes of positions taken on certainmatters. These reserves are b
on managemerg’assessment of whether a tax benefit is moreylikan not to be sustained upon examination byataRorities. There may
differences between the anticipated and actualoouts of these matters that may result in reverfaleserves or additional tax liabilities
excess of the reserved amounts. To the extentadjcistments are warranted, the Comparseffective tax rate may potentially fluctuate .
result. In accordance with the Company's accounpiolicy, accrued interest and penalties, if anjyatesl to unrecognized tax benefits
recorded as a component of income tax expense.

No provision for U.S. income taxes has been madeafiproximately $2.7 billionof cumulative unremitted earnings of fore
subsidiaries at June 29, 208cause those earnings are expected to be perrdyarsémiested outside the U.S. A hypothetical cltian of the
deferred tax liability, assuming those earningsewemitted, is not practicable.

Self-insurance— The Company is primarily self-insured for workKemsmpensation, medical, and general, product andnsaliile
liability costs; however, the Company also hasop-4$bss insurance policy in place to limit the C@np's exposure to individual and aggre(
claims made. Liabilities for these programs ar@rested based upon outstanding claims and clainmma&tstd to have been incurred but not
reported based upon historical loss experiences@ bstimates are subject to variability due to gharin trends of losses for outstanding cli
and incurred but not recorded claims, includingexl factors such as future inflation rates, béfefel changes and claim settlement patte

Revenue recognitior—Revenue from product sales is recognized when pengel evidence of an arrangement exists, delives
occurred or services have been rendered, the gédesis fixed or determinable and collectabilisyreasonably assured. Generally, these ci
are met upon shipment to customers. Most of the famyis product sales come from product Avnet purchases & supplier and holds
inventory. A portion of the Comparg/sales are shipments of product directly fronsifgpliers to its customers. In such circumstan&esel
negotiates the price with the customer, pays tipplger directly for the product shipped and beaedit risk of collecting payment from
customers. Furthermore, in such dsippment arrangements, Avnet bears responsibiityatcepting returns of product from the custc
even if Avnet, in turn, has a right to return theguct to the original supplier if the product isfective. Under these terms, the Company s
as the principal with the customer and, therefarepgnizes the sale and cost of sale of the prathat receiving notification from the supp
that the product has shipped.

In addition, the Company has more limited contraktelationships with certain of its customers angdpliers whereby Avnet assume:
agency relationship in the transaction. In suchrayements, the Company recognizes the fee assbaidteserving as an agent in sales witl
associated cost of sales.

Revenues from maintenance contracts are recogrataioly over the life of the contracts, generadlgging from one to three years.

Revenues are recorded net of discounts, rebatessdimdated returns. Provisions are made for dissoaind rebates, which are prima
volumebased, and are based on historical trends andipaiéd customer buying patterns. Provisions fourret are estimated based
historical sales returns, credit memo analysisahdr known factors.

Comprehensive income- Comprehensive income represents net income toydar adjusted for changes in shareholdegsity frorr
non-shareholder sources. Accumulated comprehemsbaene items typically include currency translatimnd the impact of the Companry’
pension liability adjustment, net of tax (see Née

Stock-based compensatieAaThe Company measures shagsed payments, including grants of employee stptibns, at fair value al
recognizes the associated expense in the conslidtatement of operations over the requisite semériod (see Note 12).
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AVNET, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Conti nued)

Concentration of credit risk— Financial instruments that potentially subject @@mpany to a concentration of credit risk prindig
consist of cash and cash equivalents and tradeuatceeceivable. The Company invests its exceds mamarily in overnight Eurodollar tin
deposits and institutional money market funds wgtfality financial institutions. To reduce crediskj management performs ongoing ci
evaluations of its customer§hancial condition and, in some instances, hasiobtl insurance coverage to reduce such risk. Tdrap@n
maintains reserves for potential credit losses hlastnot experienced any material losses relatedlieidual customers or groups of custon
in any particular industry or geographic area.

Fair value of financial instruments— The Company measures financial assets and liakiliéit fair value based upon exit pr
representing the amount that would be receivecherstle of an asset or paid to transfer a liabilityan orderly transaction between ma
participants. Accounting standards require inpgesduin valuation techniques for measuring fair gaa a recurring or norecurring basis
assigned to a hierarchical level as follows: LeVedre observable inputs that reflect quoted prfoesdentical assets or liabilities in act
markets. Level 2 are observable maiased inputs or unobservable inputs that are corabdd by market data and Level 3 are unobser
inputs that are not corroborated by market dathtraAhsfers between fair value hierarchy levelsramgnized by the Company at the en
each reporting period. During 2013, 2012, and 2@idre were no transfers of assets measured atdhie between the three levels of
value hierarchy. The carrying amounts of the Corgfmfinancial instruments, including cash and caslivedents, receivables and accol
payable approximate their fair values at June P93Xue to the short-term nature of these instrisnéxt June 29, 2013 and June 30, 2012
the Company had $2,089,000 and $337,405,0@8pectively, of cash equivalents which were méed based upon Level 1 criteria. See N
for further discussion of the fair value of the Gmany’s fixed rate longerm debt instruments and Note 10 for a discussfahe fair value ¢
the Company's Pension plan assets. Sedmgstmentsn this Note 1 for further discussion of the faalwe of the Compang’investments
unconsolidated entities.

Derivative financial instruments— Many of the Company’ subsidiaries, on occasion, purchase and sellptedh currencies other tt
their functional currencies. This subjects the Camypto the risks associated with fluctuations irefgn currency exchange rates. The Com
reduces this risk by utilizing natural hedging ¢etting receivables and payables) as well as tiogeoffsetting positions through the us:
derivative financial instruments, primarily forwafareign exchange contracts with maturities of ss sixty days. The Company continue
have exposure to foreign currency risks to the réxtieey are not hedged. The Company adjusts afigordenominated balances and
outstanding foreign exchange contracts to fair ravialue through the consolidated statements afatipas. Therefore, the market risk relz
to the foreign exchange contracts is offset byd@nges in valuation of the underlying items béirdged. The asset or liability represer
the fair value of foreign exchange contracts, bagezh Level 2 criteria under the fair value measwaets standards, is classified in the cap
“other current assets” or “accrued expenses anet §ths applicable, in the accompanying consolidatedrnza sheets and were not materie
addition, the Company did not have material gainlwsses related to the forward contracts whichracerded in “other income (expense), net
in the accompanying consolidated statements ofatipeis.

The Company has, from time to time, entered intibgledransactions that convert certain fixed rats tievariable rate debt. To the ext
the Company enters into such hedge transactionsetfair value hedges and the hedged debt aretedjts current market values throi
interest expense.

The Company generally does not hedge its investimeits foreign operations. The Company does nagéreimto derivative financi
instruments for trading or speculative purposesranditors the financial stability and credit stargibf its counterparties.

Accounts receivable securitizatier The Company has an accounts receivable securtizgtiogram whereby the Company may
receivables in securitization transactions andmedasubordinated interest and servicing rightthtse receivables. The securitization prog
is accounted for as an on-balance sheet finanbhogigh the securitization of accounts receivatde (dote 3).

Fiscal year— The Company operates on a “52/53 week” fiscat,y@hich ends on the Saturday closest to June B@ghal 2013 , 2012
and 2011 all contained 52 weeks. Unless othernaged, all references to “fiscal 2013 ” or any othgear” shall mean the Comparsyfisca
year.

Management estimates- The preparation of financial statements in confeymiwith U.S. generally accepted accounting prires
requires management to make estimates and assusphiat affect certain reported amounts of asseddiabilities, disclosure of continge
assets and liabilities at the date of the finamstialements and the reported amounts of revenuesxaenses during the reporting period. Ac
results could differ from those estimates.

Recently issued accounting pronouncementBl December 2011, the Financial Accounting Stansl&dard ("FASB") issued ASU N
2011-11, Disclosures about Offsetting Assets amdbilities, (“ASU 2011-11"). ASU 2011-11 requires amtity
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to disclose both gross information and net infofaratbout both instruments and transactions ebgibl offset in the statement of finan
position and instruments and transactions subgeentagreement similar to a master netting arraergénin January 2013, the FASB iss
ASU No. 2013-01, Scope Clarification of Disclosuadmut Offsetting Assets and Liabilities, ("ASU 30d1"), which was issued to limit t
scope of the new balance sheet offsetting disoboseguirements as prescribed by ASU 2011-11. ASI120 and ASU 201841 are effectiv
for annual reporting periods beginning on or afli@nuary 1, 2013, and interim periods within thaseual periods. Retrospective disclosul
required for all comparative periods presented. dtheption of ASU 2011-11 and ASU 2003-are not expected to have a material impa
the Company'’s consolidated financial statements.

In February 2013, the FASB issued ASU No. 2023-Comprehensive Income (Topic 220), Reportingmbunts Reclassified Out
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income, (“ASU 2023 ASU 201302 requires entities to report information abowdassifications ot
of accumulated other comprehensive income ("AO@NHJ changes in AOCI balances by component. Foifisignt items reclassified out
AOCI to net income in their entirety in the samparing period, reporting is required about theseffof the reclassifications on the respe«
line items in the statement where net income isqrted (either on the face of the statement whetrénnome is presented or in the notes)
items that are not reclassified to net income @irtantirety in the same reporting period (e.gngsen amounts that are included in inventor
cross reference to other disclosures is requiredeémotes. ASU 20182 is effective for annual periods and interim pdsi within those annt
periods beginning after December 15, 2012. This ASttb be applied prospectively and early adopt®permitted. The adoption of AS
2013-02 will not have a material impact on the Camys consolidated financial statements, as it onlyasgnts a modification of disclos
requirements within the financial statements.

In February 2013, the FASB issued ASU No. 20#3-Liabilities (Topic 405): Obligations Resultifigpm Joint and Several Liabili
Arrangements for Which the Total Amount of the @htion Is Fixed at the Reporting Date (“ASU 2013)}0ASU 201304 provides guidan:
for the recognition, measurement and disclosum@bdfations resulting from joint and several lidyilarrangements for which the total amc
of the obligation within the scope of this ASU isefd at the reporting date. The guidance requinesrdity to measure those obligations a:
sum of the amount the reporting entity agreed togathe basis of its arrangement among itelgligors as well as any additional amount
reporting entity expects to pay on behalf of itsobdigors. ASU 201334 also requires an entity to disclose the natak amount of thos
obligations. The amendments in this ASU are eféector reporting periods beginning after Decemidgr2013, with early adoption permitt
Retrospective application is required. The adoptbASU 201304 is not expected to have a material impact onChmpany's consolidat
financial statements.

In March 2013, the FASB issued Accounting Standddgslate No. 20185, Parent's Accounting for the Cumulative Tramsh
Adjustment upon Derecognition of Certain Subsidisror Groups of Assets within a Foreign Entity bao Investment in a Foreign En
("ASU No. 201305"), which clarifies preexisting guidance regagdthe treatment of cumulative translation adjustmevhen a parent eitt
sells a part or all of its investment in a foremgmtity. ASU No. 201335 is effective for fiscal years beginning aftercBmber 2014, and inter
and annual periods thereafter. The Company haswed the main provisions of ASU No. 20@3-and believes that adoption of this up
will not have a material impact on the Companyiaficial position or results of operations.

2. Acquisitions and divestitures
2013 Acquisitions

During fiscal 2013 , the Company acquired 12 bussire with aggregate annualized revenue of approsiyn®i1.18 billionfor a tota
consideration of $308,951,000 , which consistetheffollowing (in thousands):

Cash $ 297,48
Contingent consideration 11,467
Total $ 308,95:

The contingent consideration arrangements stipuleeCompany pay up to a maximum of approximatel®,$50,0000f additiona
consideration to the former shareholders of thesiaed businesses upon the achievement of certamtpg results. The Company estimi
the fair value of the contingent consideration gsam income approach which is based on signifiognits not observable in the market
thus represents a Level 3 measurement as define8@820. The Company adjusts the contingent censitbn periodically based on chan
to the inputs used in the income approach anddbe=tion of interest associated with the discoutitdality.
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Cash paid for acquisitions during fiscal 2013 wa§2,306,000 , net of cash acquired and holdbaekves.

The following table summarizes the estimated falugs of the assets acquired and liabilities asduath¢he respective acquisition d:
(in thousands):

Cash $ 29,27¢
Accounts receivable, net 226,74
Inventory 91,79
Other current assets 33,68¢
Property, plant and equipment 25,31
Other assets 47,29:

Total identifiable assets acquired 454,10:
Current liabilities (157,986
Long term debt (66,367
Other long term liabilities (45,640

Total liabilities assumed (269,99)

Net identifiable assets acquired 184,10¢
Goodwill 157,52:
Bargain purchase recognized (32,679

Net assets acquired $ 308,95!

The $157,521,000f goodwill was assigned to the Electronics Markgtand Technology Solutions reportable segmentiseramounts «
$62,039,000 and $95,482,0Q0respectively. The goodwill recognized is attrédale primarily to expected synergies and the asks
workforce of the acquired businesses. The amougbotiwill that is expected to be deductible forome tax purposes is not significant. '
Company periodically adjusts the value of goodwalireflect changes that occur as a result of aglests during the measurement pe
following the date of acquisition.

Included in "Other assets" in the above table 5 $83,000 of identifiable intangible assets (se&eM) related to customer relationships.

The Company acquired accounts receivable, whicle werorded at the estimated fair value amountsgekiery adjustments to acqui
amounts were not significant as book value appraséoh fair value due to the short nature of accovedgivables. The gross amoun
accounts receivable acquired was $228,980,000henfhir value recorded was $226,743,000 , whigxected to be collected.

The Company recognized restructuring and integnatftarges, and transaction and other costs assdeidth the 201Zcquisitions, all ¢
which were recognized in the consolidated staterokaperations and are described further in Note 17

Supplemental information on an unaudited pro folbasis, as if the acquisitions had been consumnzested July 3, 2011, is presentel
follows:

Pro Forma Results For Years

Ended
June 29, 2013 June 30, 2012
(Thousands)
Sales $ 25,771,00 $ 26,872,00
Net income $ 454,000 $ 587,00(

With respect to the businesses acquired durin@lfie813, the Company is unable to determine the amouméwdnue and earnings
each business subsequent to their respective @tmuidates as each business has been integratieampany entities and operations.
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Internix, Inc., a company publicly traded on thekfo Stock Exchange, was acquired in the first gquaof fiscal 2013 through a ten:
offer. After assessing the assets acquired anditied assumed, the consideration paid was beloakbvalue even though the price paid
share represented a premium to the trading levelsas time. During fiscal 2013, the Company redegd a total gain on bargain purch
related to Internix of $32,679,000 pre- and afterand $0.2%er share on a diluted basis (inclusive of adjustmeccurring subsequent to
acquisition date).

In addition to the acquisitions described aboveajndufiscal 2013, the Company acquired the remagimioncontrolling interest in
consolidated subsidiary for a purchase price thas ¥ess than its carrying value. The Company hfiscted the difference between
purchase price and the carrying value of the nartrotling interest as additional paid-capital in the accompanying consolidated statérol
shareholders' equity for fiscal 2013.

2012 Acquisitions

During fiscal 2012 , the Company acquired 11 bussee for total consideration of $413,585,00¢hich consisted of the following |
thousands):

Cash $ 390,41(
Contingent consideration 23,17¢
Total $ 413,58!

The contingent consideration arrangements stiputedeCompany pay up to a maximum of approximatdl@24$419,0000f additiona
consideration to the former shareholders of thesiaed businesses upon the achievement of certamtpg results. The Company estimi
the fair value of the contingent consideration gsam income approach which is based on signifiognits not observable in the market
thus represents a Level 3 measurement as defirk8@820. The Company adjusts the contingent censitbn periodically based on chan
to the inputs used in the income approach anddbestion of interest associated with the discoultitadlity. During fiscal 2013, the Compa
reversed an earodt liability related to a 2012 acquisition for whipayment is no longer expected to be incurredrandrded a charge
$11,172,000 that is included in "Restructuringegration and other charges" in the accompanyingal@tated statement of operations.

Cash paid for acquisitions during fiscal 2012 wa$3218,000 , net of cash acquired and holdbaekves.

The following table summarizes the estimated falugs of the assets acquired and liabilities asduah¢he respective acquisition d:
(in thousands):

Cash $ 75,01¢
Accounts receivable, net 132,19!
Inventory 59,46:
Other current assets 23,93¢
Property, plant and equipment 9,72¢
Other assets 104,36¢

Total identifiable assets acquired 404,70°
Current liabilities (230,74)
Other long term liabilities (2,489

Total liabilities assumed (233,23()

Net identifiable assets acquired 171,47
Goodwill 246,42"
Bargain purchase recognized (4,317

Net assets acquired $ 413,58!

The $246,425,000f goodwill was assigned to the Electronics Markgt@nd Technology Solutions reportable segmentséramounts «
$179,989,000 and $66,436,000espectively. The goodwill recognized is attrdle primarily to expected synergies and the askes
workforce of the acquired businesses. The amougboflwill that is expected to be deductible foroime
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tax purposes is not significant. The Company pécadty adjusts the value of goodwill to reflect dgges that occur as a result of adjustrr
during the measurement period following the dataagfuisition.

Included in "Other assets" in the above table 3,331,000 of identifiable intangible assets (se&eNy).

The Company acquired accounts receivable, whicle wecorded at the estimated fair value amountseliewy adjustments to acqui
amounts were not significant as book value apprai@a fair value due to the short nature of accouvedgivables. The gross amoun
accounts receivable acquired was $134,337,000henthir value recorded was $132,195,000 .

The Company recognized restructuring and integnatftarges, and transaction and other costs assdeidth the 201cquisitions, all ¢
which were recognized in the consolidated staterokaperations and are described further in Note 17

Supplemental information on an unaudited pro folbasis, as if the acquisitions had been consumnzested July 4, 2010, is presentel
follows:

Pro Forma Results For Years Ended
June 30, 2012 July 2, 2011

(Thousands)
Sales $ 26,052,00 $ 27,404,00
Net income $ 568,000 $ 700,30(

With respect to the businesses acquired duringlfi012, the Company is unable to determine the amouméwgnue and earnings
each business subsequent to their respective @@muidates as each business has been integratieCeampany entities and operations.

Unidux Electronic Limited, a Singapore publiclydesd company, was acquired in January 2012 throughder offer. After assessing
assets acquired and liabilities assumed, the ceratidn paid was below book value even though tlee paid per share represented a prer
to the trading levels at that time. Accordinglye tBompany recognized a gain on bargain purcha$d,8f.7,000 pre- and after tax a$@.0:
per share on a diluted basis.

2011 Acquisitions

The Bell Microproducts Inc. ("Bell") and Unidux, dn ("Unidux") acquisitions and purchase price aesadibed further below. T
remaining acquisitions completed during fiscal 2@0gre acquired for an aggregate purchase pricdd®4,$78,00thet of cash acquired. F
forma financial information is not presented fasctil 2011 as the Bell acquisition occurred on 8412010, which was three days after
beginning of the Company's fiscal 201&and the revenue and earnings of the remainingisitigns are not significant to the consolid:
results of operations of the Company.

The Company recognized restructuring and integnatftarges, and transaction and other costs assdeidéth the 201 hcquisitions, all ¢
which were recognized in the consolidated staterokaperations and are described further in Note 17

Unidux

Unidux, a Japanese publicly traded company, wasigthrough a tender offer. At the time of then@any's acquisition of Unidt
Unidux's shares were trading below its book valtlee Company offered a purchase price per shar&rhatux that was above the prevail
trading price thereby representing a premium tottie® recent trading levels. Even though the pwetmice was below book value, Uni
shareholders tendered their shares. As a resalCtimpany acquired Unidux net assets excluding ea$ti63,770,0000r a purchase price
$132,780,000 , net of cash acquired, and recograzgdin on bargain purchase of $30,990,000 pre-afted tax and $0.2per share on
diluted basis. Prior to recognizing the gain, tlepany reassessed the assets acquired and legbilisumed in the acquisition.

Bell

On July 6, 2010, the Company completed its acdoisibf Bell, a valueadded distributor of storage and server produatssatutions an
computer components products, providing integragind support services to OEMs, VARSs, system busléed end users in the U.S., Can
EMEA and Latin America. The consideration for thensaction totaled $255,691,000 , which consisfeg7d0in cash for each share of E
common stock outstanding, cash payment for Belitgguvards, and cash
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payments required under existing Bell change ofrobagreements, plus the assumption of $323,321008ell net debt. Of the debt acquir
the Company repaid approximately $209,651,000 bf @iacluding associated fees) immediately aftesitig.

Divestitures

During fiscal 2013, the Company divested a smatdlifess in TS Asia for which it recognized a los$bf667,000 pre-tax$1,704,00
after tax and $0.01 per share on a diluted basigshwas reflected in "Gain on bargain purchaseathdr."

Included in the cash flows from investing actiwtifor fiscal 2013 were proceeds of $3,613,00@t of cash divested, related to
divestiture that occurred during fiscal 2013 ane tlceipt of an earout payment associated with a divestiture compléteithe prior fisce
year, for which there was no gain or loss as tlhegeds were applied against the -out receivable that was established at the tinsats.

During fiscal 2012, the Company recognized a Idsk1¢399,000 pre-tax, $854,000 after tax and $@&xidiluted share included in "G
on bargain purchase and other" in the consolidatattments of operations related to a wiidgn of an investment in a small technol
company and the write-off of certain deferred ficiag costs associated with the early terminatioa ofedit facility.

During fiscal 2011, the Company completed the dittee of New ProSys Corp. (“ProSys”), a valagded reseller and provider of
infrastructure solutions. Avnet acquired ProSypas of the Bell acquisition. Total consideratiorluded a cash payment at closing, a sho
term receivable and a three-year earn-out based BpoSys'anticipated results. As a result of the divestituhe Company received c:
proceeds of $19,108,000 and wrote off goodwill aisged with the ProSys business. No gain or lossweorded as a result of the divestiture.

Also during fiscal 2011, the Company recognizedss lof $6,308,000 pre-tax, $3,857,000 after tax®th@2per share on a diluted be
included in “Gain on bargain purchase and otheldtegl to the write-down of prior investments in #svatechnology startyp companies (s
Note 5 for other amounts included“Gain on bargain purchase and other”).

3. Accounts receivable securitization

Pursuant to the Company's accounts receivableiseation program (the “Programtyith a group of financial institutions, as amenu
the Company may sell, on a revolving basis, an vided interest of up to $800,000,000 eligible U.S. receivables while retainin
subordinated interest in a portion of the receigablThe eligible receivables are sold through allydwmevned bankruptcyremote speci
purpose entity that is consolidated for financegparting purposes. Such eligible receivables atedimectly available to satisfy claims of -
Company’s creditors. Because financing under tregdm does not qualify as dffalance sheet financing, the receivables and celdéd
obligation remain on the Company’s consolidatechibad sheet as amounts are drawn on the ProgranPrbgeam has a one-ye@rm tha
expires at the end of August 201at which time it is expected to be renewed fosther year on comparable terms. The Program ca
certain covenants, all of which the Company wasampliance with as of June 29, 2013 . There we&)F®0,000n borrowings outstandit
under the Program at June 29, 2013 and $670,00&8@® June 30, 2012 . (See Note 7 for discusdiather short-term and longerm dek
outstanding). Interest on borrowings is calculatsithg a base rate or a commercial paper rate ppsead of 0.35% . The facility fee is 0.35%
Expenses associated with the Program, which werenaterial in the past three fiscal years, congdisfeprogram, facility and professional fi
recorded in "Selling, general and administrativeesses" in the accompanying consolidated stateroéoiserations.

4. Shareholders' equity
Accumulated comprehensive income (loss)

The following table illustrates the accumulatedanakes of comprehensive income (loss) items at 2an2013 , June 30, 2012anc
July 2, 2011 :

June 29, June 30, July 2,
2013 2012 2011
(Thousands)
Accumulated translation adjustments, net $ 135,39" $ 90,79¢ $ 461,21:
Accumulated pension liability adjustments, netrafdme taxes (106,501 (136,63() (84,00:)
Total $ 28,89 % (45,83) $ 377,21:
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Share repurchase program

In August 2012, the Company's Board of Directoreaded the Company's existing share repurchasegmmoigr authorize the repurch
of up to $750,000,0006f common stock in the open market or through pelyanegotiated transactions. The timing and aatuahber of shar:
purchased will depend on a variety of factors sastprice, corporate and regulatory requirements,pmavailing market conditions. Duri
fiscal 2013 , the Company repurchased 6,620,00@shander this program at an average market pfi&@ 15per share for a total cost
$199,585,00Q This amount differs from the cash used for repases of common stock on the consolidated stateoferdash flows to tt
extent repurchases at the end of the fourth quaftéscal 2012 were not settled until the firstagier of fiscal 2013 Repurchased shares w
retired. Since the beginning of the repurchasenaraghrough the end of fiscal 2013 , the Compary/reaurchased 17,890,080ares of stoc
at an aggregate cost of $525,525,000 , and $220@0G5emains available for future purchases urtteshare repurchase program.

5. Property, plant and equipment, net
Property, plant and equipment are recorded atasastonsist of the following:

June 29, 2013 June 30, 2012

(Thousands)

Land $ 24,83: $ 19,91:
Buildings 124,18t 102,39!
Machinery, fixtures and equipment 933,18t 865,19¢
Leasehold improvements 102,37¢ 92,13:
1,184,58 1,079,63

Less — accumulated depreciation and amortization (691,98() (618,409)
$ 492,60t $ 461,23

Depreciation and amortization expense related épgaty, plant and equipment was $88,303,000 , $B)0®0 and $57,516,000 fiscal
2013, 2012 and 2011 , respectively. In fiscal 2@h& Company recognized other charges of $1,96808-tax, $1,413,000 after tax ab@.0!
per share on a diluted basis primarily relatedrtanapairment of buildings in EMEA and recorded {@din on bargain purchase and othe
the accompanying consolidated statements of opesa{see Note 2 for other amounts included in “Gaifargain purchase and other”).

6. Goodwill and intangible assets

The following table presents the change in the gdlbdalances by reportable segment for fiscal y2at3. All of the accumulate
impairment was recognized in fiscal 2009.

Electronics Technology
Marketing Solutions Total
(Thousands)
Gross goodwill $ 1,590,41 $ 889,93t $ 2,480,35!
Accumulated impairment (1,045,11j) (334,629 (1,379,73)
Carrying value at June 30, 2012 $ 545,30¢ $ 555,31: $ 1,100,62
Additions 55,48t¢ 109,62 165,11:
Adjustments 7,18¢ (7,18 —
Write-down due to exit of business (5,409 — (5,409
Foreign currency translation (742) 1,704 962
Carrying value at June 29, 2013 $ 601,83( $ 659,45¢ $ 1,261,28
Gross goodwill $ 1,646,941 $ 994,08. $ 2,641,02.
Accumulated impairment (1,045,117 (334,629 (1,379,73)
Carrying value at June 29, 2013 $ 601,83(  $ 659,45t § 1,261,28
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The goodwill additions are a result of businessegimed during fiscal 2018&ee Note 2) and purchase accounting adjustmernsdt
year acquisitions that occurred during the purctmas® allocation period. The adjustment to gooHisila result of the transfer of a busir
unit from TS to EM. During fiscal 2013, the Compamgcorded a write-down of goodwill of $5,408,00G@sated with the exit of a non-
integrated business in the EM Americas region fhaincluded in "Restructuring, integration and otlexpenses” in the accompany
consolidated statement of operations.

The Company performs its annual goodwill impairmist on the first day of its fiscal fourth quarter addition, if and when events
circumstances change that would more likely thanreduce the fair value of any of its reportingtarbelow its carrying value, an interim
would be performed. Based upon the Company’s anmyzdirment tests performed for fiscal 2013 , 2@h® 2011 , there was mmpairmen
of goodwill in the respective fiscal years.

The following table presents the Company’s idealife intangible assets at June 29, 2013 and Jun2@@, respectively. The:
balances are included in "other assets" and hawaighted average life of 8 years.

June 29, 2013 June 30, 2012
Gross Gross

Carrying Accumulated Net Book Carrying Accumulated Net Book

Amount Amortization Value Amount Amortization Value

(Thousands)

Customer relationships $ 272,31 $ (107,63() $ 164,67¢ $ 248,100 $ (76,645 $ 171,46(
Customer lists 3,79t (2,310 1,48¢ 3,69( (1,279 2,411
Trade name 3,32( (480) 2,84( 3,82( (970 2,85(
Other 4,17 (96€) 3,211 5,052 (439 4,61¢
$ 283,60 $ (111,39) $ 172,21. $ 260,660 $ (79,32 $ 181,33

Intangible asset amortization expense was $32,803,&27,717,000 and $21,240,000 for fiscal 202812 and 201tespectively. Th
following table presents the estimated future aipatibn expense for the next five fiscal yearstfiousands):

Fiscal Year

2014 $ 35,56¢
2015 34,29
2016 28,64
2017 26,47¢
2018 15,27¢

7. External financing
Short-term debt consists of the following:

June 29, 2013 June 30, 2012

(Thousands)
Bank credit facilities $ 177,11t $ 201,39(
Borrowings under the accounts receivable secutiti@gprogram (see Note 3) 360,00( 670,00(
Current portion of long-term debt 299,95( —
Other debt due within one year 1,122 1,01
Short-term debt $ 838,19( $ 872,40

Bank credit facilities consist of various committaidd uncommitted lines of credit with financialtingions utilized primarily to suppc
the working capital requirements of foreign operasi. The weighted average interest rate on the baatht facilities was 4.3% and 6.18%6 the
end of fiscal 2013 and 2012 , respectively.
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See Note 3 for the discussion of the accountsvabks securitization program and associated borrgsvoutstanding.
Long-term debt consists of the following:

June 29, 2013 June 30, 2012

(Thousands)

5.875% Notes due March 15, 2014 $ — % 300,00(
6.00% Notes due September 1, 2015 250,00( 250,00(
6.625% Notes due September 15, 2016 300,00( 300,00(
5.875% Notes due June 15, 2020 300,00( 300,00(
4.875% Notes due December 1, 2022 350,00 —
Other long-term debt 9,57¢ 124,45t
Subtotal 1,209,57 1,274,45
Discount on notes (2,58¢€) (2,477
Long-term debt net of current portion $ 1,206,99: $ 1,271,98

In November 2012, the Company issued $350,000,0008Y5% Notes due December 1, 202Zhe Company received proceed:
$349,258,000 from the offering, net of discount @aid $2,275,000 in underwriting fees. The 4.87$6tes due 2022 rank equally in righ
payment with all existing and future senior unsedulebt and interest will be payable in cash semizally on June 1 and December 1.

The Company has a five-year $1.0 billisenior unsecured revolving credit facility (the 120Credit Facility") with a syndicate of ban
which expires in November 2018Jnder the 2012 Credit Facility, the Company malest from various interest rate options, currenea(
maturities. The 2012 Credit Facility contains certeovenants, all of which the Company was in cdaamgle with as of June 29, 2013\t
June 29, 2013, there were borrowings of $6,700,0@2r the 2012 Credit Facility included in “Otheng-term debt'in the preceding table.
addition, there were letters of credit aggrega®2g309,000ssued under the 2012 Credit Facility, which repnés a utilization of the 20
Credit Facility capacity but are not recorded ia ttonsolidated balance sheet as the letters oit @ednot debt. At June 30, 201¢here wer
borrowings of $110,072,000 outstanding under tHE220redit Facility included in “Other long-term déln the preceding table and there v
letters of credit aggregating $17,202,000 issued.

Aggregate debt maturities for fiscal 2014 througi& and thereafter are as follows (in thousands):

2014 $ 838,24(
2015 1,19:
2016 257,55:
2017 300,43:
2018 —
Thereafter 650,40(
Subtotal 2,047,81
Discount on notes (2,636
Total debt $ 2,045,18:

At June 29, 2013 , the carrying value and fair gadéi the Company’s debt was $2,045,183,000 and3$294,000 respectively. Fa
value was estimated primarily based upon quotedeharices for the Company's long-term notes.
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8. Accrued expenses and other
Accrued expenses and other consist of the following

June 29, 2013 June 30, 2012

(Thousands)
Payroll, commissions and related accruals $ 291,56. $ 279,45.
Income taxes (Note 9) 54,03¢ 85,02¢
Other® 359,50: 331,00«
$ 705,10 $ 695,48:

(1) Includes reserves related to restructuring, intémraand other charges (see Note 17). Amounts ptedein this caption we
individually not significant.

9. Income taxes

The components of the provision for income taxesiadicated in the table below. The tax provision deferred income taxes res
from temporary differences arising principally franventory valuation, accounts receivable valuatioet operating losses, certain accruals
depreciation, net of any changes to the valuatiomwance.

Years Ended
June 29, 2013 June 30, 2012 July 2, 2011

(Thousands)
Current:
Federal $ 17,21: % 94,237 $ 64,47¢
State and local 7,03¢ 19,46¢ 11,72¢
Foreign 84,96¢ 98,27¢ 109,73:
Total current taxes 109,21: 211,98: 185,93:
Deferred:
Federal 2,61¢ 6,89¢ 41,02¢
State and local 2,39( 75€ 5,27:
Foreign (15,02 4,12¢ (30,33¢)
Total deferred taxes (20,019 11,78: 15,96¢
Provision for income taxes $ 99,19: § 223,761 $ 201,89

The provision for income taxes noted above is cdegpuased upon the split of income before incomestdrom U.S. and forei
operations. U.S. income before income taxes wad ,$00,000 , $320,333,000 and $273,287,800 foreign income before income taxes
$375,265,000 , $470,449,000 and $597,679,000¢alf2013 , 2012 and 2011, respectively.
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Reconciliations of the federal statutory tax rat¢he effective tax rates are as follows:

Years Ended
June 29, 2013 June 30, 2012 July 2, 2011

Federal statutory rate 35.C% 35.C% 35.C%
State and local income taxes, net of federal benefi 11 1.8 1.k
Foreign tax rates, net of valuation allowances (7.2 (5.9 (5.9
Release of valuation allowance, net of U.S. taxeesp (as discussed below) (6.9 (2.9 (7.4
Change in contingency reserves 0.4 0.t 1.4
Tax audit settlements (6.0 (2.0 (0.9
Other, net 1.2 0.2 (1.6
Effective tax rate 18.1% 28.5 % 23.2%

Foreign tax rates generally consist of the impdc¢he difference between foreign and federal stajutates applied to foreign income
loss and also include the impact of valuation aloees against the Company's otherwise realizatdegfoloss carry-forwards.

Avnet's effective tax rate on income before incorages was 18.1% in fiscal 2013 as compared witleféattive tax rate of 28.3%n
fiscal 2012 . Included in the fiscal 2013 effectitax rate is a net tax benefit of $50,376,90&hich is comprised of (i) a tax benefit
$41,572,0000r the release of valuation allowance againstredetax assets that were determined to be re#dizpimarily related to a lec
entity in EMEA (discussed further below), (ii) rfavvorable audit settlements resulting in a beradf$33,182,00Q partially offset by (iii) a ta
provision of $24,378,000rimarily related to the establishment of a valoiatallowance against deferred tax assets that detsrmined to k
unrealizable during fiscal 2013 . The fiscal 20ffgéative tax rate is lower than the fiscal 204fective tax rate primarily due to a favore
impact from audit settlements and, to a lesserngéxge greater impact to the rate from the valuatitiowance released in fiscal 20{&
discussed further below) as compared with the amnmieased in fiscal 201&ue to the reduced level of income and mix of inedm the
current year. In fiscal 2012withholding tax related to legal entity reorgatian resulted in an increase to the rate that do¢®xist in th
current year.

During fiscal 2013 the Company had a partial valuation allowancersgaignificant tax assets related to a legaltgmi EMEA due tc
among several other factors, a history of lossethan entity. Since fiscal 2010, the entity hasrbe&periencing improved earnings, wt
required the partial release of the valuation adlnee to the extent the entity has projected taxableme. In each of fiscal 2013 and 2Q1he
Company determined a portion of the valuation afioee for this legal entity was no longer requireg do the expected continuatior
improved earnings in the foreseeable future andy assult, the Company's effective tax rate wastigely impacted (decreased) upon
release of the valuation allowance, net of the th$.expense. In fiscal 2013 and 2Q1tke valuation allowance released associated thig
EMEA legal entity was $27,055,000 and $22,127,0f8spectively, net of the U.S. tax expense astatiaith the release. The Company
continue to evaluate the need for a valuation alove against these tax assets and will adjustahmtion allowance as deemed approp
which, when adjusted, will result in an impact e teffective tax rate. Factors that are consideredich an evaluation include historic le!
of income, expectations and risk associated wittmases of future taxable income and ongoing prudenl feasible tax planning strateg
Excluding the benefit in both fiscal years relatedthe release of the tax valuation allowance assmt with the EMEA legal entity, t
effective tax rate for fiscal 2013 would have b@8rD% as compared with 31.1% for fiscal 2012 .

During fiscal 2013 the Company's effective tax rate was favorablyaoted primarily by the settlement of two auditstiiy U.S. Intern:
Revenue Service ("IRS") for the Company and an iaedwompany. As a result, the Company recognizex &enefit of $33,005,008 fiscal
2013.

Avnet'’s effective tax rate on income before incorages was 28.3% in fiscal 2012 as compared witleféactive tax rate of 23.2%
fiscal 2011 . As compared with fiscal 2011 , theeéil 201 2%ffective tax rate is higher than the fiscal 20fféative tax rate primarily due tc
lower amount of valuation allowance released indi012 as compared with the amount releaseddalf2011, and, to a lesser extent, a |
favorable impact from audit settlements and charigesxisting tax positions in fiscal 2012 as congglawith fiscal 2011. These favora
impacts were partially offset by withholding taxfigcal 2012.
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The significant components of deferred tax assedsliabilities, included primarily in “other assétsn the consolidated balance she
are as follows:

June 29, 2013 June 30, 2012

(Thousands)
Deferred tax assets:
Inventory valuation $ 19,50¢ $ 13,29¢
Accounts receivable valuation 27,18t 29,98
Federal, state and foreign tax loss carry-forwards 333,94( 304,41(
Various accrued liabilities and other 33,03: 88,79:
413,66! 436,48:
Less — valuation allowance (230,82) (244,09)
182,84« 192,39:
Deferred tax liabilities:
Depreciation and amortization of property, pland aquipment (50,469 (54,74%)
Net deferred tax assets $ 132,37 ' $ 137,64

The change in the valuation allowance from fis@l2to fiscal 2013 was a combination of (i) a restuction of $41,572,000rimarily
due to the previously mentioned release of valmatitbowance in EMEA, $31,867,008f which impacted the effective tax rate while
remainder was offset in deferred income taxes, (@pd net increase of $28,300,0@@marily related to additional valuation allowasci
newly acquired companies and companies with afyistblosses.

As of June 29, 2013, the Company had foreign petating loss carry-forwards of approximately $5,832,000 , of whicl$43,463,00
will expire during fiscal 2014 and 2015 , substaltjiall of which have full valuation allowances238,701,00thave expiration dates rang
from fiscal 2016 to 2033 and the remaining $904,668 have no expiration date. The carrying valuthefCompany’s net operating loss carry
forwards is dependent upon the Compangbility to generate sufficient future taxabledne in certain tax jurisdictions. In addition,
Company considers historic levels of income, exga@ms and risk associated with estimates of futaxable income and ongoing prudent
feasible tax planning strategies in assessing adkation allowance.

Accruals for unrecognized tax benefits are incluthethccrued expenses and other” and “other lomgp tiéabilities” on the consolidate
balance sheet. These contingency reserves relatgritous tax matters that result from uncertaintiethe application of complex income
regulations in the numerous jurisdictions in whible Company operates. The change to contingeneyvess during fiscal 2013 primarily
due to favorable non-cash audit settlements, whighincluded in the “reductions for tax positioaken in prior periodstaption in th
following table. As of June 29, 2013 , unrecognitax benefits were $123,930,000 , of which appretety $117,708,000 if recognizec
would favorably impact the effective tax rate ahd temaining balance would be substantially offsetaluation allowances. As dfine 3(
2012 , unrecognized tax benefits were $146,626,000 which approximately $126,933,0Q0if recognized, would favorably impact
effective tax rate, and the remaining balance wdnddsubstantially offset by valuation allowanceke Rccrual for unrecognized tax bent
included accrued interest expense and penalti§24079,000 and $24,664,000 , net of applicabke st benefit, as of the end of fis@dl1:
and 2012 , respectively.
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Reconciliations of the beginning and ending accbadénces for unrecognized tax benefits are asvisti

June 29, 2013 June 30, 2012

(Thousands)
Balance at beginning of year $ 146,62t $ 175,15:
Additions for tax positions taken in prior period@s;luding interest 11,73: 19,26:
Reductions for tax positions taken in prior periadsluding interest (33,776 (35,899
Additions for tax positions taken in current period 7,44t 8,17¢
Reductions related to cash settlements with taairthorities (9,069 (7,460
Reductions related to the lapse of statute of éitiuhs (2,817) (3,810
Additions (reductions) related to foreign curremi@nslation 3,77¢ (8,799
Balance at end of year $ 123,93 $ 146,62

The evaluation of income tax positions requires agg@ment to estimate the ability of the Companyugiasn its position and estimate
final benefit to the Company. To the extent thatsth estimates do not reflect the actual outcome #tmuld be an impact on the consolid
financial statements in the period in which theifims is settled, the statute of limitations expimenew information becomes available as
impact of these events are recognized in the pémiadich they occur. It is difficult to estimatiee period in which the amount of a tax posi
will change as settlement may include administeatiud legal proceedings whose timing the Compangatacontrol. The effects of settling
positions with tax authorities and statute expiragi may significantly impact the accrual for incotag contingencies. Within the next twe
months, management estimates that approximately882®00of tax contingencies will be settled primarily thgh agreement with the 1
authorities for tax positions related to valuatioatters and positions related to acquired entisesh matters are common to multinatis
companies. The expected cash payment related getliement of these contingencies is $16,303,000 .

The Company conducts business globally and consdgu#ées income tax returns in numerous jurisidins including those listed in t
following table. It is also routinely subject todiuin these and other countries. The Company idomger subject to audit in its ma
jurisdictions for periods prior to fiscal year 200&e years remaining subject to audit, by majasgliction, are as follows

Jurisdiction Fiscal Year

Belgium, Germany and United States (federal ane)sta 20102013
United Kingdom 20092013
Hong Kong 20072013
Singapore 200622013
Netherlands and Taiwan 20082013

10. Pension and retirement plans
Pension Plan

The Company’s noncontributory defined benefit pengplan (the “Plan”)covers substantially all domestic employees. Engxsyar
eligible to participate in the Plan following thiest year of service during which they worked atse1,00thours. The Plan provides defir
benefits pursuant to a cash balance feature whergdarticipant accumulates a benefit based upar@eptage of current salary, which va
with age, and interest credits. The Company uses 30 as the measurement date for determining greesipense and benefit obligations
each fiscal year. Not included in the tabulationd discussions that follow are pension plans ofagi@mont.S. subsidiaries and other sn
pension plans that are not material.

The following tables outline changes in benefitigdiions, plan assets and the funded status dPldne as of the end of fiscal 2048¢
2012 :
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June 29, June 30,
2013 2012
(Thousands)
Changes in benefit obligations:
Benefit obligations at beginning of year $ 375,15t $ 297,52
Service cost 36,92( 28,38(
Interest cost 14,65 14,92¢
Plan amendments — 3,36(
Actuarial (gain) loss (13,54% 48,62(
Benefits paid (21,309 (17,65¢)
Benefit obligations at end of year $ 391,88( % 375,15t
Change in plan assets:
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year $ 301,44¢ $ 324,75
Actual return on plan assets 45,22¢ (5,647
Benefits paid (21,309 (17,656
Contributions 40,00( —
Fair value of plan assets at end of year $ 365,370 % 301,44¢
Funded status of the plan recognized as a nonfaurability $ (26,507 $ (73,707
Amounts recognized in accumulated other comprekienscome:
Unrecognized net actuarial loss $ 173,06¢ $ 218,83
Unamortized prior service credit (7,627) (9,196
$ 165,44t $ 209,64:
Other changes in plan assets and benefit obligatiecognized in other comprehensive income:
Net actuarial (gain) loss $ (30,870 $ 81,20¢
Prior service cost — 3,36(
Amortization of net actuarial loss (14,899 (9,680
Amortization of prior service credit 1,57: 1,87¢
$ (44,199 $ 76,76

The Plan was amended effective June 1, 2012 tooweppre-retirement death benefits so that ther@iieement death benefits will
payable without regard to marital status, and Wwél based on 100%f the participant's vested cash account. The &serdn liability it
recognized as a prior service cost and amortizdtégan in fiscal year 2013.

Included in “accumulated other comprehensive incoatdune 29, 2013 is a pre-tax charge of $1730ENf net actuarial losses whi
have not yet been recognized in net periodic pensast, of which $12,686,006 expected to be recognized as a component gbereidic
benefit cost during fiscal 2014 . Also includedaipre-tax credit of $7,623,0@0 prior service credit which has not yet been ggiped in ne
periodic pension costs, of which $1,573,000 is etgtto be recognized as a component of net perfuetiefit costs during fiscal 2014 .

Weighted average assumptions used to calculatarédtpresent values of benefit obligations aréofsws:

2013 2012
Discount rate 4.50% 4.00%
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Weighted average assumptions used to determirtgenefit costs are as follows:

2013 2012
Discount rate 4.00% 5.25%
Expected return on plan assets 8.50% 8.50%

The Company bases its discount rate on a hypo#igtartfolio of bonds rated Aa by Moodylnvestor Services or AA by Standart
Poor's. The bonds selected for this determinatierbased upon the estimated amount and timingreices of the pension plan.

Components of net periodic pension costs durinda$iethree fiscal years are as follows:

Years Ended

June 29, June 30, July 2,
2013 2012 2011
(Thousands)

Service cost $ 36,92( $ 28,38( % 23,87«
Interest cost 14,65: 14,92¢ 13,91¢
Expected return on plan assets (27,90%) (26,939 (27,560)
Recognized net actuarial loss 14,89¢ 9,68( 8,93¢
Amortization of prior service credit (1,579 (1,875 (1,875
Net periodic pension cost $ 36,99¢ § 2417:  § 17,29

The Company made $40,000,000 of contributionssicafi 2013 and none in 2012 .

Benefit payments are expected to be paid to ppatits as follows for the next five fiscal years dhd aggregate for the five ye
thereafter (in thousands):

2014 $ 28,43¢
2015 23,80z
2016 27,31(
2017 30,62°
2018 34,44¢
2019 through 2023 240,71(

The Plan’s assets are held in trust and were adcas follows as of the June 30 measurement dafes¢al 2013 and 2012 :

2013 2012
Equity securities 75% 75%
Fixed income 24 24
Cash and cash equivalents 1 1

The general investment objectives of the Plan arenéximize returns through a diversified investmpnttfolio in order to eal
annualized returns that meet the long-term cosunding the Plars pension obligations while maintaining reasonatld prudent levels
risk. The target rate of return on Plan assetsiiseatly 8.5%, which represents the average rate of earningsoteg on the funds invested o
be invested to provide for the benefits includedhia benefit obligation. This assumption has beeterchined by combining expectati
regarding future rates of return for the investmaotfolio along with the historical and expectestidbution of investments by asset class
the historical rates of return for each of thosseaislasses. The mix of equity securities is tylyigdiversified to obtain a blend of domestic
international investments covering multiple indiestr The Plan assets do not include any matenasiments in Avnhet common stock. -
Plan’s investments in debt securities are alsorslified across both public and private fixed incoseeurities. The Compars/current targ
allocation for the investment portfolio is for etyusecurities, both domestic and internationatefaresent approximately 76% of the
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portfolio with a policy for minimum investment irgeity securities of 60% of the portfolio and a nmauim of 92%. The majority of th
remaining portfolio of investments is to be invesite fixed income securities.

FASB ASC 820, Fair Value Measurements and Disclsuestablishes a fair value hierarchy that prmst the inputs to valuati
techniques used to measure fair value. The hieyagfes the highest priority to unadjusted quotedgs in active markets for identical as
or liabilities (Level 1 measurements) and the laweority to unobservable inputs (Level 3 measugats). The three levels of the fair ve
hierarchy under FASB ASC 820 are described below:

Level 1: Inputs to the valuation methodology aradjnsted quoted prices for identical assets oilili@s in active markets.

Level 2: Inputs to the valuation methodology in@wylioted prices for similar assets and liabilitreactive markets, and inputs that
observable for the asset or liability, either dilyeor indirectly, for substantially the full terof the financial instrument.

Level 3: Inputs to the valuation methodology arehservable and significant to the fair value measant.

A financial instrument's level within the fair vahierarchy is based on the lowest level of anytirtpat is significant to the fair val
measurement.

The following table sets forth by level, within tfar value hierarchy, the Plan's investments iatvi@ue as of June 29, 2013 .

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
(Thousands)

Cash and cash equivalents $ 3,032 % — 3 — 3 3,032
Equities:

U.S. common stocks — 219,22! — 219,22!

International common stocks — 56,45¢ — 56,45¢
Fixed Income:

U.S. government agencies — 10,00 — 10,00¢

U.S. corporate bonds — 76,65¢ — 76,65¢
Total $ 3,03 $ 362,34. % — % 365,37:

The following table sets forth by level, within tFadr value hierarchy, the Plan's investments iataue as of June 30, 2012 .

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
(Thousands)

Cash and cash equivalents $ 3,04t % — 3 — $ 3,04t
Equities:

U.S. common stocks — 178,85 — 178,85

International common stocks — 46,89° — 46,89°
Fixed Income:

U.S. government agencies — 10,08} — 10,08°

U.S. corporate bonds — 62,56 — 62,56
Total $ 3,048 $ 298,40: $ — % 301,44¢

The Plans investments in equity and fixed income investraent stated at unit value, or the equivalent ofaseet value, which is
practical expedient for estimating the fair valoéshose investments. Each of these investmentshaagdeemed daily without notice and
no unfunded commitments as of June 29, 2013 .
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The fixed income investments provide a steady netvith medium volatility and assist with capitakpervation and income generat
The equity investments have higher expected vitlatihd return than the fixed income investments.
11. Operating leases

The Company leases many of its operating faciliiesl is also committed under lease agreementsrdosfortation and operati
equipment. Rent expense charged to operationsgithénlast three years is as follows:

Years Ended
June 29, 2013 June 30, 2012 July 2, 2011

(Thousands)
Buildings $ 86,88 $ 84,53, $ 78,37:
Equipment 7,20 8,09: 8,33:
$ 94,087 $ 92,62: $ 86,701

The aggregate future minimum operating lease comerits, principally for buildings, in fiscal 2014 dugh 2018nd thereafter (throu
2029), are as follows (in thousands):

2014 $ 86,10(
2015 58,16"
2016 41,90:
2107 29,08¢
2018 18,46¢
Thereafter 38,51«

Total $ 272,23t

The preceding table includes operating lease comenits that have been reserved for as part of tlep@oy’s restructuring activitie
(see Note 17).

12. Stock-based compensation plans

The Company measures all shaesed payments, including grants of employee stptikns, at fair value and recognizes related esg
in the consolidated statement of operations overdhrvice period (generally the vesting period)rilm fiscal 2013 , 2012 , 2011the
Company expensed $43,677,000 , $35,737,000 an@32800 , respectively, for all stock-based comptos awards.

Stock plan

At June 29, 2013 , the Company had 8,988,130 shdresmmon stock reserved for equity awards, whiohsisted of 2,579,18&r
options granted that have not yet been exercis®95588 available for future awards under plang@g@ed by shareholders, 2,980,565
stock incentive and performance shares granteddiutet vested, and 432,78Bares available for future award under the Compdfiyploye
Stock Purchase Plan ("ESPP").

Stock options

Option grants under the 2010 Plan have a contrblifiei®f ten years , vest 25% on each annivergdrihe grant date commencing wit
the first anniversary, and provide for a minimunemise price of 100%f fair market value at the date of grant. Comptosaexpens
associated with stock options during fiscal 202812 and 2011 was $3,989,000 , $3,147,000 and $8d0, respectively.

The fair value of options granted is estimated loa date of grant using the Bla8lcholes model based on the assumptions i
following table. The assumption for the expectedtes based on evaluations of historical and exqukfitture employee exercise behavior.
risk-free interest rate is based on the U.S. Treasteg & the date of grant with maturity dates apipnately equal to the expected term ai
grant date. The historical volatility of Avnet'sosk is used as the basis for the volatility assimnpt

61




Table of Contents

AVNET, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Conti nued)

Years Ended
June 29, 2013 June 30, 2012 July 2, 2011

Expected term (years) 6.0C 6.0C 6.0C
Risk-free interest rate 0.9% 1.2% 1.8%
Weighted average volatility 35.(% 33.7% 33.7%
Dividend yield — — —

The following is a summary of the changes in ouditag options for fiscal 2013 :

Weighted

Weighted Average

Average Remaining
Shares Exercise Price  Contractual Life
Outstanding at June 30, 2012 2,881,911 $ 23.7¢ 61 Months
Granted 416,12¢ $ 32.3¢ 110 Months
Exercised (708,42) $ 18.2¢ 12 Months
Forfeited or expired (10,43) $ 30.5( 40 Months
Outstanding at June 29, 2013 2,579,181 $ 26.6¢ 70 Months
Exercisable at June 29, 2013 1,634,890 g 25.31 53 Months

The weighted-average grant-date fair values ofkstgtions granted during fiscal 2013 , 2012 and12@&re $11.33 , $9.67 and $8.72
respectively.

At June 29, 2013 , the aggregate intrinsic valuallobutstanding stock option awards was $18,08940tl all exercisable stock optic
awards was $13,624,000 .

The following is a summary of the changes in noste@ stock options for the fiscal year ended J@neQ13 :

Weighted

Average

Grant-Date

Shares Fair Value
Non-vested stock options at June 30, 2012 887,29' $ 9.41
Granted 416,12 $ 11.3:%
Vested (359,13) $ 9.5¢
Forfeited —  $ —
Non-vested stock options at June 29, 2013 944,290 g 10.21

As of June 29, 2013, there was $2,534,000 of totebcognized compensation cost related tovested stock options, which is expet
to be recognized over a weighted-average perio2l dfyears. The total fair values of shares vestethd fiscal 2013 , 2012 and 20%dere
$3,424,000 , $3,599,000, $3,425,000 , respectively

Cash received from option exercises during fis€dl3, 2012 and 2011 totaled $2,053,000 , $2,405,@0@ $3,506,000respectively
The impact of these cash receipts is included ithé@ net” in financing activities in the accompangyconsolidated statements of cash flows.

Incentive shares

Delivery of incentive shares, and the associatedpemsation expense, is spread equally over a fiagperiod and is generally subjec
the employee’s continued employment by the CompAsyof June 29, 2013, 2,009,54Bares previously awarded have not yet been deth
Compensation expense associated with this program$&6,788,000 , $20,978,000 and $17,008,000 $oalfiyears 2013 , 2012 and 2011
respectively.
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The following is a summary of the changes in nostee incentive shares for the fiscal year ended 2802013 :

Weighted

Average

Grant-Date

Shares Fair Value
Non-vested incentive shares at June 30, 2012 1,749,51' $ 26.82
Granted 1,292,031 % 32.4:
Vested (900,70) $ 28.2¢
Forfeited (131,33) $ 28.6¢
Non-vested incentive shares at June 29, 2013 2,009,511 g 29.6:

As of June 29, 2013 , there was $47,413,000 of toteecognized compensation cost related to vested incentive shares, whicl
expected to be recognized over a weighted-averagedoof 2.9 years. The total fair values of skarested during fiscal 2013 , 2012 &l ]
were $25,439,000 , $19,516,000 , $15,916,000 ectisely.

Performance shares

Eligible employees, including Avnet’'s executiveiofirs, may receive a portion of their long-term iggbased incentive compensai
through the performance share program, which allimvshe award of shares of stock against perfowadrased criteria Performance Shs
Program”). The Performance Share Program proviolethé issuance to each grantee of a number oésludirAvnets common stock at the €
of a three-year period based upon the Commaaghievement of performance goals establishethdy"bmpensation Committee of the Bc
of Directors for each thregear period. The performance goals have recenihgisted of measures of economic profit and totaredfolde
return.

During fiscal 2013, 2012 and 2011 , the Compamytad 252,185 , 349,070 and 380,p@dformance shares, respectively, to be aw:
to participants in the Performance Share Progrdmhach 10,400cumulatively have been forfeited. The actual amadrgerformance shar
issued at the end of the thrgear period is determined based upon the levetbieaement of the defined performance goals andraage
from 0% to 200% of the initial award. During fis@013 , 2012 and 201,lthe Company recognized compensation expenseiatgsbuwvith thi
Performance Share Programs of $11,902,000 , $1@802nd $7,374,000 , respectively.

Outside director equity compensation

Non-employee directors are awarded shares eqadiixed dollar amount of Avnet common stock upoaitthe-election each year, as |
of their director compensation package. Directoay mlect to receive this compensation in the fofrboonmon stock or they may elect to di
their compensation to be paid in common stock ktter date. During fiscal 2013 , 2012 and 2Qldompensation cost associated with
outside director stock bonus plan was $999,0001,1%1000 , $1,050,000 , respectively.

Employee stock purchase plan

The Company has an ESPP under the terms of whigiblelemployees of the Company are offered optiongurchase shares of Av
common stock at a price equal to 98¥%the fair market value on the last day of eachthly offering period. The ESPP is not compens:
based on its terms.

The Company has a policy of repurchasing sharetheropen market to satisfy shares purchased uhdeE$SPP, and expects fut
repurchases during fiscal 2014 to be similar tortheber of shares repurchased during fiscal 20d8ed on current estimates of participz
in the program. During fiscal 2013 , 2012 and 20ftiere were 61,731 , 64,187 and 62,3R8res, respectively, of common stock issued 1
the ESPP program.

13. Commitments and contingencies
Bell

During fiscal 2011, the Company recognized a cogetim liability for potential unpaid import dutiessmciated with the acquisition
Bell. Prior to the acquisition of Bell by Avnet, &tams and Border Protection (“CBHjitiated a review of the importing process at @f
Bell's subsidiaries and identified compliance digincies. Subsequent to the acquisition of Bell by
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Avnet, CBP began a compliance audit. The Comparmryuated projected duties, interest and penaltias ghtentially may be imposed a
result of the audit and recognized a contingehilltg of $10,000,00Qvhich was recorded to goodwill in fiscal 2011. Degiag on the ultima
resolution of the matter with CBP, the Companynreatés that the range of the potential exposureceded with the liability may be up
$73,000,000 however, the Company believes the contingentlifplyecorded is a reasonable estimate of theillighbased upon the fac
currently available at this time.

Other

During fiscal 2012, the Company recorded $6,665,f@0Q() a legal claim associated with an acquiresibess for a potential roya
claim related to periods prior to acquisition byn&t and (ii) a legal claim associated with an ind#ication of a prior divested business.

From time to time, the Company may become a partprt otherwise involved in various lawsuits, clajrmvestigations and other le
proceedings arising in the ordinary course of catidg its business. While litigation is subjectibtierent uncertainties, management doe
anticipate that any ongoing matters will have aanat adverse effect on the Company’s financialditoon, liquidity or results of operations.

14. Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is computed based on eight®d average number of common shares outstaagidgexcludes any poten
dilution. Diluted earnings per share reflect potrdilution from the exercise or conversion of géites into common stock.

Years Ended
June 29,2013  June 30, 2012 July 2, 2011
(Thousands, except per share data)

Numerator:

Net income for basic and diluted earnings per share $ 450,07 $ 567,01¢ $ 669,06!
Denominator:

Weighted average common shares for basic earngmgshare 137,95: 147,27¢ 152,48:
Net effect of dilutive stock options and performarshare awards 2,052 2,27¢ 1,85¢
Weighted average common shares for diluted eariagshare 140,00: 149,55! 154,33
Basic earnings per share $ 3.2¢ $ 38t % 4.3¢
Diluted earnings per share $ 321 § 3.7¢ $ 4.3¢

Options to purchase 565,840 shares of the Compatgck for fiscal 2013 and 238,000 shares for Histal 2012 and 2011 were
excluded from the calculations of diluted earnipgs shares because the exercise price for thosmeptas above the average market prit
the Company’s stock during those periods. Inclusibrthese options in the diluted earnings per sleateulation would have had an anti
dilutive effect.

15. Additional cash flow information
Other non-cash and reconciling items consist ofdliewing:

Years Ended

June 29, June 30, July 2,
2013 2012 2011
(Thousands)
Provision for doubtful accounts $ 30,80 % 35,63 $ 39,25¢
Periodic pension costs (Note 10) 36,99 24,17: 17,29t
Other, net 7,532 6,45¢ 29¢
Total $ 75,327 % 66,26: $ 56,84¢
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Interest and income taxes paid during the lasethisars were as follows:

Years Ended

June 29, June 30, July 2,
2013 2012 2011
(Thousands)
Interest $ 106,73! $ 89,52¢ $ 91,94¢
Income taxes $ 141,19¢ $ 192,71 $ 158,37.

The Company includes bank overdrafts as part adwats payable on its consolidated balance shedtseflects changes in such balar
as part of cash flows from operating activitieténconsolidated statements of cash flows.

Non-cash activity during fiscal 2013 , 2012 and 2@icluded amounts recorded through comprehensiveniecand, therefore, are
included in the consolidated statement of cash dlokiscal 2013 included an adjustment to pensiahbiliiies (including norld.S. pensio
liabilities) of $49,192,000 , which was recorded ofrelated deferred tax benefit of $19,062,@d@ther comprehensive income (see Nol
and 10). Other non-cash activities included assudedd of $66,367,000 and assumed liabilities of34@P6,000as a result of the acquisitic
completed in fiscal 2018see Note 2), divestitures, and purchase accoumiiifigstments to prior year acquisitions that oairduring th
purchase price allocation period.

Fiscal 2012 included an adjustment to increase iperigbilities (including non-U.S. pension lialiiés) of $85,010,00@vhich wa:
recorded net of related deferred tax benefit of,$32,000 in other comprehensive income (see Notard410). Other nonash activitie
included assumed debt of $34,765,000 and assumtglties of $214,325,000 as a result of the adtjaiss completed in fiscal 201@ee Not
2).

Fiscal 2011 included an adjustment to increase ipengbilities (including non-U.S. pension liabiés) of $31,987,00@vhich wa:
recorded net of related deferred tax benefit of, 2,000 in other comprehensive income (see Notaad410). Other nonash activitie
included assumed debt of $420,259,000 and assuai®lities of $509,812,000 as a result of the asifjoins completed in fiscal 20 &ee Not
2).

16. Segment information

Electronics Marketing and Technology Solutions thee overall segments upon which management priynavihluates the operations
the Company and upon which management bases itatygedecisions. Therefore, the segment datafoliatvs reflects these two segments.

EM markets and sells semiconductors and intercdanpassive and electromechanical devices and enelepldbducts. EM markets ¢
sells its products and services to a diverse custdiase serving many emgarkets including automotive, communications, cotaphardwar
and peripheral, industrial and manufacturing, ma&ldéguipment, military and aerospace. EM also effar array of valuadded services tt
help customers evaluate, designand procure electronic components throughoutlifieeycle of their technology products and systs
including supplyehain management, engineering design, inventorlemeghment systems, connector and cable assemblsemiconduct
programming.

TS markets and sells mid- to higind servers, data storage, software, and the ssriégjuired to implement these products and sok
to the value-added reseller channel. TS also fecusethe worldwide original equipment manufacturé@EM”) market for computin
technology, system integrators and rfe@-OEMs that require embedded systems and soluitimwhsding engineering, product prototypi
integration and other value-added services.
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Years Ended

June 29, June 30, July 2,
2013 2012 2011
(Millions)
Sales:
Electronics Marketing $ 15,094.. $ 14,933.. $ 15,066..
Technology Solutions 10,364.! 10,774.. 11,468..
$ 25,458.¢ $ 25,707 % 26,534
Operating income (loss):
Electronics Marketing $ 624.C $ 751.¢ % 832.t
Technology Solutions 278. 319.: 286.1
Corporate (126.9 (112.9 (112.0
775.5 957.¢ 1,007.:
Restructuring, integration and other charges (N@je (149.9 (73.6€) (77.2)
$ 626.C $ 884.: $ 930.(
Assets:
Electronics Marketing $ 6,316.. $ 6,024.. $ 5,890.¢
Technology Solutions 3,838.¢ 3,738.! 3,765.:
Corporate 320.( 405.1 249t
$ 10,474 % 10,167.¢ $ 9,905.¢
Capital expenditures:
Electronics Marketing $ 241 % 58t % 69.¢
Technology Solutions 26.€ 41.3 57.4
Corporate 46.7 28.¢ 21.t
$ 974 $ 128.¢ $ 148.7
Depreciation & amortization expense:
Electronics Marketing $ 51.¢ $ 38¢ % 28.2
Technology Solutions 47.: 39.2 30.C
Corporate 21.€ 23.2 23.1
$ 120.7 % 101 % 81.
Sales, by geographic area, are as follows:
Americas®¥ $ 10,716.t % 11,499.: % 11,518.!
EMEA @ 7,277.¢ 7,408.¢ 8,393.:
Asia/Pacific® 7,464. 6,799.: 6,622.!
$ 25,458.¢ $ 25,707.! $ 26,534
Property, plant and equipment, net, by geograpigia:a
Americas® $ 283.C % 278f % 242k
EMEA ©® 177.¢ 150.¢ 150.¢
Asia/Pacific 31.7 31.¢€ 26.1
$ 492.¢ $ 4612 $ 419.2

(1) Includes sales in the United States of $9libbi, $10.0 billion and $10.0 billion for fisc&013 , 2012 and 201, Irespectivel

(2) Includes sales in Germany and the United Kamgcbf $2.8 billion and $1.2 billion , respectivefigr fiscal 2013. Includes sales
Germany and the United Kingdom of $2.6 billion &id4 billion , respectively, for fiscal 2012ncludes sales in Germany and the Ur
Kingdom of $3.1 billion and $1.7 billion , respely, for fiscal 2011 .

66




Table of Contents

AVNET, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Conti nued)

(3) Includes sales of $2.3 billion , $2.4 billiand $1.2 billionin Taiwan, China (including Hong Kong) and Singanaespectively, for fisc
2013 . Includes sales of $1.9 billion , $2.3 billiand $1.2 billionn Taiwan, China (including Hong Kong) and Singapaespectivel
for fiscal 2012 . Includes sales of $1.8 bhillio$2.4 billion and $1.2 billiorin Taiwan, China (including Hong Kong) and Singag
respectively, for fiscal 2011 .

(4) Includes property, plant and equipment, ne%2y3.4 million , $266.7 million and $231.3 milfian the United States for fiscal 2013
2012 and 2011 , respectively.

(5) Includes property, plant and equipment, nét$%2.7 million , $45.1 million , and $13.1 milliom Germany, Belgium and the Uni
Kingdom, respectively, for fiscal 2013 . Fiscal 20ibcludes property, plant and equipment, net, @9.6 million in Germany$26.<
million in Belgium and $17.3 million in the Unitdingdom. Fiscal 2011 includes property, plant agdipment, net, of $92.8 milliom
Germany, $23.4 million in Belgium and $16.4 millionthe United Kingdom.

The Company manages its business based upon thegtiogeesults of its two operating groups befastructuring, integration and otl
charges (see Note 17).

Listed in the table below are the major productgaties and the Company’s approximate sales of @adhg the past three fiscal years:

Years Ended

June 29, June 30, July 2,
2013 2012 2011
(Millions)

Semiconductors $ 13,720.¢ $ 13,461t $ 14,149..
Computer products 9,346.( 9,984.. 10,284.1
Connectors 687.¢ 667.t 1,041..
Passives, electromechanical and other 1,704.! 1,594.( 1,059.:
$ 25458.¢ $ 25,707.! $ 26,534.

17. Restructuring, integration and other charges
Fiscal 2013

During fiscal 2013, the Company initiated actioage¢duce costs in both operating groups in resptmserrent market conditions ¢
incurred acquisition and integration costs assediatith acquired businesses. As a result, the Coynpecurred restructuring, integration
other charges as presented in the following table.

Year Ended

June 29, 2013

(Thousands)
Restructuring charges $ 120,04t
Integration costs 35,74
Acquisition costs and adjustments (3,229
Reversal of excess prior year restructuring reserve (3,065
Pre-tax restructuring, integration and other charge $ 149,50:
After tax restructuring, integration and other cfes $ 116,38:
Restructuring, integration and other charges pareshn a diluted basis $ 0.8t
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The activity related to the restructuring chargesuired during fiscal 2013 is presented in theofeihg table:

Severance Facility
Reserves Exit Costs Other Total
(Thousands)

Fiscal 2013 pre-tax charges $ 73,337 % 34,370 % 12,33¢ $ 120,04¢
Cash payments (47,930 (3,42)) (2,11¢) (53,467
Non-cash write-downs — (24,550 (9,76%) (24,31%)
Other, principally foreign currency translation (159) (197 (87 (431)

Balance at June 29, 2013 $ 25,25¢ $ 16,21: $ 37C $ 41,83t

Severance charges recorded in fiscal 2013 relatabet reduction of over 1,608mployees in sales and business support functi
connection with the cost reduction actions takealirthree regions in both operating groups wittplaypee reductions of 1,100 in EM, 400
TS and 150 in business support functions. Faalky costs for vacated facilities related to 32lfaes in the Americas, 26 in EMEA and 11
the Asia region and consisted of reserves for remgilease liabilities and the writlewn of fixed assets. Other restructuring chargésste
primarily to other onerous lease obligations theatehno ongoing benefit to the Company as well lassof $6,634,000ecognized in the thi
quarter of fiscal 2013 from the write-down of thet assets and goodwill associated with the plaexédf a nonintegrated business in the |
Americas region that occurred in the fourth quadkfiscal 2013. Of the $120,048,000 feex- restructuring charges recorded during f
2013, $68,873,000 related to EM, $47,965,000 rélate TS and $3,209,000 related to business sugpodtions. As of June 29, 2013
management expects the majority of the remainingra@ce reserves to be utilized by the end of IfiB6a5, facility exit cost reserves to
utilized by the end of fiscal 2018 , and other ¢outilized by 2014 .

Integration costs incurred related to the integratf acquired businesses and incremental costsratt as part of the consolidation
closure of certain office and warehouse locatidngegration costs included IT consulting costs $gstem integration assistance, fac
moving costs, legal fees, and travel, meeting, etar§ and communication costs that were incrembnitaturred as a result of the integral
activity. Also included in integration costs arefiemental salary costs associated with the coreaia and closure activities as well as ¢
associated with acquisition activity, primarily at#d to the acquired businesses' personnel who neti@ed by Avnet following the close
the acquisitions solely to assist in the integratid the acquired businesses' IT systems and astmgtive and logistics operations into thos
Avnet. These identified personnel have no othernimggdul day-today operational responsibilities outside of thegnation effort. Included
integration costs during the third quarter of fls2@13 is a loss of $8,789,000 related to the eikitvo multi-employer pension plans associ:
with acquired entities in Japan.

Acquisition costs incurred during fiscal 20t&ated primarily to professional fees for advisesrvices and legal and accounting
diligence procedures and other legal costs assakiith acquisitions.

During fiscal 2013 the Company recorded credits to restructuringggration and other charges related to the revefsadstructurin
reserves established in prior years that were dédmée no longer required. Included in acquisitietated costs is a credit 611,172,00
related to the reversal of an earn-out liability didhich payment is no longer expected to be inclirre
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Fiscal 2012

During fiscal 2012, the Company incurred chargésted primarily to the acquisition and integratiactivities associated with acqui
businesses (see Note 2) and also recorded creldited to prior restructuring reserves and acdgoisddjustments.

Year Ended

June 30, 2012

(Thousands)
Restructuring charges $ 50,25:
Integration costs 9,39
Acquisition costs 10,56:
Reversal of excess prior year restructuring reserve (3,286
Prior year acquisition adjustments 6,66¢
Pre-tax restructuring, integration and other charge $ 73,58¢
After tax restructuring, integration and other cfesr $ 52,96
Restructuring, integration and other charges paresan a diluted basis $ 0.3t

The fiscal 2013 activity related to the remainiegtructuring reserves from fiscal 2012 is presemteide following table:
Severance Facility
Reserves Exit Costs Other Total
(Thousands)

Balance at June 30, 2012 $ 9,74¢ $ 4,54¢ % 1,347 $ 15,63’
Cash payments (7,899 (2,49 (939) (11,339
Adjustments (2,099 (1,019 (159) (2,267)
Other, principally foreign currency translation 18: 14 33 23C
Balance at June 29, 2013 $ 93 $ 1,044 $ 28t $ 2,271

Severance charges recorded in fiscal 2012 relateddr 800employees in sales, administrative and financetfons in connection wit
the cost reduction actions taken in all three negiim both operating groups with employee redustiohapproximately 480 in EM and 320
TS. Facility exit costs for vacated facilities tteld to 12 facilities in the Americas, 5 in EMEA ah8in the Asia/Pac region and consiste
reserves for remaining lease liabilities and thgeadown of leasehold improvements and other fixedtas§#her restructuring charges rel:
primarily to other onerous lease obligations thatehno ongoing benefit to the Company. Of the &R @00 pretax restructuring charg
recorded during fiscal 2012, $27,537,000 relate@&Nb and $22,716,00€elated to TS and the remaining related to corpocharges. As
June 29, 2013 , management expects the majorityeafemaining severance reserves to be utilizetthéend of fiscal 2016nd the remainir
facility exit cost and other reserves to be utidizyy the end of fiscal 2014 .

Integration costs incurred related to the integratif acquired businesses and incremental costsratt as part of the consolidation
closure of certain office and warehouse locatidngegration costs included IT consulting costs $gstem integration assistance, fac
moving costs, legal fees, and travel, meeting, etar§ and communication costs that were incrembnitaturred as a result of the integral
activity. Also included in integration costs arefiemental salary costs associated with the coreaia and closure activities as well as ¢
associated with acquisition activity, primarily at#d to the acquired businesses' personnel who netri@ed by Avnet following the close
the acquisitions solely to assist in the integratid the acquired businesses' IT systems and astmgtive and logistics operations into thos
Avnet. These identified personnel have no othemimgdul day-to-day operational responsibilitiesdé of the integration effort.

Acquisition transaction costs incurred during flse@12 related primarily to professional fees falvisory services and legal ¢
accounting due diligence procedures and other lemgts associated with acquisitions.

During fiscal 2012, the Company recorded creditsestructuring, integration and other charges edldab the reversal of restructur
reserves established in prior years that were déémlee no longer required.
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In addition, the Company recorded $6,665,800(i) a legal claim associated with an acquiresgibess and a potential royalty cli
related to periods prior to acquisition by Avnet i) a legal claim associated with an indemnifica of a prior divested business.

Fiscal 2011

During fiscal 2011, the Company incurred chargéated primarily to the acquisition and integratiactivities associated with acqui
businesses (see Note 2) and also recorded creldited to prior restructuring reserves and acdoisadjustments.

Year Ended

July 2, 2011

(Thousands)
Restructuring charges $ 47,76:
Integration costs 25,06¢
Acquisition costs 15,597
Reversal of excess prior year restructuring reserve (6,076
Prior year acquisition adjustments (5,17¢)
Pre-tax restructuring, integration and other charge $ 77,17¢
After tax restructuring, integration and other cfes $ 56,16¢
Restructuring, integration and other charges paresbn a diluted basis $ 0.3¢

Severance charges recorded in fiscal 2011 relatgubtsonnel reductions of over 5Bfhployees in administrative, finance and ¢
functions primarily in connection with the integoat of the acquired Bell business into the existidd Americas, TS Americas and TS EM
regions and, to a lesser extent, other cost restuctctions. Facility exit costs consisted of lebakilities, fixed asset writelowns and oth
related charges associated with 50 vacated fasilii3 in the Americas, 25 in EMEA and 2 in theafi8ac region.

Integration costs incurred related to the integratif acquired businesses and incremental costsrat as part of the consolidation
closure of certain office and warehouse locatidngegration costs included IT consulting costs $gstem integration assistance, fac
moving costs, legal fees, travel, meeting, marietind communication costs that were incrementalyiired as a result of the integra
activity. Also included in integration costs arer@mental salary costs associated with the coregaiid and closure activities as well as c
associated with acquisition activity, primarily agdd to the acquired businesses' personnel who neti@ed by Avnet following the close
the acquisitions solely to assist in the integratid the acquired businesses' IT systems and asimaitive and logistics operations into thos
Avnet. These identified personnel have no othermimedul day-to-day operational responsibilitiessidé of the integration effort.

Acquisition costs incurred during fiscal 2011 rethiprimarily to professional fees for advisory dmdker services, legal and accoun
due diligence, and other legal costs associatdd tiwit acquisition.

During fiscal 2011, the Company recorded crediteeiructuring, integration and other charges eelab (i) the reversal of restructur
reserves established in prior years that were déemée no longer required, (ii) acquisition adjoshts for which the purchase alloca
period had closed and (iii) exit-related reservégimally established through goodwill in prior yeahat were deemed no longer required.
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Fiscal 2011 and prior reserve activity

In addition to the fiscal 2011 restructuring adsiythe Company incurred restructuring charges upder restructuring plans. The fis

2013 activity related to the remaining reserveseaased with these restructuring actions is pressbint the following table:

Severance Facility
Reserves Exit Costs Other Total
(Thousands)

Balance at June 30, 2012 $ 44 $ 4971 $ 90t $ 6,32¢
Cash payments (13¢) (2,79) (120 (3,049
Adjustments (15¢) (61€) (117 (891)
Other, principally foreign currency translation 2C 12 Q) 31

Balance at June 29, 2013 $ 167§ 1582 § 667 $ 2,41¢

As of June 29, 2013management expects the majority of the remaisigrance and other reserves to be utilized benieof fisce

2020 and the remaining facility exit cost resernebe utilized by the end of fiscal 2016 .

18. Summary of quarterly results (unaudited):

First Second Third Fourth
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Year(a)
(Millions, except per share amounts)
(b) 2013
Sales $ 5870.. $ 6,699.f % 6,298." $ 6,590." $ 25,459.
Gross profit 684.< 768.t 756.( 770.¢ 2,979.¢
Net income 100.: 137.t 86.2 126.] 450.]
Diluted earnings per share 0.7¢C 0.9¢ 0.62 0.91 3.21
(c) 2012
Sales $ 6,426.( $ 6,693.¢ $ 6,280.f $ 6,307.c $ 25,707.!
Gross profit 753.¢ 784.1 753.¢ 759.( 3,050.!
Net income 139.( 147.C 147.¢ 133.¢ 567.(
Diluted earnings per share 0.9C 0.9¢ 1.0C 0.91 3.7¢
(&) Quarters may not add to the year due to roun

(b)

First quarter of fiscal 2013, results were amjed by restructuring, integration and other chsargf $37.4 million pre-tax$27.1 millior
after tax and $0.1per share on a diluted basis. The charges consi$teelverance, facility exit costs, integrationtsptransaction cos
other restructuring charges, and a credit to agijtist year restructuring reserves. The Companggrized a gain on bargain purchas
$31.3 million pre- and after tax and $0.@2r share on a diluted basis related to the admuisof Internix, Inc., and an income
adjustment of $12.2 millioprimarily related to a favorable settlement of aoome tax audit. Second quarter results were irepaloy
restructuring, integration and other charges of. $2dillion pre-tax, $19.9 million after tax and $8.per share on a diluted basis.
charges consisted of severance, facility exit ciistsl asset writadowns, integration costs, transaction costs, atharges, and a rever
to adjust prior year restructuring reserves. Thengany recorded a net gain of $0.1 million pasd after tax share consisting of
adjustment of $1.7 million prand after tax to increase the gain on bargain @sehecorded in the first quarter of 2013 offsealigss o
a divestiture related to a small business in TSaAshe Company also recorded an income tax adjumstofeb17.4 millionrelated to
favorable audit settlement of a U.S. income taxitafodt an acquired company. Third quarter resulesravimpacted by restructuril
integration and other charges of $27.3 million fave-$25.8 million after tax and $0.p&r share on a diluted basis. The charges con
of severance, facility exit costs, integration spdransaction costs, other restructuring charges, a credit to adjust prior i
restructuring reserves. The Company recorded adb$8.8 million in integration-related costs duethe exit of two multemploye
pension plans associated with acquired entitiekapan, a credit of $11.2 million in acquisition ides related to the reversal of an eart
out liability, and $6.6 million in other chargedated to the write-
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down of the net assets and goodwill associated thighplanned exit of a ndntegrated business in the EM Americas region.
Company also recorded an income tax adjustmentl8f4$million primarily related to the increase to a valuatiolovadnce again
existing deferred tax assets and increases toeserves. Fourth quarter results were impacted $tyueturing, integration and ott
charges of $59.8 million pre-tax, $43.6 millioneaftax and $0.3per share on a diluted basis. These charges irtlseleerance, facili
exit costs, integration costs, transaction cogteraestructuring charges and other charges cetatéegal claims. The Company recor
a small adjustment to the gain on bargain purchekged to the business in Japan acquired in tind tjuarter. The Company a
recorded a net tax benefit of $34.2 million , whisttomprised of (i) a tax benefit of $41.6 millitor the release of valuation allowan
against deferred tax assets that were determinbd tealizable during the fourth quarter of fise@l3, (ii) a tax benefit 0$6.7 millior
related to the release of existing reserves duautht settlement and statute expiration, partiaffiget by (iii) a tax provision 0$14.1
million primarily related to the establishment of tax reesragainst deferred tax assets that were detedrtonige unrealizable during 1
fourth quarter of fiscal 2013.

Second quarter of fiscal 2012 included restnieg, integration and other charges of $34.5ianillpre-tax, $23.6 milliorafter tax an
$0.16 per share on a diluted basis. The charges considtegtverance, facility exit costs, integration tspdransaction costs, otl
restructuring charges, and a credit to adjust panr restructuring reserves. The Company alsadedd$l1.4 million pre-tax$0.9 millior
after tax and $0.01 per share on a diluted bakitexbto the write-down of a small investment amelwriteoff of deferred financing cos
associated with the early retirement of a creditlifg, and an income tax adjustment of $0.5 milljgrimarily related to the combinati
of a favorable audit settlement and release oflaatian allowance on certain deferred tax assefstwivere determined to be realiza
mostly offset by changes to existing tax positigmsnarily for transfer pricing. Third quarter resulwere impacted by restructuri
integration and other charges of $18.6 million fave-$13.7 million after tax and $0.p@r share on a diluted basis. The charges con
of severance, facility exit costs, fixed asset ewibwns, integration costs, transaction costs, otharges, and a reversal to adjust |
year restructuring reserves. The Company also reézed a gain on bargain purchase$4.5 million pre- and after tax and $0,08r shar
on a diluted basis related to the acquisition ofdur Electronics Limited (Singapore), and an incaoe adjustment of $5.2 millioanc
$0.04 per share on a diluted basis related primarilyh® ¢ombination of favorable audit settlements,aierteserve releases and
release of a valuation allowance on deferred taetaswhich were determined to be realizable. Fogutirter results were impacted
restructuring, integration and other charges of.%2fillion pre-tax, $15.7 million after tax and $@.per share on a diluted basis. Tt
charges included severance, facility exit cost®gration costs, transaction costs, other restrimgficharges and other charges relate
legal claims. During the fourth quarter, the Compeetognized a small adjustment to the gain ondiargurchase related to the busit
in Japan acquired in the third quarter; and aaebenefit of $4.0 million and $0.Q¢%r share on a diluted basis which is compris€d @
tax benefit of $26.3 millioffior the release of tax reserves against deferreddsets that were determined to be realizableglthie fourt!
quarter of fiscal 2012, partially offset by (ii)tax provision of $22.3 millioprimarily related to the impact of withholding teslated ti
legal entity reorganizations and the establishroéitdix reserves against deferred tax assets that determined to be unrealizable du
the fourth quarter of fiscal 2012.
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Column A Column B Column C Column D Column E
Additions
Charged to
Balance at Charged to Other Balance at
Beginning of Costs and Accounts — Deductions — End of
Description Period Expenses Describe Describe Period
(Thousands)
Fiscal 2013
Allowance for doubtful accounts $ 106,31¢ $ 30,80: $ — $ (41,465 (@) $  95,65¢
Valuation allowance on foreign tax
loss carry-forwards (Note 9) 244,09: (41,577) (b) 28,30( (c) — 230,82:
Fiscal 2012
Allowance for doubtful accounts 107,73¢ 35,63: — (37,057 (a) 106,31
Valuation allowance on foreign tax
loss carry-forwards (Note 9) 310,77 (30,785 (d) (35,899 (e) — 244,09:
Fiscal 2011
Allowance for doubtful accounts 81,19% 39,25¢ — 12,719 (a) 107,73¢
Valuation allowance on foreign tax
loss carry-forwards (Note 9) 331,42 (76,05%) 55,40 (f) — 310,77

(@)
(b)

(©)
(d)

()
(f)

Uncollectible accounts written ¢

Represents a reduction primarily due to thease of valuation allowance in EMEA, of which $837,000impacted the effective tax ri
offset by $4,812,000 , which impacted deferred seagsociated with the release of the valuatiomaltce (see Note 9).

Primarily related to additional valuation allowasder newly acquired companies and companies witistary of losse

Represents a reduction primarily due to thease of valuation allowance in EMEA, of which $8#1,000impacted the effective tax ri
offset by $4,554,000 , which impacted deferred $ea®sociated with the release of the valuatiomalhze.

Primarily relates to the translation impact of ofpasin foreign currency exchange rates and acquathtion allowance

Includes the impact of deferred tax rate chandestranslation impact of changes in foreign curyeexchange rates and the increas
valuation allowance against associated deferreémefits as it was determined the related opeydtr loss carrferward cannot k
utilized.
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Exhibit

Restated Certificate of Incorporation of the Compéncorporated herein by reference to the Compa@yirrent Repo
on Form 8-K dated February 12, 2001, Exhibit 3(i)).

Bylaws of the Company, effective August 11, 2011 ¢iporated herein by reference to the Company'se@tiRRepor
on Form 8-K dated August 16, 2011 Exhibit 3.1).

Indenture dated as of March 5, 2004, bylstdeen the Company and JP Morgan Trust Compaatyoiial Association
(incorporated herein by reference to the Compa@yigent Report on Form 8-K dated March 8, 2004,ilkk#.1).

Officers' Certificate dated August 19, 2005, esshihg the terms of the 6.00% Notes due 2015 (pa@ted herein Lk
reference to the Company's Current Report on FeKrdated August 19, 2005, Exhibit 4.2).

Officers' Certificate dated September IB& establishing the terms of the 6.625% Notes2d® (incorporated herein
by reference to the Company's Current Report omRK dated September 12, 2006, Exhibit 4.2).

Officers’ Certificate dated March 7, 20@%tablishing the terms of the 5 7/8% Notes due Zbibbrporated herein by
reference to the Company’s Current Report on Fond@ted March 7, 2007, Exhibit 4.2).

Indenture dated as of June 22, 2010, bettreeCompany and Wells Fargo Bank, National Asg@si, as Trustee,
providing for the issuance of Debt Securities ie @n more series (incorporated herein by referémtiee Company’s
Current Report on Form 8-K dated June 22, 2010ijkibdh.1).

Officers’ Certificate establishing the terof the 5.875% Notes due 2020 (incorporated hdrgeference to the
Company'’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated Jun&@20, Exhibit 4.2).

Officers' Certificate establishing the terms of #h&75% Notes due 2022 (incorporated herein byreafee to th
Company's Current Report on Form 8-K dated Nover@theP012, Exhibit 4.1).

Note: The total amount of securities authetimnder any other instrument that defines thesighholders of the
Company'’s long-term debt does not exceed 10% ofiotad assets of the Company and its subsidianes consolidated
basis. Therefore, these instruments are not redjtoree filed as exhibits to this Report. The Conypagrees to furnish
copies of such instruments to the Commission upgoest.

Executive Compensation Plans and Arrangements

2011 Amended and Restated Employment Ageatdated February 11, 2011 between the CompahiRexmard
Hamada (incorporated herein by reference to thegaoyis Current Report on Form 8-K dated Februarn2041,
Exhibit 10.2).

Form of Change of Control Agreement betwthe Company Richard Hamada, Gerry Fay, Erin Leamith Steve Phillips
(incorporated herein by reference to the Compa@yigent Report on Form 8-K dated February 14, 2&khjbit 10.3).

Form of Employment Agreement by and betwiéhee Company and Erin Lewin.

Form of Employment Agreement between the Companlyeath of Phillip Gallagher, Steve Phillips and Fagdowsk
(incorporated herein by reference to the Compabyisent Report on Formr-K dated December 22, 2008, Exhibit 10



10.5 * Form of Employment Agreement between tbhenfany and each of Gerry Fay and Harley Feldberg.

10.6 Form of Change of Control Agreement betwthe Company and each of Harley Feldberg, Phaktiagher, MaryAnn
Miller, and Ray Sadowski (incorporated herein bigrence to the Company's Current Report on Formdated
December 22, 2008, Exhibit 10.3).

10.7 Letter Agreement by and between Kevin Moriarty #relCompany (incorporated by reference to the CoryipaCurrent
Report on Form 8-K dated December 12, 2012, Exhibit).

10.8 Avnet 1995 Stock Option Plan (incorporated hergimdierence to the Company’s Current Report on Rdhdated
February 12, 1996, Exhibit 10).
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Avnet 1996 Incentive Stock Option Plan (incorpodaterein by reference to the Company’s Registrafimtement on
Form S-8, Registration No. 333-17271, Exhibit 99).

Amended and Restated Avnet 1997 Stock Option Rteorporated herein by reference to the Companyiseédt Report
on Form 8-K dated August 29, 2006, Exhibit 10.1).

Retirement Plan for Outside Directors of Avnet,.Jif@mended and Restated Effective Generally alnbiary 1, 2009)
(incorporated herein by reference to the Compa@yigent Report on Form 8-K dated August 13, 202Mhilkit 10.1).

Avnet, Inc. Deferred Compensation Plan for Outflifectors (Amended and Restated Effective Geneeallpf
January 1, 2009) (incorporated herein by referém¢cke Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K datedust 13, 2010,
Exhibit 10.2).

Avnet Supplemental Executive OfficerstiRement Plan (2013 Restatement).
Avnet Restoration Plan (2013 Restatement)

Avnet 1999 Stock Option Plan (incorporated hergimdference to the Company’s Current Report on Fihdated
August 29, 2006 Exhibit 10.2).

Avnet, Inc. Executive Incentive Plan (incorporatestein by reference to Appendix A to the Compairexy Statement
dated November 2, 2012, Exhibit 10.1).

Avnet, Inc. 2003 Stock Compensation Plan (AmendetiRestated Effective Generally as of January Q90
(incorporated herein by reference to the Compa@yigent Report on Form 8-K dated August 13, 20Milkit 10.4).

Avnet, Inc. 2003 Stock Compensation Plan:

(a) Form of nonqualified stock option agneat

(b) Form of nonqualified stock option agremt for non-employee director
(c) Form of incentive stock option agreetmen

(d) Form of performance stock unit termethe

(incorporated herein by reference to the Camyfs Current Report on Form 8-K dated August 262 Exhibit 10.3).

Avnet, Inc. 2006 Stock Compensation Plan (AmendetiRestated Effective Generally as of January Q90
(incorporated herein by reference to the Compa@yigent Report on Form 8-K dated August 13, 202Mhilkit 10.5).

Avnet, Inc. 2006 Stock Compensation Plan:

(a) Form of nonqualified stock option agneat

(b) Form of nonqualified stock option agremt for non-employee director

(c) Form of performance stock unit termetheevised effective August 13, 2009 by (f) below)
(d) Form of incentive stock option agreeinen

(e) Long Term Incentive Letter

(incorporated herein by reference to the Camyfs Current Report on Form 8-K dated May 16, 2@hibit 99.1).

() Form of performance stock unit term sheetdiporated herein by reference to the Company’sedtiReport on
Form 8-K dated August 19, 2009, Exhibit 99.1).

Avnet, Inc. 2010 Stock Compensation Plan (incorfeatderein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Canys
Registration Statement on Form S-8, Registration3$8-171291).

Avnet Inc 2010 Stock C.omnensatinn Pl



(a) Form of nonqualified stock option agreatne
(b) Form of incentive stock option agreement
(c) Form of performance stock unit term sheet
(d) Form of restricted stock unit term sheet
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(incorporated herein by reference to the Compa@yigent Report on Form 8-K dated August 10, 202Ailkit 10.1).

Avnet Deferred Compensation Plan (AmeratetiRestated Effective Generally as of Janua@pQ9) (incorporated
herein by reference to the Company’s Current Repoform 8-K dated August 13, 2010, Exhibit 10.6).

Amendment No. 1 to Avnet Deferred Compensation Pdanended and Restated Effective Generally as mfidey 1,
2009) (incorporated herein by reference to the Gaomgis Annual Report on Form 10-K dated August 02,12 Exhibit
10.21).

Form of Indemnity Agreement. The Compenters into this form of agreement with each oflitectors and officers
(incorporated herein by reference to the Compa@Qyiarterly Report on Form 10-Q dated May 8, 2006ilkk 10.1).

Form option agreements for stock optiamgp (incorporated herein by reference to the CayigaCurrent Report on
Form 8-K dated September 8, 2004, Exhibit 10.4).

(a) Non-Qualified stock option agreementX689 Stock Option Plan
(b) Incentive stock option agreement for 19%@ck Option Plan
(c) Incentive stock option agreement for 1886ck Option Plan
(d) Non-Qualified stock option agreement¥085 Stock Option Plan

Bank Agreements
Securitization Program

(8) Receivables Sale Agreement, dated dareé 28, 2001 between Avnet, Inc., as Originaiiod, Avnet Receivables
Corporation as Buyer (incorporated herein by refeeto the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-ledat
September 26, 2002, Exhibit 10J).

(b) Amendment No. 1, dated as of Februa062, to Receivables Sale Agreement in 10.2Hay& (incorporated
herein by reference to the Company’s Current Repoform 8-K dated September 26, 2002, Exhibit 10K)

(c) Amendment No. 2, dated as of June Q6822to Receivables Sale Agreement in 10.27(a) @liocorporated herein
by reference to the Company’s Current Report omR4K dated September 26, 2002, Exhibit 10L).

(d) Amendment No. 3, dated as of Novemiaer202, to Receivables Sale Agreement in 10.2ataye (incorporated
herein by reference to the Company’s Current Repoform 8-K dated December 17, 2002, Exhibit 10B).

(e) Amendment No. 4, dated as of DecemBeRQ02, to Receivables Sale Agreement in 10.2t{aye (incorporated
herein by reference to the Company’s Current Repoform 8-K dated December 17, 2002, Exhibit 10E).

(f) Amendment No. 5, dated as of AugustZl)3, to Receivables Sale Agreement in 10.27(@yefincorporated
herein by reference to the Company’s Current Repofform 8-K dated September 15, 2003, Exhibit 10C)

(g) Amendment No. 6, dated as of Augug(R)5, to Receivables Sale Agreement in 10.27(ayefiacorporated
herein by reference to the Company’s Current Repoform 8-K dated September 13, 2005, Exhibit)10.1

(h) Amendment No. 7, dated as of AugustZZ®@7, to Receivables Sale Agreement in 10.27(@efincorporated
herein by reference to the Company’s Current Repoform 8-K dated August 13, 2010, Exhibit 10.7).

(i) Amendment No. 8, dated as of AugustZZBL0, to Receivables Sale Agreement in 10.27(@yalincorporated
herein by reference to the Company’s Current Repoform 8-K dated September 1, 2010, Exhibit 10.2)

() Second Amended and Restated Receisdhlechase Agreement dated as of August 26, 20b8g#hwnet
Receivables Corporation, as Seller, Avnet, IncSeawicer, the Financial Institutions party theratal JPMorgan Chase
Bank, N.A. as Agent (incorporated herein by refeeeto the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K di&eptember 1,



2010, Exhibit 10.1).
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Exhibit

(k) Amendment No. 1, dated as of December 2802t the Second Amended and Restated Receivabtehase
Agreement in 10.27(j) above (incorporated hereimdfgrence to the Company’s Quarterly Report omFbd-Q dated
January 28, 2011, Exhibit 10.2).

(I) Amendment No. 2, dated as of August 25, 2@dthe Second Amended and Restated Receivabiehd3e
Agreement in 10.27(j) above (incorporated hereimdfgrence to the Company's Current Report on sKrdated
August 26, 2011, Exhibit 10.1).

(m) Amendment No. 3 dated as of March 7, 2012héoSecond Amended and Restated Receivables Purshessment
in 10.27(j) above (incorporated herein by refereioctne Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-@di&tpril 27,
2012, Exhibit 10.1).

(n) Amendment No. 4 dated as of August 23, 201thedSecond Amended and Restated Receivables Barcha
Agreement in 10.27(j) above (incorporated hereimdfgrence to the Company's Current Report on BsKrdated
August 24, 2012, Exhibit 10.1).

Credit Agreement dated as of NovembeR@8]1 among Avnet, Inc., Bank of America, N.A. Agiministrative Agent,
and each lender thereto (incorporated herein lareate to the Company’s Current Report on Formdaxt€¢d November
22, 2011, Exhibit 10.1).

Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges.

List of subsidiaries of the Company as af€29, 2013.

Consent of KPMG LLP.

Certification pursuant to Section 302of Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
Certification pursuant to Section 302of Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
Certification pursuant to Section 906tlé Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
Certification pursuant to Section 906tlé Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
XBRL Instance Document.

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Docutnen

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculationrikbase Document.

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbaf®cument.

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentationkbase Document.

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Libase Document.

* Filed herewith.

*k Furnished herewith.
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Exhibit 10.3

EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT
This Employment Agreement (Agreement ”) is made by and between Hxecutive ), anc
AVNET, INC., a New York corporation, with its priipal executive offices at 2211 South 4Btreet, Phoenix, A
85034 (the ‘Company”), effective as of this day of , e(tieffective Date”).

WHEREAS, the Company wishes to provide for the icr@d employment of Executive; and

WHEREAS, Executive wishes to accept such contimesgonsibilities and employment and to render set
to the Company in accordance with the provisionthisf Agreement.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual cav@s and agreements contained in this Agreente
parties agree as follows:

1. Employment, Duties and Responsibilitie
a. Employment. The Company hereby employs Executive, and Exegltereby accepts employm

upon the terms and conditions set forth in thise&gnent.

b. Position. On and after the Effective Date, for the termttu§ Agreement, Executive shall serve
of the Company. In addition, if reqeegby the Company's Chief Executive Officer, Exeeushal
serve, without additional compensation, as an effar director of subsidiaries, divisions, or adfies of the Company.

c. Performance of Duties Executive agrees to devote her fike attention and best efforts to
business and affairs of the Company. Executivel gfeform all duties and responsibilities commenseirwith he
position(s) and shall follow the reasonable di@tsiof the Company's Chief Executive Officer. Exeeumay serve ¢
civic, charitable or corporate boards or committdelill speaking engagements, and manage heropatsaffairs, s
long as the Company reasonably determines that aciivities do not interfere, compete with, or othise pose
conflict of interest with respect to, the performarof Executive's duties and responsibilities. Exge shall compl
with Company policies and procedures as adopted frme to time, including the Company's Code of uot.

2. Term of Agreemeni

This Agreement shall be effective beginning on Efective Date, and continuing for one (1) yearrdadter
The Agreement shall automatically be extended fmcessive one (1) year terms unless the Compargxecutive
notifies the other party of its intent not to exdehe Agreement at least one (1) year before tieoéhe thercurren
term. Either party may terminate the Agreement tgefioe end of the term in accordance with Sectidretow.

3. Compensatior
For all services to be rendered by Executive an@ffacovenants undertaken by her, the Company paglanc
Executive shall accept the following compensation:

a. Base Salary For all services to be rendered by Executive fandll covenants undertaken
her pursuant to the Agreement, Company shall palyEarecutive shall accept such compensation (inch
base salary and incentive compensation) as shagbsed upon from time to time between the Compant
Executive. If Executive is elected or reelectedmofficer or a




director of the Company or any subsidiary, divisoyraffiliate thereof, she shall serve as such euthadditione
compensation.

b. Incentive Programs and Bonuses

(i) Incentive Programs. For each fiscal year of the amy during the term of the Agreemu
Executive shall be eligible to receive incentiveympants for services rendered during the fiscal
pursuant to the Company's Executive Incentive Rlaa “ Incentive Plan”). The actual amount, if ar
of Executive's incentive payment for each fiscahryshall be determined by the Compens:
Committee (the ‘Compensation Committee”) of the Board of Directors of the Company (th&6ard
of Directors ”) based on (and subject to) the Company's performagegnst goals established
accordance with the Incentive Plan, and may rarga fero to any maximum established pursuant
Incentive Plan. If Executive is employed for onlgripof a fiscal year, Executive's incentive paynm(g
any) for such fiscal year shall be mated for the number of days during the fiscal ydarng which sh
was employed, and shall be paid at the end of ¢énfopnance period based upon (and subject to) k
achievement of performance goals. In the event 6€hemnge of ownership or controlyithin the
meaning of Treas. Reg. 8§ 1.162-27(e)(2)(v) (&wnership Change”), in which the Company has 1
been the acquiring and/or surviving entity, the lBoar Compensation Committee of the surviving
shall modify the performance objectives for thedisyear in which the Ownership Change occurs ¢
extent necessary (if at all) to ensure that Exgeldiincentive opportunity for such fiscal yeaaideas
comparable to the incentive opportunity that wapeeked when the performance objectives for
fiscal year were first established. In the evena alispute regarding the extent of the modificatsurct
dispute shall be resolved by an independent conapiensconsultant who is acceptable to both Exee
and the Company. Such compensation consultant bhaingaged and paid by the Company. |
compensation consultant determines that (A) thstieg performance objectives are no longer cons
with the intended incentive opportunity and (Bisinot practicable to revise the applicable peromot
objectives, Executive's incentive payment for tpeligable fiscal year shall be no less than thget
amount for such fiscal year. For purposes of tlagagraph, the fiscal year of the Company she
determined without regard to any Ownership Change.

(ii) Bonus Payments. In addition to any incentive paysender the Incentive Plan, Execu
shall be eligible to receive such additional bosuse may be awarded by the Committee or the Board.

(iif) Clawback Policy. Any incentive or bonus payment en&ml Executive shall be subject to
terms and conditions of the Company's clawbackcppls in effect and amended from titeetime
including disgorgement or repayment to the exteqtirred by such policy.

C. Participation in Equity PlansExecutive shall participate in the Company's aasi stock option at
other equity incentive plans as in effect from titeetime, subject to the terms of such plans andthe exter
applicable, Executive's executing and not revoking restrictive covenant agreement described intid&ed.d(ii),
below.

d. Employee Benefits Executive shall be entitled to participate, ami no less favorable than the te
offered to other senior executives of the Companyany group and/or executive life, hospitalization disability
insurance plan, health program, profit sharingedefl compensation plan, employee stock




purchase plan, 401(k) plan, pension plan, and airbinefit plans (qualified, naqualified, and supplemental) and of
fringe benefits of the Company in effect from titoeime; provided, however, that-

(i) Executive shall not be entitled to participate inreceive benefits under any severanc
similar plan or program maintained by the Compantiadr than this Agreement and Executive's CO:!
described in Section 5.h, below)); and

(i) Executive's rights to posérmination vesting and benefits under any stockoapor othe
equity incentive plan maintained by the Companylldbe contingent on Executive executing and
revoking a mutually acceptable restrictive coveragreement. It is anticipated that such agreemét
include restrictions comparable to the restrictisas forth in Section 4, below (Restrictive Covesa
and will apply for the period during which Execwuivs receiving equity incentive benefits, an
continuing to vest in equity incentive or stockioptbenefits.

e. Vacation and Other Absence&xecutive shall be entitled to paid vacationshegear in accordan
with the Company's thecurrent vacation policy for senior executives. Exa@ shall be subject to the policies
procedures relating to other absences from reglulaes for holidays, sick or disability leave, leanf absence witho
pay, or leave for other reasons, as those custlynmaavided to the Company's senior executives.

f. Expenses The Company shall reimburse Executive's travekrgainment, and other business expe
that are reasonably and necessarily incurred bynhiere course of performing her duties and prgpddcumented, ¢
in accordance with the Company's policies as iactfirom time to time.

4. Restrictive Covenant:

Executive acknowledges and recognizes (i) her gsgse of Confidential Information (as defined ircéen 4.b
below), (ii) the highly competitive nature of thediness of the Company and its affiliates and slidoses, which i
worldwide in scope, and (iii) that reasonable reBtms on Executive's future business endeavalssecutive's abilit
to disclose Confidential Information are necessargrotect valuable client and customer relatiopsiof the Compan
Accordingly, in consideration of the premises corgd herein, Executive agrees to the restrictiatsfarth in thi
Section 4.

a. Non-Competition. Executive agrees that during the term of thise&gnent Executive shall not, eit
individually or as an officer, director, stockholdemember, partner, agent, employee, consultarihcipal, o
committeemember of another business firm or sole proprigiprgi) engage in, or be connected in any manndr,
any business operating anywhere in the world thai idirect or indirect competition with any actilasiness of tt
Company or any of its affiliates or subsidiaries,any planned business of the Company or any oéffitates o
subsidiaries of which Executive is aware (eachCatpetitive Business); (ii) be employed by an entity or person-
controls a Competitive Business; or (iii) direatliyindirectly solicit any customer or client of tR@mpany or any of i
affiliates or subsidiaries; provided, however, ttie restrictions set forth in this Section 4.allshat prohibit Executiv
from being a passive shareholder of a public comjfaixecutive owns less than one percent (1%uchscompany.

b. Confidential Information. Executive agrees that she shall not, at any tionéng the term of th
Agreement or thereafter, disclose to another, erfasany purpose other than performing her dwtres responsibilitie
under this Agreement, any Confidential InformatiBor purposes of this Agreement, Confidential Infation include
all trade secrets and confidential informationred Company and its




affiliates and subsidiaries including, but not led to, the Company's unique business methodsegses, operatil
techniques and “know-howal(l of which have been developed by the Compantsatffiliates and subsidiaries throt
substantial effort and investment), profit and lossults, market and supplier strategies, custadesttity and need
information pertaining to employee effectivenesd anmpensation, inventory strategy, product cagisss margin
and other information relating to the affairs o tGompany and its affiliates and subsidiaries Ehadcutive shall ha\
acquired during her employment with the Company.

c. Non-Solicitation of EmployeesExecutive agrees that she shall not, at any doreng the term of th
Agreement, including all renewals, and for five {@ars thereafter, directly or indirectly solicit imduce any of tt
employees of the Company or any of its affiliateswbsidiaries to terminate employment with thempéoyer.

5. Termination Rights and Responsibilitie:

The Company may terminate Executive's employmeti wr without cause, and Executive may volunt
terminate her employment, at any time during thentef this Agreement, subject to the provisionshid Section 5.

a. Executive Voluntary Termination Except to the extent otherwise provided in sutised, belov
(Executive Termination Upon Change in Office andiés), if Executive wishes to terminate her empleymrunder thi
Agreement, she must provide written notice of sntént at least one (1) year before her intendeditation date. F
the period from when she provides such notice tjinduer termination date, Executive shall contiraubé paid her ba
salary and other compensation required by Secti@ab@ve. Any annual incentive payment for suchqgaeshall be pa
at the end of the performance period, at the timesgribed by the Incentive Plan, based on (andestly) actu:
achievement of the applicable performance goald,psorated if Executive's employment terminates befbeednd c
the performance period. If Executive fails to pd®vione (1) year's advance written notice, and tieret mutue
agreement, she shall not be eligible for any bamuannual incentive payments for any partial fisgsr worked ar
may also be liable for damages and/or subjectjtmative relief pursuant to Section 6, below; pa®d, however, that
such failure is due to the Company's request thatiive stop providing services (for a reason othan Cause,
defined in subsection g, below), Executive shallebétled to the payments and benefits prescribedubsection
below (“Company Termination Without Cause,” takingp account the Sikonth Delay Rule described in Section
below, and the Company's right to pay cash indiecontinued benefits, in accordance with Sectidnbélow), throug
the first (1st) anniversary of the date on whicle&xive provided written notice of her intent tomténate employme
(but not for any period thereatfter).

b. Executive Termination Upon Change in Office andi@sit If during the term hereof the Execul
suffers an Adverse Action, as such term is definetie Change of Control Agreement separately edtarto betwee
the Company and Executive (th&€OC "), Executive may terminate her employment under tlgseAment, subject
the following procedures:

(i) Within ninety (90) days after the Adverse Actionxeeutive shall notify the Company
writing of her desire to terminate employment oncamt of such Adverse Action;

(ii) Following its receipt of such notice, the Compahglshave thirty (30) days to remedy
Adverse Action; and

(iif) If the Company fails to remedy the Adverse Actigntbe end of such thirty (30) day per
and Executive's termination of employment occursater than two (2) years after




the Adverse Action, the Adverse Action shall bateel as a one (3)ear written notice of the Compar
intent to terminate Executive's employment with@atuse and Executive's termination of employi
shall be treated as a “Company Termination Witl@atise"under subsection f, below. For the avoid:
of doubt, the notice period and any right to camtith compensation shall run from the date o
Adverse Action, and not from any later date.

c. Retirement Executive's termination of her employment undes thjgreement by reason of retirenr
shall be treated as a voluntary termination by Hkee pursuant to, and subject to the requiremefitsubsection
above.

d. Death of Executive. This Agreement shall terminate immediately in #nent of the death
Executive. Upon such termination, the Company shal to Executive's legal representative as sogradticable a
accrued and unpaid base salary and aaed portion of any other compensation otherwise whder Section 3, abo
Such amounts shall be paid within ninety (90) dafter Executive's death, on a date determined bthhmpan)
provided, however, that any prated incentive payment shall be paid at the enttie@fperformance period, at the t
prescribed by the Incentive Plan, based on (angsutn) actual achievement of the applicable perénce goals The
Company shall also pay any benefits that are paypbisuant to the terms of the plans and progragssritbed i
Section 3.d, above.

e. Disability of Executive. If Executive becomes Disabled (as defined beldwjng the term of th
Agreement, Executive shall be entitled to any dlgglbenefits payable under Compaspeonsored disability bene
plans made available to Company employees gengeaity her employment hereunder shall terminateclike sha
be entitled to a proated incentive payment for the fiscal year in vahieer employment terminates; such incer
payment shall be paid at the end of the performgpec®d, at the time prescribed by the Incentiv@nPbased on (a
subject to) actual achievement of the applicabldopmance goals. “Disabled” and “Disabilityshall mean thi
Executive has been totally disabled by injury bress, mental or physical, as a result of whichish@evented froi
further performance of the duties required by thggeement, and that such disability is likely to frermanent ar
continuous during the remainder of Executive's life

In the event of a dispute over whether Executiveliecome Disabled, such dispute shall be resohredgh arbitratio
under American Arbitration Association rules, inohix, Arizona.

f. Company Termination Without Causef the Company wishes to terminate Executive'plesmen
under this Agreement for a reason other than “Ca(ms® defined in subsection g, below), or death oaliigy (as
defined in subsection e, above), the Company giallide to Executive written notice of such intemtleast one (.
year before the intended termination date. Durmggderiod from such written notice through thetfansniversary of tt
date on which such written notice was provided, dbxee shall continue to be paid her base salany athe
compensation required by SectiBnabove, each at a rate no less than the ratiéeict @nmediately before the noti
date; provided, however, that if Executive's empient terminates before the end of such periodriget to continue
salary and other compensation shall be subjedtedSix-Month Delay Rulelescribed in Section 7.c, below, and
provisions of Section 7.g (Cash in Lieu of Bengfiteelow. Executive shall continue to be eligibbe &nnual incentiv
payments after the Company has provided noticdsointent to terminate Executive's employment hedeu. Any
annual incentive payments due shall be paid agtideof the performance period, at the time presdriy the Incenti\
Plan, based on (and subject to) actual achievewfetite applicable performance goals and m@ated if Executive
employment terminates before the end of the peidoca period.




g. Company Termination With Causéf the Company terminates Executive's employniemeunder fc
“Cause” @s defined in this subsection g), the Company stwlbe required to provide any advance noticéhdénever
of a termination for Cause, the Company shall ma¥xecutive any salary due pursuant to Section &baye, fo
service through the date of termination, withirrt$h(30) days thereafter, and Executive shall ibdey right to receiv
incentive compensation or a bonus pursuant to @eétib, above. For purposes of this Agreement, s§€ameans, bt
is not limited to, Executive's gross misconduceaah of any material term of this Agreement, willfveach, habitu.
neglect or wanton disregard of her duties, or actrom of any criminal act.

h. Executive Termination Upon Change of Contrblpon a Change of Control as defined in the CQ€
provisions of the COC shall apply. If Executive bees eligible to receive any payment or paymentieuthe COC
such payments shall be in lieu of any right to pagta or benefits under this Section 5 and she sbalbe entitled 1
receive any payments or benefits under this Se&tion

6. Specific Performanct

Executive acknowledges that (a) the services tadmelered under this Agreement and the obligatidi
Executive assumed herein are of a special, unigdeeatraordinary character; (b) it would be difficor impossible t
replace such services and obligations; (c) the Gompits subsidiaries and affiliates will be irregdaly damaged if tt
provisions hereof are not specifically enforced] &) the award of monetary damages will not adedygrotect th
Company, its subsidiaries and affiliates in thent\ad a breach hereof by Executive. As a resuledtixive agrees a
consents that if she violates any of the provisiohshis Agreement, the Company shall, without &wynd or othe
security being required and without the necessityroving monetary damages, be entitled to a teanyoand/o
permanent injunction to be issued by a court of mewent jurisdiction restraining Executive from cortiimg or
continuing any violation of this Agreement, or astiier appropriate decree of specific performanoeh$emedies shi
not be exclusive and shall be in addition to aryeotremedy (including monetary damages) that theniamy ma
have.

7. Section 409A and Cash in Lieu of Benefi

a. Intent to Comply With Section 409AThis Agreement shall be interpreted consistett e intent t
comply with the requirements of Section 409A of thiernal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (thdeQosuct
that there are no adverse tax consequences, intergsenalties as a result of any amount paidayaple under th
Agreement. Any ambiguity or inconsistency in thevsions of this Agreement shall be resolved cdesiswith suc
intent. In addition, to the extent permitted by Jdle parties agree to make a good faith effonéalify this Agreemel
to the extent that either party determines is resngso comply with Section 409A.

b. Separation From ServiceExcept as otherwise expressly provided, referemeehis Agreement
Executive's termination of employment, terminatidate, and similar terms related to Executive's itggtion o
employment or separation from service shall retethie date of Executive's “separation from serviegthin the
meaning of Section 409A(a)(2)(A)(i) of the Code dasermined by the Company.

C. Six-Month Delay Rule. If, as of her termination date, Executive is @€dfied employee” 4¢
determined by the Company in accordance with iidedmes established pursuant to Treas. Reg. &AAGi)), any
amount payable to Executive upon or by reason ptdrenination of employment (including expense taimsemen
and in-kind benefits that are includible in inconsépll be subject to the six (6) month delay rezpiiny Section 409A
(@)(2)(B)(i) of the Code; provided, however, thatls six (6) month delay shall




not be required with respect to any payment that@Gbmpany determines is not subject to Section 4@@Reason (
the “short-term deferral” rule described in TreReg. 8§ 1.409A-1(b)(4), the “two-year, two-timelle described |
Treas. Reg. 8§ 1.409A¢b)(9)(iii), or any other exemption. If paymentafy amount is delayed by reason of this si.
month delay, such amount shall be paid with inteoasthe Company's first pay date for the sevefth)(month the
starts after Executive's termination date (or,aflier, within 90 days after Executive's death)cé&pt as otherwis
provided in a governing document for an applicabdmefit plan, program, or other arrangement, isteshall b
calculated using the prime rate of interest in affat Bank of America, N.A. (or another bank deaigad by th
Company that is one of its principal banks) on Exiee's termination date.

d. Installments Treated as Separate Paymeisr purposes of Section 409A of the Code, exee
otherwise expressly provided, each installmentayinpents and benefits due under this Agreement bballeated as
separate payment.

Payment Date To the extent that any payment under this Agregnmmeay be made during a paym
Wlndow the date of payment shall be determinedheyCompany, in its sole discretion, and not bydtee or an
other individual entitled to receive the payment.

f. Expense Reimbursements aneKlimd Benefits. To the extent that any expense reimbursement-or
kind benefit is subject to Section 409&.Q., the expense reimbursement is includible in incame is not required
be paid by the end of the “applicable 21%-month quBridescribed in Treas. Reg. 8§ 1.40286)(4)(i)(A)), sucl
reimbursement or benefit shall be subject to theltmns set forth in Treas. Reg. § 1.409A-3(i)id)(Accordingly:

(i) The amount of such expenses eligible for reimbuesgnor inkind benefits provided, during
taxable year of Executive shall not affect the eges eligible for reimbursement, orkimd benefits t
be provided, in any other taxable year;

(i) The reimbursement of each such expense shall benpdater than the last day of Executi
taxable year next following the taxable year inathihe expense was incurred; and

(iif) The right to reimbursement or kind benefits shall not be subject to liquidatianeachang
for another benefit.

g. Cash in Lieu of Benefits Executive's right to receive (I) tapualified retirement and savings
(1) health benefits under this Agreement is subjedhe terms of the applicable plans and satgfll applicable tax-
qualification, nondiscrimination, and similar reggments. In lieu of any benefit that the Compantggeines may n
be provided by reason of the immediately precedargence, the Company shall pay to Executive casbllaws:

(i) In lieu of taxgualified retirement and savings benefits thatGoenpany determines may not
provided, the Company shall pay to Executive anwarhequal to the Comparprovided contributior
or benefit accruals that would have otherwise acdated under the applicable retirement or savirgs
if not for the Company's determination. Such amainall not include any payment with respect to
lost opportunity to make pre-tax or aftex deferrals or contributions. However, the amooitny
matching contribution that Executive would othemvizave been entitled to receive shall be calcL
based on the assumption that Executive would heferréd or contributed the amount required to be




eligible for the maximum matching contribution pbigafor the applicable period. Subject to the Si
Month Delay Rule described in subsection ¢, absueh amount shall be paid within thirty (30) ¢
after the end of the period for which such retiratmer savings benefits would otherwise have
provided.

(ii) In lieu of health benefits that the Company detassimay not be provided, the Comg
shall pay to Executive the amount described in 8astion 7.g(ii) for each applicable month for wi
Executive would otherwise be entitled to healthdfige. The amount for each month shall be equ
167 percent of the excess of (A) the COBRA premiamhe applicable coverage under the Compi
plan for such month (without regard to whether ke is eligible for COBRA coverage) over (B)
premium that an active senior executive of the Camypwould be required to pay for such cove
under the Company's plan for such month. SubjettgédSixMonth Delay Rule described in subsec
c, above, such amount shall be paid monthly inaaste

h. Limited Indemnity for Company Error If (and only if) Executive becomes subject to ede ta
consequences under Section 409A of the Code asull of (i) the Company's failure to administerstidigreement i
accordance with its terms; (ii)the Company's failuo administer any rfonqualified deferred compensal
plan” (within the meaning of Section 409A of the Code)eotthan this Agreement in accordance with its teomghe
requirements of Section 409A; or (iii) the Comparfgilure to satisfy the Section 409A document nexuents for an
nonqualified deferred compensation plan other ttesm Agreement, the Company shall pay to Execusimeamour
such that after all required income and employnntvithholding, the net amount paid to Executivequal to the t:
imposed under Section 409A of the Code as a refuihe applicable error. Such amount shall be daled by
certified public accounting firm selected and playdthe Company (the Accounting Firm ), and shall be paid no la
than the last day of Executive's taxable year fa@ikiwing the taxable year in which Executive resnibe applicab
taxes to the U.S. Treasury. Any determination bg Accounting Firm shall be binding upon the Compamy
Executive.

8. Governing Law

This Agreement shall be construed, interpretedgowkrned by the law of the State of Arizona, withgiving
effect to Arizona principles regarding conflictlafvs. Reference to any provision of the Code oeotéwv shall includ
all regulations and other guidance of general appllity issued thereunder, and shall be deemethdlude an
successor provision.

0. Miscellaneous Provision

a. Tax Withholding. All amounts payable under this Agreement areestilip withholding for all feder
state, and local taxes, and all other amountsimgléb tax or other payroll deductions, as the Canypmay reasonak
determine should be withheld. Regardless of theuamtnwithheld, Executive shall be solely responsiblepaying al
required taxes (other than the employer's shaeengioyment taxes) on all payments and other congpiens(including
imputed compensation) and benefits provided urtfdsrAgreement.

b. Succession This Agreement shall extend to and be bindingnugrecutive, her legal representati
heirs, and distributees, and upon the Companguitsessors and assigns.




C. Entire Agreement Other than the COC Agreement, this Agreemenhés dntire agreement of 1
parties with respect to its subject matter and aov&r, modification, or amendment of any of its\psmns shall b
valid unless in writing and signed by both parties.

d. Waiver of Breach The waiver of breach of any term or conditiontims Agreement shall not
deemed to constitute a waiver of any other termoodition of this Agreement.

e. Severability. Each substantive provision of this Agreement iseparate agreement, independe
supported by good and adequate consideration, sasdvierable from the other provisions of the Agemif an)
provision of this Agreement is held to be mvaIIdzgaI or unenforceable, such provision shallréfermed to resol
the applicable issue while still achieving the nitef the provision to the maximum extent possilaed no othe
provision of the agreement shall be affected oraimgal in any way. With respect to any restrictivvenant, it i
understood and agreed that if a court of competeisidiction or a duly constituted arbitration panefuses to enfor
any part of such restrictive covenant because unieasonable (whether as to geographic scopetiauractivity
subject, or otherwise), the unenforceable provisiaall not be void but rather shall be deemed rediue limited to th
minimum extent necessary to permit enforcementhefdovenant. For this purpose, the geographic sabgation
activity, and subject are divisible.

f. Forfeiture of Certain Parachute Payments

(i) Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreemeif paragraph (ii), below, applit
Executive shall forfeit amounts payable to Exeaitimder this Agreement to the extent that a cet
public accounting firm selected and paid by the @any (the “Accounting Firm ") determinesis
necessary to ensure that Executive is not reasptibly to receive a “parachute paymentithin the
meaning of Section 280G(b)(2) of the Code. The Aoting Firm's determination shall be conclu:
and binding upon the Company and Executive.

(i) This paragraph (ii) shall apply if (and only if) YAny payment to be made under
Agreement is reasonably likely to result in Exeeitreceiving a “parachute payments(defined i
Section 280G(b)(2) of the Code), and (B) Executiietfeiture of payments due under this Agreel
would result in the aggregate aftax amount that Executive would receive being gmred#ban th
aggregate after-tax amount that Executive wouldivecif there were no such forfeiture.

(iif) Neither the Company nor Executive shall have asgrdtion to determine which payme
are forfeited. The forfeiture shall apply in reverdronological ordee.g., the last payment in any sel
of payments shall be forfeited before any partrogarlier payment is forfeited.

g. Survival . The provisions of Sections 4 (Restrictive Covésgn5 (Termination Rights a
Responsibilities), 6 (Specmc Performance), 7 (®&c409A and Cash in Lieu of Benefits), 8 (Govemiaw), and
(Miscellaneous Provisions) of this Agreement shatlvive the termination of Executive's employmesrtelunder.

h. Headings The headings of the sections and subsectionssgged for convenience only and shall
be deemed to constitute a part hereof or to affectmeaning thereof.




IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executedAlgieement to be effective as of the Effective Date.

AVNET, INC. EXECUTIVE
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Exhibit 10.5

AGREEMENT effective as of between AVNENCIL, a New York corporation with a principal plact
business at 2211 South 47th Street, Phoenix, Aai85034 (“Avnet”)and , having an office at 2211 S
47th Street, Phoenix, Arizona 85034 (" ).

WITNESSETH
1. Employment, Salary, Benefits:

1.1 Employment. Avnet agrees to employ d an agrees to accept employment upon thres tan
conditions hereinafter set forth.

1.2 Term. employment pursuant to this Agesg shall commence on and subject taek
termination as provided in Section 2 below, shalhtoue for a period of one (1) year (until the "Initia
Term"). Unless provides Avnet written netit least thirty (30) days prior to the expiratadrihe Initial Tern
advising Avnet that does not intend to wetlee Agreement as hereinafter described, them afte

employment shall continue until terminated by eitharty provided, however, that the party desitiogerminate th
employment arrangement gives written notice thetedhe other not less than one (1) year priohtodate of actu

termination of employment. By way of example, sldoul desire not to renew after the InitialnT,esuch notic
would have to be given no later than . déddeer (if not so terminated by at the ehthe Initia
Term), by way of example, if either Avnet or should desire to terminate the employment on suc

notice would have to be given not later than

1.3 Duties. is hereby engaged in an execofpacity and shall perform such duties for AvoetAvnet'
subsidiaries, divisions and operating units as tayssigned to him from time to time by the . i
currently engaged as f is aleateofficer or a director of Avnet or any subsidiar divisior
thereof, he shall serve as such without additicnaipensation.

1.4 Compensation.

a. For all services to be rendered by andaflocovenants undertaken by him pursuant tc
Agreement, Avnet shall pay and shall aceseph compensation (including base salary
incentive compensation) as shall be agreed upon firoe to time between Avnet and

b. In the event employment hereunder is text@éh by the one (1) year notice provided fc
Section 1.2 above and Avnet and fail te@gpon compensation during all or any portiorhe
one (1) year notice period prior to terminationerth compensation (base salary and inc
compensation) during such portion of the noticaqoeshall be equal to the cash compensation edy

during the four completed fiscal quartees@ding the date on which notice is given; andn
such termination (after a oryear notice) shall not be entitled to ssaveg payments under ¢
Avnet severance plan. In the alternative event #tdeast 30 days prior to the end of the Initiaknf

notifies Avnet that he intends not to remeswdescribed in 1.2 above, shall effe

(the end of the Initial Term) revert topbogee at will status (with employment terminabt
any time by either Avnet or ) and the miowi in 1.2 above requiring a ogear notice shall n
apply; and upon a subsequent termination of empdogm shall be entitled if otherwise eligitt
payments under any then-applicable Avnet severplace




Notwithstanding anything to the contrary, in theey employment is terminated pursuantly
2.2 or 2.3 below, then the ogear notice provided in 1.2 above shall not be iapple and sh
not be entitled to any severance pay benefit.

1.5 Other Compensation on Termination. Upon tertionaof this Agreement, shall be entitledetceive onl
such compensation as had accrued and was unptid &ffective date of termination. If the terminoatioccurs othe
than at the end of a fiscal year of Avnet, the cengation payable to (including base saladyincentiv

compensation) shall bear the same ratio to a fatiaf year's remuneration as the number of dayswioich
shall be entitled to remuneration beaB6%days

1.6 Additional Benefits. In addition to the compatien described in Subsection 1.4, shaleruéled tc
vacation, insurance, retirement and other benédxsept for severance pay benefit which the ype&- terminatio
notice described above is intended to replacejeaaféorded to personnel of Avnet's United Stateseld operating un
generally and which are in effect from time to tiniteis understood that Avnet does not by reasothisf Agreemet
obligate itself to provide any such benefits tolspersonnel.

2. Early Termination.

2.1 Death or Disability. employment hereunsghall terminate on the date of deathupmr

suffering mental or physical injury, illses incapacity which renders him unable to perfoismcustomar
duties hereunder on a fulme basis for a period of 365 substantially consge days, on the 365th such day.
opinion of a medical doctor licensed to practicethe State of Arizona (or such other state wherein the
resides) and having Board certification in hisdi@f specialization or the receipt of or entitlernen t
disability benefits under any policy of insurangeyded or made available by Avnet or under Fed8radial Securit
laws, shall be conclusive evidence of such diggbili

2.2 Cause. employment hereunder may alserinéated by Avnet at any time prior to the eapaon of the
term hereof without notice for cause, includingt bat limited to, gross misconduct, breaichny materie
term of this Agreement, willful breach, habitualtext or wanton disregard of his duties, or coneitof any crimine
act.

3. Competitive Employment:

3.1 Full time. shall devote his full tinbest efforts, attention and energies to the busiaad affairs of Avni
and shall not, during the term of his employmertehgaged in any other activity which, in the $otigment of Avne
will interfere with the performance of his dutiesrbunder.

3.2 NonCompetition. While employed by Avnet or any subeigj division or operating unit of Avnet, haH
not, without the written consent of the Chief Exael Officer of Avnet, directly or indirectly (whieér through hi
spouse, child or parent, other legal entity or otiee): own, manage, operate, join, control, pgréite in, invest in, «
otherwise be connected with, in any manner, whedisean officer, director, employee, partner, inmesthareholde
consultant, lender or otherwise, any businessyewtitich is engaged in, or is in any way relatedta@ompetitive witl
the business of Avnet, provided, however, notwéhding the foregoing shall not be prohibitem owning
directly or indirectly, up to 5% of the outstandiaquity interests of any company or entity the lstoc other equit
interests of which is publicly traded on a natiogeturities exchange or on the NASDAQ over-the-tamumarket.

3.3 NonsSolicitation. further agrees that he walt, it any time while employed by Avnet or any sdiasy,
division or operating unit of Avnet and for a petiof one year after the termination of employmeithwvnet, withou
the written consent of an officer authorized toiadhe matter by the Board of Directors




of Avnet, directly or indirectly, on behatfon behalf of any person or entity, induce ¢erapt to induce ar
employee of Avnet or any subsidiary or affiliateAanet (collectively the "Avnet Group") or any inililual who was &
employee of the Avnet Group during the one (1) yw#@or to the date of such inducement, to leaveetmploy of th
Avnet Group or to become employed by any persomrothan members of the Avnet Group or offer or e
employment to any such employee.

4. Definitions:
The words and phrases set forth below shall hawengmanings as indicated:

4.1 Confidential Information. That confidential Imesss information of Avnet, whether or not disc@eerdeveloped,
known by as a consequence of his employmiémtAvnet. Without limiting the generality of theregoing
Confidential Information shall include informati@oncerning customer identity, needs, buying prastiand patterr
sales and management techniques, employee effeetiseand compensation information, supply and tavg
techniques, manufacturing processes and techniguadiict design and configuration, market strategieofit and los
information, sources of supply, product cost, gnmesgins, credit and other sales terms and comditi€onfidentic
Information shall also include, but not be limitieqg information contained in Avnet's manuals, mesnda, price list
computer programs (such as inventory control,rgllicollection, etc.) and records, whether or restighated, legend
or otherwise identified by Avnet as Confidentialdmmation.

4.2 Developments. Those inventions, discoveriepravements, advances, methods, practices and tg@wmiconcep
and ideas, whether or not patentable, relatinguoefs present and prospective activities and mtsdu

5. Developments, Confidential Information and RedaMaterials:

5.1 Assignment of Developments. Any and all Develepts developed by (acting alone or inucajor
with others) during the period of employtrfeereunder shall be conclusively presumed to e create
for or on behalf of Avnet (or Avnet's subsidiary aiffiliate for which is working) as part

obligations to Avnet hereunder. Such Deratnts shall be the property of and belong to AYoeAvnet"
subsidiary or affiliate for which is worginwithout the payment of consideration thereforaofdition tc

compensation hereunder, and h&aatsfers, assigns and conveys all of righe anc
interest in any such Developments to Avnet (or Alsrgubsidiary or affiliate for which isnkimg) and agree
to execute and deliver any documents that Avnendaeecessary to effect such transfer on the dewiafdnet.

5.2 Restrictions on Use and Disclosure. eemgnot to use or disclose at any time after the loereof, exce
with the prior written consent of an officer autized to act in the matter by the Board of DirectofsAvnet, an
Confidential Information which is or was obtained acquired by while in the employ of Avioetany
subsidiary or affiliate of Avnet, provided, howeyénat this provision shall not preclude onfr(i) the use «
disclosure of such information which presently mwn generally to the public or which subsequentynes into th
public domain, other than by way of disclosure iolation of this Agreement or in any other unauthed fashion, c
(i) disclosure of such information required by lawcourt order, provided that prior to such disal@ required by la
or court order will have given Avnet th(8gbusiness days' written notice (or, if discl@sig required to
made in less than three (3) business days, thénmutce shall be given as promptly as practicalfter determinatic
that disclosure may be required) of the naturéneflaw or order requiring disclosure and the dsate to be made
accordance therewith.




5.3 Return of Documents. Upon termination of employment with Avnet, shall forthwitHider to
the Chief Executive Officer of Avnet all documentsstomer lists and related documents, price aadegpiure manue
and guides, catalogs, records, notebooks and simafgositories of or containing Confidential Infation and/c
Developments, including all copies then in his passon or control whether prepared by him or others

6. Miscellaneous:

6.1 Consent to Arbitration. Except for the equiéabélief provisions set forth in Section 6.2 belofwnet anc
agree to arbitrate any controversy or claimsing out of this Agreement or otherwise relgtitc
employment or the termination of employnanthis Agreement, in accordance with the provisiof the

Mutual Agreement to Arbitrate Claims, a copy of @fhis annexed hereto as Exhibit A.

6.2 Equitable Relief. acknowledges thatraagerial breach of any of the provisions of Sewi@ and/or
would entail irreparable injury to Avnet's goodwalhd jeopardize Avnet's competitive position in tharketplace «
Confidential Information, or both, and that in aduh to Avnet's other remedies, conserdsfamet shall b
entitled, as a matter of right, to an injunctiosued by any court of competent jurisdiction resirey any breach

and/or those with whom is actingpimcert and to other equitable relief to prevemyt such actue
intended or likely breach.

6.3 Survival. The provisions of Sections 3.2, 335, and 6 shall survive the termination of employmer
hereunder.

6.4 Interpretation. If any court of competent jdresion or duly constituted arbitration panel shafiuse to enforce a
or all of the provisions hereof because they areenextensive (whether as to geographic scope, idaradctivity
subject or otherwise) than is reasonable, it isesgly understood and agreed that such provistwelsrsot be void, bt
that for the purpose of such proceedings and it gugsdiction, the restrictions contained herehals be deeme
reduced or limited to the extent necessary to gegnforcement of such provisions.

6.5 Succession. This Agreement shall extend to sndinding upon , his legal representatiiess an
distributees and upon Avnet, its successors angrsss

6.6 Entire Agreement. This Agreement and the Exhibereto contain the entire agreement of thegsawtith respect
their subject matter, and supersedes any other ageeement, whether written or oral. All otheramgements whic
may have been applicable to your employment with @ompany and any subsidiary, affiliate, or predsge ar
cancelled with effect from the date of this AgreemeéNo waiver, modification or change of any proms of thit
Agreement shall be valid unless in writing and ey the parties against whom such claimed wamedification o
change is sought to be enforced.

6.7 Waiver of Breach. The waiver of any breach mf germ or condition of this Agreement shall notdeemed t
constitute a waiver of any other term or conditidrthis Agreement.

6.8 Notices. All notices pursuant to this Agreemsmll be in writing and shall be given by registeor certified mai
or the equivalent, return receipt requested, agddre$o the parties hereto at the addresses sktdbave, or to su
address as may hereafter be specified by notiseiiimg in the same manner by any party or parties.

1. Headings. Except for the headings in Section 4,hbadings of the sections and subsections aretedsé
convenience only and shall not be deemed to catestt part hereof or to affect the meaning thereof.




2. Choice of Law. This Agreement shall be governedhsylaws of Arizona, without regard to the conflodtlaws
provisions thereof.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, parties have executed this Agrent effective as of
the day and year first above written.

AVNET, INC.

By




EXHIBIT A
MUTUAL AGREEMENT TO ARBITRATE CLAIMS

| recognize that differences may arise between Aune. ("the Company") and me during or followinty employmer
with the Company, and that those differences mayay not be related to my employment. | understmtiagree th
by entering into this Agreement to Arbitrate Claifid\greement"). | anticipate gaining the benefits eo speedy
impartial dispute-resolution procedure.

Except as provided in this Agreement, the Federaitration Act shall govern the interpretation, @mement and ¢
proceedings pursuant to this Agreement. To thenéxbat the Federal Arbitration Act is inapplicabégplicable sta
law pertaining to agreements to arbitrate shallyapp

| understand that any reference in this Agreemeithé Company will be a reference also to all diwis, subsidiarie
and affiliates of the Company. Additionally, exceyst otherwise provided herein, any reference toQbmpany she
also include all benefit plans; the benefit plasminsors, fiduciaries, administrators, affiliatasd all successors &
assigns of any of them.

CLAIMS COVERED BY THE AGREEMENT

The Company and | mutually consent to the resatultip arbitration of all claims or controversiesléims™), whethe
or not arising out of my employment (or its terntioa), that the Company may have against me or ltinaay hav:
against the Company or against its officers, dinegtemployees or agents in their capacity as sudtherwise. Th
claims covered by this Agreement include, but ardimited to, claims for wages or other comperwatue; claims fc
breach of any contract or covenant (express ori@apl tort claims; claims for discrimination and rassmer
(including, but not limited to, race, sex, sexualentation, religion, national origin, age, maritstatus, medic
condition, handicap or disability); claims for béite(except where an employee benefit or pensian ppecifies th
its claims procedure shall culminate in an arbitraprocedure different from this one); and claiimsviolation of an
federal, state, or other governmental law, stateigylation, or ordinance, except claims excludethe section entitle
"Claims Not Covered by the Agreement."”

Except as otherwise provided in this Agreementhlibe Company and | agree that neither of us shiidte no
prosecute any lawsuit or administrative action éotinan an administrative charge of discriminationdny way relate
to any claim covered by this Agreement.

CLAIMS NOT COVERED BY THE AGREEMENT

Claims | may have for workers' compensation or yslegment compensation benefits are not covered Hig
Agreement.

Also not covered are claims by the Company forrinjive and/or other equitable relief including, Imatt limited to
claims for injunctive and/or other equitable refief unfair competition and/or the use and/or uhatized disclosure
trade secrets or confidential information, as taclwH understand and agree that the Company may aee obtai
relief from a court of competent jurisdiction.

REQUIRED NOTICE OF ALL CLAIMS AND STATUTE OF LIMITA'TIONS

The Company and | agree that the aggrieved parst give written notice of any claim to the othertpavithin one (1
year of the date the aggrieved party first has kedge of the event giving rise to the




claim; otherwise the claim shall be void and deemeatved even if there is a federal or state statfitenitations whicl
would have given more time to pursue the claim.

Written notice to the Company, or its officers,editors, employees or agents, shall be sent torésident at tr
Company's then-current address. | will be giveriteminotice at the last address recorded in myopes file.

The written notice shall identify and describe tiaure of all claims asserted and the facts upanhwéuch claims a
based. The notice shall be sent to the other pgroertified or registered mail, return receiptuested.

DISCOVERY

Each party shall have the right to take the deposibf one individual and any expert witness desigd by anothi
party. Each party also shall have the right to puo requests for production of documents to antypaAdditiona
discovery may be had only whete panel of arbitrators selected pursuant toAgieement so orders, upon a shov
of substantial need.

At least thirty (30) days before the arbitratiolme tparties must exchange lists of witnesses, inajudny expert, ar
copies of all exhibits intended to be used at thération.

SUBPOENAS
Each party shall have the right to subpoena wigsasd documents for the arbitration.
ARBITRATION PROCEDURES

The Company and | agree that, except as provideadisnAgreement, any arbitration shall be in aceaat with th
thencurrent Model Employment Arbitration Procedurestioé American Arbitration Association ("AAA") before
panel of three arbitrators who are licensed totmradaw in the state where the arbitration isatket place ("the Panel
The arbitration shall take place in or near the icitwhich | am or was last employed by the Company

The Panel shall apply the substantive law (andatveof remedies, if applicable) of the state in @vhihe claim arose,
federal law, or both, as applicable to the clain@s3erted: The Federal Rules of Evidence shallyapjle Panel, ar
not any federal, state, or local court or agentwllshave exclusive authority to resolve any disprdlating to th
interpretation, applicability, enforceability orrfoation of this Agreement, including but not lindteo any claim that ¢
or any part of this Agreement is void or voidabl&e Panel shall render an award and opinion infdha typically
rendered in labor arbitrations. The arbitrationlidba final and binding upon the parties.

The Panel shall have jurisdiction to hear and mte pre-hearing disputes and is authorized to hothparing
conferences by telephone or in person, as the Rigeehs necessary. The Panel shall have the aythomntertain
motion to dismiss and/or a motion for summary judgimby any party and shall apply the standards rpawg sucl
motions under the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure.

Either party, at its expense, may arrange for aagthe cost of a court reporter to provide a stesaigic record ¢
proceedings.




ARBITRATION FEES AND COSTS

The Company and | shall equally share the feescasts of the Panel. Each party shall pay for it @ests an
attorneys' fees, if any. However, if any party @ié/on a statutory claim that affords the prewgilparty attorneys' fee
or if there is a written agreement providing foedethe Panel may award reasonable fees to thailmgvarty.

INTERSTATE COMMERCE

| understand and agree that the Company is engagechnsactions involving interstate commerce ahat tm
employment involves such commerce.

REQUIREMENTS FOR MODIFICATION OR REVOCATION

This Agreement to arbitrate shall survive the teation of my employment. It can only be revokedwadified by
writing signed by me and an officer of the Compathat specifically states an intent to revoke ordifyo this
Agreement.

SOLE AND ENTIRE AGREEMENT

This is the complete agreement of the parties @nsibject of arbitration of disputes, except foy ambitratior
agreement in connection with any pension or bemddib. This Agreement supersedes any prior or agpdeaneoL
oral or written understanding on the subject. Ndyp@ relying on any representations, oral or t&rt on the subject
the effect, enforceability or meaning of this Agremt, except as specifically set forth in this Agrent.

CONSTRUCTION

If any provision of this Agreement is adjudged te ¥oid or otherwise unenforceable, in whole or artpsucl
adjudication shall not affect the validity of trewainder of the Agreement.

CONSIDERATION

The promises by the Company and by me to arbitidfierences, rather than litigate them before coortother bodie
provide consideration for each other.

NOT AN EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT

This Agreement is not, and shall not be constroecr¢ate, any contract of employment, express ptiétw. Nor doe
this Agreement in any way alter the "at-will" staf my employment.

VOLUNTARY AGREEMENT

| ACKNOWLEDGE THAT | HAVE CAREFULLY READ THIS AGREBMENT, THAT | UNDERSTAND ITS
TERMS, THAT ALL UNDERSTANDINGS AND AGREEMENTS BETWEN THE COMPANY AND ME
RELATING TO THE SUBJENS COVERED IN THE AGREEMENT ARCONTAINED IN IT, AND THAT | HAVE
ENTERED INTO THE AGREEMENT VOLUNTARILY AND NOT IN FEELIANCE ON ANY PROMISES Ol
REPRESENTATIONS BY THE COMPANY OTHER THAN THOSE COWNWINED IN THIS AGREEMENT
ITSELF.

| UNDERSTAND THAT BY SIGNING THIS AGREEMENT | AM GVING UP MY RIGHT TO A JURY TRIAL.




| FURTHER ACKNOWLEDGE THAT | HAVE BEEN GIVEN THE OPORTUNITY TO DISCUSS THI
AGREEMENT WITH MY PRIVATE LEGAL COUNSEL AND HAVE AMAILED MYSELF OF THAT
OPPORTUNITY TO THE EXTENT | WISH TO DO SO.

EMPLOYEE AVNET, INC.

Date: Date:



Exhibit 10.13

AVNET SUPPLEMENTAL
EXECUTIVE OFFICERS’ RETIREMENT PLAN
(2013 Restatement)




AVNET SUPPLEMENTAL
EXECUTIVE OFFICERS ' RETIREMENT PLAN

(2013 Restatement)

TABLE OF CONTENTS

ARTICLE 1 HISTORY, PURPOSE AND EFFECTIVE DATE

ARTICLE 2 DEFINITIONS

2.1 Definitions.

ARTICLE 3 PARTICIPATION

3.1 Participation.

ARTICLE 4 PLAN BENEFITS

4.1 Calculation of Retirement Benefits.

4.2 Normal Retirement; Form of Payment.

4.3 Early Retirement.
4.4 Death Benefit.

4.5 Disability Benefit.

4.6 Interest Adjustment For SMonth Delay Rule.

4.7 Minimum and Maximum Benefits Payable UnderPien.

ARTICLE 5 VESTING; NONCOMPETE REQUIREMENTS

5.1 Vesting of Total Retirement Benefit.

5.2 Impact of Confidentiality, No@€ompete and Noeolicitation Provisions.

ARTICLE 6 DISTRIBUTION PROCEDURES

6.1 Distribution of Benefits.

6.2 No Loans or Financial Hardship or$ervice Withdrawals.

6.3 Inability to Locate Participant.

6.4 Trust.
ARTICLE 7 ADMINISTRATION

7.1 Committee.

7.2 Committee Action.

7.3 Powers and Duties of the Committee.

7.4 Construction and Interpretation.

7.5 Information.

:
QD
m

bk Kk Kk Kk K K K KEKEREE K KEIK K E E B |
© oo oo loo loo N N N N N w lw lw v v Ik - o ko o ko lo Il IN N

|I—\
©



7.6 Compensation, Expenses and Indemnity.

7.7 Disputes.
ARTICLE 8 MISCELLANEOUS

8.1 Unsecured General Creditor.

|I—\
©

(e 7

|l\)
=




TABLE OF CONTENTS

8.2 Restriction Against Assignment.

8.3 Withholding.

8.4 Amendment, Modification, Suspension or Termaorat

8.5 Governing Law.

8.6 Receipt or Release.

8.7 Notices.

8.8 Headings and Gender.

8.9 Plan Not a Contract of Employment.

8.10 Construed as a Whole.
8.11 Severability.

8.12 Successors.

8.13 Privilege.

BRRRKRERERRRRIR
w N N N N N N N - - -

|l\)
w




AVNET SUPPLEMENTAL
EXECUTIVE OFFICERS ' RETIREMENT PLAN

(2013 Restatement)

ARTICLE 1
HISTORY, PURPOSE AND EFFECTIVE DATE

Avnet, Inc., a New York corporation (tti€ompany” ), previously established a program to provide suppleat life
insurance and retirement income benefits for Bigibxecutives (as defined herein), known as theef\Executiv:
Officers' Supplemental Life Insurance and Retirenignefits Program (th&rogram” ) effective July 1, 1979 (il
“Original Effective Date” ). The Program was amended and restated in 2008 a&vtiet Supplemental Executi
Officers' Retirement Plan (tH®lan” ), effective generally as of January 1, 2009, to cgmyth changes made to |
Code (as defined herein) through the enactmentokeCSection 409A by the American Jobs CreationcA@004 an
to incorporate certain other changes. The Prograsiamended and restated again in 2012, and isyhaneénded ar
restated, to implement certain changes.

The Plan is intended to be a nonqualified defegethpensation plan under the Code that provides|sogmta
retirement income to a select group of managemertighly compensated employees. Accordingly, then@an)
intends that the Plan will not be a qualified mtient plan under Code Section 401(a), and tha®ldmre will be exemj
from the requirements of parts 2, 3 and 4 of Tité ERISA. Moreover, the Company intends thattérens of this Pla
document and the administration of the Plan stelhizompliance with the applicable requirementdenrCode Sectic
409A. Prior to the Final Section 409A Effective Bdas defined herein), the Company administeredPtiogram ii
accordance with a good faith interpretation of C8éetion 409A. Any provision in the Program or Bian that cann
be construed consistent with such intent shall rmatally be deemed to be severable from the piassof the
Program or this Plan document and shall have reefor effect.




ARTICLE 2
DEFINITIONS

2.1 Definitions .

Whenever the following words and phrases are uselis Plan, with the first letter capitalized, yh&hall hav
the meanings specified below:

(a) “ Active Participant ” shall mean a Participant who, for a particular Pf&sr, is an Eligibl
Executive and received Compensation from an Employe

(b) “ Actuarial Equivalent ” shall mean the present value of a Participant'saaidnpotal Retiremel
Benefit (as defined in Section 4.1) determined byg the Present Value Interest Factor in effecthenfirst busine:
day of the month preceding the Participant's applee Payment Calculation Date and no charge fotatityr factors
No actuarial increase will be provided for benpfiyments made after age 65 except as otherwisdispy providec
herein.

(c) “ Affiliate " means the Company and any other entity that igooid be, aggregated and treated
single employer with the Company under Code Sestid#(b) (controlled group of corporations) or 4)4@ group c
trades or businesses, whether or not incorporateder common control); provided, however, that amershi
threshold of at least 50% shall be used hereundézad of the 80% minimum ownership threshold wwaild otherwis
apply under such Code sections.

(d) “ Avnet Pension Plan’ shall mean the Avnet Pension Plan, as amendedraefiect from time t
time, and any successor qualified retirement gienetto as designated by the Company from timerte.ti

(e) “ Beneficiary ” or “ Beneficiaries” shall mean the person or persons, including aee,gierson
representative or other fiduciary, last designatedriting by a Participant in accordance with prdares established
the Committee to receive the benefits specifieceineder in the event of the Participant's death. Béoeficiarn
designation shall become effective until it isdileith the Committee. If there is no Beneficiarysigmation in effec
then the Participant's surviving spouse shall lgeBbneficiary. If there is no surviving spouse @caive any benefi
payable in accordance with the preceding sentdheeduly appointed and currently acting personptegentative (
the Participant's estate (which shall include eithe Participant's probate estate or living trebgll be the Beneficial
In any case where there is no such personal regegse of the Participant's estate duly appoirged acting in thi
capacity within 90 days after the Participant'stidéar such extended period as the Committee détesnis reasonak
necessary to allow such personal representatilde tppointed, but not to exceed 180 days aftelPéntcipant's deatt
then a Participant's Beneficiary shall mean thesqeror persons who can verify by affidavit or coortler to th
satisfaction of the Committee that they are legaliyitled to receive the benefits specified hereunth the event ai
amount is payable under the Plan to a minor, paysteal not be made to the minor, but instead df&fpaid (a) to th
person's living parent(s) to act as custodianif (thiat person's parents are then divorced, andpamnent is the sole
primary custodial parent, to such custodial pacerft) if no parent of that person is then living,




to a custodian selected by the Committee to haddftimds for the minor under the Uniform Gifts toridis Act (o
similar statute) in effect in the jurisdiction irhieh the minor resides. If no parent is living ahd Committee decid
not to select another custodian to hold the fumdgte minor, then payment shall be made to thg dppointed ar
currently acting guardian of the estate for theanior, if no such guardian is duly appointed andenily acting withii
60 days after the date the amount becomes payzderent shall be deposited with the court havimgsgliction ove
the estate of the minor.

() “ Board of Directors” or “ Board ” shall mean the Board of Directors of the Company.
(9) “ Change of Control” means the date of the earliest to occur of thieieng events:
(1) the acquisition by any individual, entity or gro(waithin the meaning of Section 13(d)(3) or 1

(d)(2) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, meaded (the ‘Exchange Act”) (a “ Person”) of beneficia
ownership (within the meaning of Rule 13dsromulgated under the Exchange Act) of 50% orenadreither
(A) the then outstanding shares of common stodk®iCompany or (B) the combined voting power of ttrer
outstanding voting securities of the Company esditio vote generally in the election of memberthefBoar:
of Directors; provided, however, that the followitrgnsactions shall not constitute a Change of @buinde
this subsection (1): (x) any acquisition directtprh the Company (excluding an acquisition by virtfethe
exercise of a conversion privilege), (y) any acjois by the Company, or (z) any acquisition by amgploye:
benefit plan (or related trust) sponsored or maiethby the Company or any Affiliate;

2) the individuals who, as of the Effective Date, ddoge the Board (the Incumbent Board ")
are replaced during any twelve- (12apnth period by new Board members whose appointmenbminatiol
was not endorsed by a majority of the Incumbentr@oprovided, however, that any individual becoma
director subsequent to the Effective Date whosetiele, or nomination for election by the Compa
stockholders, was approved by a vote of at leasajarity of the directors then comprising the Indaent Boar:
shall be considered as though such individual waseeber of the Incumbent Board, but excluding fos
purpose any such individual whose appointment onination to the Board occurs as a result of anahait
threatened election contest with respect to thetiele or removal of any member of the Board, oreotictual ¢
threatened solicitation of proxies or consents,obyon behalf of a Person other than a majorityhef thei
Incumbent Board; or

3) approval by the stockholders of the Company of mpmete liquidation or dissolution of t
Company or the sale or other disposition of alswbstantially all of the assets of the Companyo(ie or mor
transactions) and, in either case, the consummafisach transaction.

(h) “ Code” shall mean the Internal Revenue Code of 198@nasnded.




(i) “ Committee” shall mean the Committee appointed by the Boaatitoinister the Plan in accorda
with Article 7. As of the date hereof, the Comnatie the Compensation Committee of the Board.

) “ Company” shall mean Avnet, Inc., a New York corporation, agcessor corporation or entity
successor thereto) and its (or their) assigns.

(k) “ Compensation” shall mean a Participant's Incentive Compensaifoany, and Salary, if an
earned during a Plan Year.

() “ Covered Compensation’ means the average of the highest two (2) out ofthst current five (¢
full Plan Years of Compensation earned by a Paditi, as determined on the last day of the Fisealron or prior t
the date that he ceases to be an Active Participant

(m) “ Death Benefit Earnings” shall mean the total amount of a Participant's Gamgtion for the la
full Fiscal Year, as determined on or prior to tlae of the Participant's death.

(n) “ Disability ” means an event that would enable an Active Paattipo become eligible for
disability benefit under the Avnet Pension Plar. parposes of this Plan, the tern$éction 409A Disability” means
Disability that also qualifies as a “disability” der the Section 409A Rules.

(0) “ Early Retirement Date” means the date when a Participant has incurreghar&en From Servi
and has attained age 55.

(p) “ Effective Date” means the date this restatement of the Plan paosaed by the Board.

(a) “ Eligible Executive ” means an executive officer of the Company who heenbdesignated

eligible to participate in the Plan by action oétBoard, the Committee or the Avnet, Inc. ExecuB@mmittee. |
requested by the Committee, such an officer willdmeEligible Executive only if he or she agreeswinting, tc
terminate any prior or existing obligation of an joyer providing supplemental life insurance andionqualifie
retirement benefits other than pursuant to the Audeferred Compensation Plan. No individual shatdme a
Eligible Executive after December 31, 2011.

(n “ Employer ” shall mean the Company and any Affiliate that rdgpéed this Plan with the consen
the Board.

(s) “ ERISA ” shall mean the Employee Retirement Income Secigt of 1974, as amended.

(t) “ Final Section 409A Effective Dat€ shall mean the date when a rule or requirementruheéefina

regulations issued by the Secretary of the Treasecame effective under Code Section 409A, and gbatrally refe
to January 1, 2009.




(u) “ Inactive Participant ” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 3.1.

(v) “ Incentive Compensation” shall mean any cash incentive compensation or bpayable to
Participant by an Employer for a Plan Year in addito the Participant's Salary, but determinedmi® reduction fc
any salary deferral contributions to either a piscribed under Code Section 125 or 401(k) or ttaeef Deferre
Compensation Plan.

(w) “ Interim Section 409A Effective Date” shall mean the date when a particular provisiomués
promulgated under Code Section 409A became effgctind shall generally mean January 1, 2005. The ‘ténterim
Section 409A Period” means the period beginning on or after the InteBeation 409A Effective Date and enc
immediately before the Final Section 409A Effectivate.

(x) “ Normal Retirement Date” shall mean the date when a Participant attain6agend has incurrec
Separation From Service.

) “ Offset Plan Amount” shall mean, as of the date that any benefit paymseahie under the Plan,
amount payable on such date under all Offset Rdefined below). For example, with respect Radicipant's Toti
Retirement Benefit, the Offset Plan Amount for eatthe 24 monthly payments described in Sectid(ad.shall be tt
amount payable under the Avnet Restoration Plad émy other Offset Plan) for each such month aedGfiset Pla
Amount for the final lump-sum payment describe®attion 4.1(a) shall be the amount of the finalgesum paymel
due under the Avnet Restoration Plan (and any diifiset Plan).

(2) “ Offset Plan” or “ Offset Plans” shall mean the Avnet Restoration Plan and any atbequalifie
deferred compensation plan designated by the Cdear(iother than the Avnet Deferred Compensation)Pfaovided
however, that such other nonqualified deferred camsption plan shall constitute an Offset Plan ¢mlthe extent th.
it provides for payment at substantially the saimme tand in substantially the same form as presdiyethis Plan.

(aa) “ Original Effective Date ” shall mean July 1, 1979.

(ab) “ Participant ” shall mean any Eligible Executive who becomes ativAdarticipant in accordar
with Section 3.1.

(ac) “ Payment Calculation Date” means, with respect to installment payments, tis¢ husiness day
a month when such payments would begin withoutrtetiathe SixMonth Delay Rule and, with respect to a lump
payment, the first business day of a month wheh pagment is scheduled to be made under the terthe @lan.

(ad) “ Plan” shall mean the Avnet Supplemental Executive OfficBetirement Plan, as set forth he
and amended from time to time.

(ae) “ Plan Year” shall mean the fiscal year of the Company.

(af) “ Present Value Interest Factor’” means an annual discount rate equal to the grea¥o or th

interest yield reported in the Wall Street Jouoalanother independent source




designated by the Committee from time to time) Oryéar United States Treasury Notes as determinetherfirs
business day of a month preceding a ParticipaaysEnt Calculation Date.

(ag) “ Salary ” shall mean the Participant's base salary payablanbfzmployer for a Plan Year, |
determined prior to reduction for any salary defecontributions to a plan described under Codei@ec125 or 401(}
or the Avnet Deferred Compensation Plan.

(ah) “ Section 409A Change in Control’ means either a “change in the ownershgh”the Compan
“change in effective control” of the Company or &flge in the ownership of a substantial portiorhef assetsodf the
Company as determined in accordance with the Sedid®A Rules. To the extent required under thei@ect09A
Rules, a Section 409A Change in Control shall herdgned by reference to an Affiliate instead a thompany.

(ai) “ Section 409A Rules’ mean regulations issued under Code Section 409éthmr official an
general guidance issued by the Secretary of thastlirg, the Commissioner of the Internal Revenugi&epr either ¢
their delegates interpreting Code Section 409A.

(aj) “ Separation From Service’ means the date when an Active Participant resigis dismissed frol
the employment of the Company and all of its Adfiis and has incurred a “separation from servicatcordance wii
the Section 409A Regulation.

(ak) “ Six-Month Payment Delay Rule” means the requirement under Code Section 409A4d
Specified Employee must delay his or her distritrutirom a “nonqualified deferred compensation plémithin the
meaning of the Section 409A Rules) for six (6) nhenifter Separation From Service, but subject folicable
exceptions under the Section 409A Rules for distiiims due to death, a Section 409A Disability d8extion 409,
Change in Control.

(al) “ Specified Employe€’ means a Participant who is considered to be § %mployee”under Cod
Section 416(i) determined in accordance with pracesl consistent with the Section 409A Rules. WitHimoiting the
generality of the foregoing, a Participant's statsi® key employee shall be based on a calendarbgganning with th
calendar year preceding the Interim Section 409fedive Date and, if the Participant is then a leeyployee, th
Participant shall be considered to be a SpecifieglByee for the 12ronth period beginning on the April 1st follow
the end of the calendar year when he or she wasndligied to be a key employee.

(am) “ Termination of Employment ” means the date on which a Participant leaves aséwace witl
all Employers under the employment policies of @mmpany. A Participant's Termination of Employmeraty be afte
his Separation From Service.

(an) “ Trust ” shall mean any irrevocable rabbi trust that magdtablished from time to time relating
the Plan; provided, however, that the terms of duest may provide that after all liabilities torBeipants have bet
satisfied under this Plan, as certified in writing all Participants, any remaining assets undetrtist may be return
to the Company.

(ao) “ Years of Service” means each full 12aonth period (based on a Participant's anniverdatg o
hire) that a Participant has worked for an Emplppat excluding service with




an entity that has been acquired or purchased linguoyer. If a Participant incurs a Terminationewhployment, i
then rehired by an Employer and again becomes #meARarticipant, he or she will be given credit &bl full Years o
Service completed prior to the Termination of Enyphent. If a Participant ceases to be an Activeiépant prior tc
incurring a Termination of Employment, he or shd wot accumulate any additional Years of Servioeer the Pla
prior to becoming an Active Participant again.




ARTICLE 3
PARTICIPATION

3.1 Participation .

An Eligible Executive shall become an Active Papiant in the Plan by completing such forms or agreset:
that the Committee, in its sole discretion, mayurex] and passing any physical examination requfoeda life
insurance policy relating to the Participant. AtRgrant who no longer meets the definition of digile Executive
shall become an “Inactive Participanti the Plan if he or she is vested under Sectidn Botwithstanding ar
provision contained herein to the contrary, an finacParticipant who incurs a Termination of Emptent o
Disability may not continue participation in theaRIwith respect to the Death Benefit describedeictiBn 4.4.




ARTICLE 4
PLAN BENEFITS

4.1 Calculation of Retirement Benefits.

Subject to the vesting and other requirements Gtl&r5 hereof and the provisions of Sections 4.3, and 4."
a Participant's ‘Total Retirement Benefit ” means the Participant's Basic Annual RetirementeBe(as define
below) payable for ten (10) years (with the amaquaitl each year being equal to the Basic Annuakr&agnt Benefit
provided, however, that if an Offset Plan exidt® Total Retirement Benefit shall be offset by bengayable unds
the Offset Plans. Such offset shall be applieddducing each payment of the Total Retirement Bebgfithe Offse
Plan Amount (as described in Section 4.2(b)).

A Participant's‘Basic Annual Retirement Benefit” shall mean an amount determined under the follo
formula:

(@) First, the Participant's age (based on full yeatsTermination of Employment _plugears of Servic
(based on full years) at Termination of Employmsmdll be_dividedy 80; provided that this shall not exceed one
and

(b)  Second, the figure determined in subparagraph lfayeashall be multiplied by 36% of a Participe
Covered Compensation;

provided, however, that if the Participant haseast 25 Years of Service, of which at least 10s/ae& for service as
Eligible Executive, the number in paragraph (a)lgba one (1), such that the total Basic AnnualifeRatent Benefit i
36% of his Covered Compensation.

For the avoidance of doubt, a Participant's Basioual Retirement Benefit is calculated as the tatabun
payable over a 1&wonth period. The timing and methods of paying gi€tpant's Total Retirement Benefit shall
determined in accordance with the foregoing applearovisions of this Plan document.

4.2 Normal Retirement; Form of Payment.

Subject to the provisions and requirements of fgtcof the Plan and Section 4.3 below, a Partidipall begir
receiving payment of his or her Total Retiremenn&é effective on the first business day of thenthoafter th
Participant's Normal Retirement Date; provided, &esv, that, if the Participant is subject to the-Bionth Paymer
Delay Rule, payment will not commence until on fielathe first business day of the seventh (7thhthdollowing the
date when the Participant has incurred a Separ&tiom Service. Payment of a Participant's TotairBeient Benef
shall be made in accordance with the following:

(@) Retirement Before Final Section 409A Effective Daté a Participant retires before the Final Sec
409A Effective Date (including during the Interine@ion 409A Period), then his or her Total Retiratr@enefit will
be made in 120 equal monthly installments effectivieh the first month for which payment is madeeafthe
Participant's retirement date and ending on thehl2@nth thereafter; provided, however, that th&t flayment made
a Specified Employee




will include payments that would have otherwiserbeede but for the Sikdionth Payment Delay Rule. If a Particip
dies after becoming an Inactive Participant, budrgo receiving 120 monthly payments, the remajnirtion of his c
her Total Retirement Benefit shall be paid to thetiBipant's Beneficiary in the same time and marae if the
Participant had not died.

(b) Retirement on or After the Final Section 409A Efifee Date. If a Participant retires on or after the F
Section 409A Effective Date, then his or her T&atirement Benefit will be paid as follows:

(1) First, the Participant will receive 24 equal mowtimstallments, each equal to (i) oh20th of thi
Participant's Total Retirement Benefit, minus tfi¢ Offset Plan Amount for the applicable monthtfte exter
that an Offset Plan exists). If the ParticipanaiSpecified Employee and the 3#tenth Payment Delay R
applies, the first payment made will include thgrmants that would have been due before the datieeofirs
payment if not for the Six-Month Payment Delay Rule

(2) Second, the Participant will receive a lusym payment within 90 days after the first busirdss,
of the 25th month following the Participant's retirent date. Such lungum payment shall be equal to (i)
Actuarial Equivalent of the remaining 96 monthlypeents, minus (ii) the applicable Offset Plan Ami{ta the
extent that an Offset Plan exists).

If a Participant dies after becoming an InactivetiBi@ant, but prior to receiving his or her 24 ntug payments ¢
lump sum payment, as the case may be, all remapaygnents shall be made to the Participant's Bengfiin the
same time and manner as if the Participant hadiedt

4.3 Early Retirement .

A Participant who has incurred an Early RetiremPate will begin receiving payment of his or her al
Retirement Benefit on the first business day ofrttenth coincident with, or next following, his oetEarly Retireme
Date; provided, however, that, if the Participatsubject to the SikMonth Payment Delay Rule, payment will
commence until the first business day of the séwvérth) month on or after the date when the Paditi has incurred
Separation From Service. A Participant may makeworiten election with the Committee to defer paysebeyon
his or her Early Retirement Date provided that etection is filed with the Committee at least oreary before tr
Participant's Early Retirement Date, payments a&layeéd for at least five (5) years after that date the electic
applies to both this Plan and any Offset Plan. Aiépant's Total Retirement Benefit payable in mection with his ¢
her Early Retirement Date shall be payable in atanore with the applicable provisions of subparadgr@) or (b) ¢
Section 4.2 above and shall be reduced by: (A)%.28% each of the first 60 months by which the canoement ¢
retirement payments (determined before applicatiothe SixMonth Payment Delay Rule) precedes the first biss
day of the month coincident with or next followitige Participant's 65th birthday and (B) 0.50% facteof the next €
months (i.e., the 61%through 120") months by which the commencement of retiremeghy@ats precedes the fi
business day of the month coincident with or nelofving the Participant's 698 birthday. Such reduction shall
applied before subtraction of any Offset Plan Antolfrthe Participant's Separation From Serviceuosbefore
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his Termination of Employment €.9., by reason of the Company requesting, without $eduthat the Participa
reduce his work hours or stop reporting to workobethe end of an applicable notice period), tlieicgon required k
this Section 4.3 shall be determined based on dh@reencement date that would apply if the Partidipag®eparatic
From Service had occurred on the date of his Teaticin of Employment.

4.4 Death Benefit.

If an Active Participant dies before incurring ar@ation of Employment, his or her Beneficiary lshze
entitled to receive, in lieu of a benefit under {8#t 4.1, a lump sum payment equal to 200% of tmeunt of th
Participant's Death Benefit Earnings (th®é&ath Benefit”) within 90 days following the Participant's deathdahe
Beneficiary may not determine the calendar yearnathe lump sum payment is made); provided, howevet, if ar
Offset Plan exists, such Death Benefit shall beiced by the Participant's Offset Plan Amount (esped as a lun
sum payable on the same day as the Death Berldfé)Company may maintain an insurance policy (ticigs) on th
life of the Participant to pay the Death BenefinyApayment of insurance proceeds to the Benefiqpahether pai
directly by the insurer or otherwise) shall be teglaas a payment made under the Plan and shall toward satisfyin
all obligations under the Plan. If the proceedseaurathy insurance policy exceed the amount of tretlDBenefit (or an
other benefit) payable under the Plan, the excessepds shall first be applied toward payment ef Barticipant
benefit under the Avnet Restoration Plan (as ihsexcess had been paid under the Avnet RestorBtaom) and ar
remaining proceeds shall be paid to the Company.

4.5 Disability Benefit .

An Active Participant who becomes unable to worle da Disability may be eligible to receive a Didap
Pension (as defined below). To be eligible to nee@i Disability Pension, a Participant must have:

(@) completed at least five (5) Years of Service adleime employee of an Employer;

(b)  ceased working for the Company due to Disabilityoke his or her Normal Retirement Date ol
applicable, Early Retirement Date; and

(c) filed an application for disability benefits undée Avnet Pension Plan, any disability plan spoadar
maintained by an Employer or, for Participants vene not covered under any such plan and residecouatry othe
than the United States of America, a disabilitygoeon established or maintained under the nati@ves lof his or he
resident country.

A Participant's annual Disability Pension” shall be equal to 13% of his or her Death BendBtgrmined as
the Participant had died on the date he or sh@ssdonsidered to be Disabled under the Planjhéf Participant
Disability qualifies as a Section 409A Disabilityis or her Disability Pension will be paid overea t(10) year peric
(220 monthly payments) commencing on the first iess day of the month on or after the Particip@disability date
If the Participant's Disability does not qualify @aSection 409A Disability, his or her Disabiliteiision shall be paid
the time and in the form prescribed by Sectiongh).@Retirement on or After Final Section 409A
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Effective Date) and 4.3 (Early Retirement). If afisét Plan exists, each Disability Pension paynséall be reduced |
the applicable Offset Plan Amount.

If a Participant dies prior to receiving all of theonthly payments required by this Section 4.5, rdraaining
payments shall be paid to the Participant's Beiejias follows: (i) if the Participant's Disabjliualifies as a Secti
409A Disability, in a lump sum equal to the ActahrifEquivalent of the remaining monthly paymentshiai 90 day
following the Participant's death (and the Benafigzimay not determine the calendar year when tfmp lsum payme
is made); or (ii) if the Participant's Disabilityoels not qualify as a Section 409A Disability, irc@clance with tr
schedule prescribed by Section 4.2.

Payments made under this Section 4.5 shall beein df any payment that a Participant or Beneficiagy
otherwise be entitled to under the preceding Sestaj this Article 4; provided, however, that ietRarticipant is 100
vested in his or her Total Retirement Benefit dml Actuarial Equivalent of his or her Total Retiesmh Benefit (befor
application of the required offset) is greater thiaa Actuarial Equivalent of his or her DisabiliBension (befol
application of the required offset), the Actuaiijuivalent of his or her Disability Pension (befagplication of th
required offset) shall be increased to be equ#iidcActuarial Equivalent of his or her Total Retient Benefit (befol
application of the required offset).

4.6 Interest Adjustment For Six-Month Delay Rule.

Any payments that are delayed under the Plan duthdoSixMonth Delay Rule will include interest
accordance with this Section 4.6. The interesewh delayed monthly payment will be calculatecassply, but in a
cases will be based on the Present Value InteeesbFin effect on the Participant's Payment Cakiuh Date. Intere
on each delayed monthly payment will be calculated daily basis starting with the date that thgment would hav
otherwise been made (if not for the 3itonth Delay Rule) and ending with the day priottie actual payment date,
a per annum basis and based on a 365 day yeartfwitictual number of days elapsed).

4.7 Minimum and Maximum Benefits Payable Under the Plan

Effective June 1, 2012, notwithstanding any oth@vision of the Plan, the sum of (i) the Actuafajuivalen
of a Participant's total benefit payable under tRlan (after applying the required offset), plug tfie Actuaria
Equivalent of the Participant's total benefit pdgalnder the Offset Plans (which, in the case efAkinet Restoratic
Plan, shall be the balance of the Participant'sdRa&tson Account under the Avnet Restoration Plsimill not excee
$10 million.
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ARTICLE 5
VESTING; NON-COMPETE REQUIREMENTS

5.1 Vesting of Total Retirement Benéefit.

Subject to Section 5.2, a Participant will be 10@8éted in his or her Total Retirement Benefit bynpteting a
least 5 Years of Service as an Eligible Executivé lay meeting the requirements set forth in thistiSe 5.1 (a), (b) ¢
(c). Alternatively, if a Participant fails to metbte requirements set forth in this Section 5.10hshe will be 0% vest:
in his or her Total Retirement Benefit and, acaagtil, not entitled to receive retirement paymentgannection wit
his or her a Normal Retirement Date or Early Ratgat Date. The requirements of this Section 5.Jaar®llows:

(@) If the Participant incurs a Termination of Employrhdefore attaining age 50, he or she must
completed at least 20 Years of Service;

(b) If the Participant incurs a Termination of Employrhafter attaining age 50, but prior to attainingg &5
he or she must have completed at least 15 Ye&@smice; or

(c) If the Participant incurs a Termination of Employrmhen or after attaining age 55, he or she muse
completed 10 Years of Service.

5.2 Impact of Confidentiality, Non-Compete and NorSolicitation Provisions.

(@) Application of Employment Agreement Provisiondf at any time before or after Termination
Employment, the Committee determines that a Ppaiti has violated any of the terms and conditiohsan
employment agreement that is in place between tbenpany (or an Affiliate) and a Participant prohigt the
Participant from disclosing any confidential infation of the Company (or an Affiliate), competingwthe Compan
(or an Affiliate) or soliciting employees of the @pany (or an Affiliate), then all of the Particiggnbenefits under tl
Plan (including his or her Total Retirement Bendiisability Pension and Death Benefit) shall bedied. In suc
case, no payments, or further payments, will beentadhe Participant or his or her Beneficiary unitie Plan. To tt
maximum extent permitted under applicable law,@wenpany shall have the right to recover (in eqoityat law) an
payments made to, or on behalf of, a Participatitigf Section 5.2 is violated including, but nabied to, an action fi
restitution for unjust enrichment for improperlyiggdenefits under the Plan, and any payments nadeet Participal
shall be deemed to be held in a constructive trask recovered by the Company.

(b)  Provisions Not Contained in Employment Agreemetit a Participant does not have an employr
agreement with the Company (or an Affiliate), orsiich as agreement does not contain a prohibitrodisclosin
confidential information of the Company (or an Aiffie), competing with the Company (or an Affiliater soliciting
employees or customers of the Company (or an Afé)i, then the benefit forfeiture and benefit payhrestoratio
provisions of subparagraph (a) above shall applyafCommittee determines that the Participantiwated one of tF
following provisions:
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(1)

Restrictive CovenantsExcept as otherwise provided in a restrictiveec@ant agreement tl

expressly refers to benefits under this Plan, dutie period that the Participant is receiving iéheursuant t
the Plan, not to exceed two (2) years from the détthe Participant's retirement, the Participamalisnot
directly or indirectly, for his own benefit or foryith or through any other individual, firm, corpion
partnership or other entity:

(A)

Own, manage, operate, control, advise, investxiodjat as a 1% or less sharehold¢

a public company), loan money to, or participateassist in the ownership, management, operati
control of or be associated as a director, offieenployee, partner, consultant, advisor, creddagent
independent contractor or otherwise with, or acgpeen the use of his name by, any business erse
that is in direct competition with Avnet or anyitd subsidiaries within the geographic scope sehfm
such agreement; or

(B)

Hire, employ, solicit, or otherwise encourage dianany employees or consultant

Avnet or any of its subsidiaries to leave or termbéntheir employment with Avnet or such subsidiary.

(2) Use and Nondisclosure of Confidential Information

(A)

For purposes of this subparagraph 5.2(b)(3 ftlowing terms shall apply:

(1) “ Confidential Information " means that confidential busin
information of the Company or an Affiliate, whether not discovered, developed,
known by the Participant as a consequence of higament with the Company or
Affiliate. Without limiting the generality of theofegoing, Confidential Information sh
include information concerning customer identitgeds, buying practices and patte
sales and management techniques, employee effeetiseand compensation informat
supply and inventory techniques, manufacturing @sses and techniques, product de
and configuration, market strategies, profit andslanformation, sources of supj
product cost, gross margins, credit and other stemas and conditions. Confiden
Information shall also include, but not be limite information contained in manuz
memoranda, price lists, computer programs (sudhwentory control, billing, collectiol
etc.) and records prepared by, or on behalf of Gbmpany (or an Affiliate), whether
not designated, legended or otherwise identifiedti®y Company (or an Affiliate)
Confidential Information.

(ii) “ Developments ” mean those inventions, discover
improvements, advances, methods, practices anditees, concepts and ideas, whe
or not patentable, relating
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to present and prospective activities and prodoictse Company (or an Affiliate).

(B) A Participant will be in violation of this subparagh 5.2(b)(3) if he violates or dc
not comply with either (i), (ii) or (iii) below:

(i) Assignment of Developments Any and all Developmer
developed by the Participant (acting alone or imjwaction with others) during the per
of the Participant's employment with the Companygio Affiliate) shall be conclusive
presumed to have been created for or on behaffeo€Company (or an Affiliate) as pari
the Participant's obligations to the Company (oAé#iliate). Such Developments shall
the property of and belong to the Company (or afilidte) without the payment
consideration therefor in addition to the PartiaifgCompensation or benefits hereur
and the Participant hereby transfers, assigns andegs all of the Participant's right, t
and interest in any such Developments to the Cognfanan Affiliate) and shall exect
and deliver any documents that the Company deewsssary to effect such transfer
the demand of the Company.

(ii) Restrictions on Use and Disclosur&éhe Participant shall not
use or disclose at any time, except with the proitten consent of the CEO, ¢
Confidential Information which is or was obtainedazquired by the Participant while
the employ of the Company (or an Affiliate); prosd] however, that this provision s}
not preclude the Participant from (y) the use acldisure of such information whi
presently is known generally to the public or wheibsequently comes into the pu
domain, other than by way of disclosure in violatiof this provision or in any otk
unauthorized fashion, or (z) disclosure of suclnmfation required by law or court orc
provided that prior to such disclosure requiredldy or court order the Participant v
have given the Company at least three (3) busid&gs written notice (or, if disclosure
required to be made in fewer than three (3) busideys, then such notice shall be g
as promptly as practicable after determination thiatlosure may be required) of
nature of the law or order requiring disclosure #reddisclosure to be made in accordi
therewith.

(iif) Return of Documents Upon Termination of Employment w
the Company (and all of its Affiliates), the Paent shall forthwith deliver to the CE
all documents, customer lists and related documgmise and procedure manuals
guides, catalogs, records, notebooks and simiparsitories of
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or containing Confidential Information and/or Demenents, including all copies ther
his possession or control whether prepared by hiotters.
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ARTICLE 6
DISTRIBUTION PROCEDURES

6.1 Distribution of Benefits .

Benefits under the Plan shall not be paid until Rlaeticipant or Beneficiary files any written dibtrtion forms
required by the Committee with the Company, anddbmmittee approves the distribution. If such foams not timel
filed or there is an administrative delay in makihg payment, then payment will be made at a ldate within th
same taxable year as the originally scheduled paymate under the Plan (and, if this occurs aftétagicipant’
Normal Retirement Date and was not due to the f#uthe Participant or Beneficiary, he or she wéiteive retroacti
payments with interest calculated in accordancé ®#ction 4.6). Payments delayed due to an admatiist delay o
behalf of the Company or the Committee will comnmeemo later than the 15th day of the third calenaiantr
following the originally scheduled payment date enthe Plan (and the first payment will include tledayed paymer
with interest calculated in accordance with Sectidhexcept as provided in Section 6.3 below); gled, however, th
if the calculation of the amount of payment under Plan is not administratively practicable (duevents beyond tl
control of the Participant or Beneficiary), the pant will be made in the first calendar year in ethihe calculation
the amount of the payment is administratively pcattie (and the first payment will include the geld payments wii
interest calculated in accordance with Sectionefkdept as provided in Section 6.3 below). No priovi®f this Sectio
6.1 shall be construed as permitting a ParticiparBeneficiary to directly or indirectly designdtes taxable year of
payment described in this Section, and this Sedidnshall be construed and limited as necessasgfféxtuate th
intent to comply with Code Section 409A.

6.2 No Loans or Financial Hardship or In-Service Withdrawals.

The Plan does not permit loans or financial hagshiin-service distributions.

6.3 Inability to Locate Participant .

In the event that the Committee is unable to loed®articipant or Beneficiary within two (2) yedofiowing the
Participant's 65th birthday, no payment will be mad his or her Total Retirement Benefit. HoweveRarticipant o
Beneficiary later claims such benefit prior to thepiration of a ten (10) year period from the Rgpnt's 65th birthda
such benefit shall be reinstated without interestasnings.

6.4 Trust.

In the event that a Change of Control occurs (omiminent), a Participant may direct that the Cony
establish a Trust with a financial institution onst company and deposit into the Trust cash, niaoke securities
insurance policies in an amount sufficient to fumd or her vested Total Retirement Benefit. The Gany ma
establish separate Trusts for each ParticipanherToust for all Participants, in its discretion.

17




ARTICLE 7
ADMINISTRATION

7.1 Committee.

A Committee shall be appointed by, and serve aptbasure of, the Board of Directors to administer Plar
The number of members comprising the Committed bleadletermined by the Board which may from timdintoe var
the number of members. A member of the Committeg rasign by delivering a written notice of resigoatto the
Board. The Board may remove any member by deligesircertified copy of its resolution of removalsiech membe
Upon his or her Termination of Employment or affilon with the Company, as the case may be, a peskal
automatically cease being a Committee member. \G@esun the membership of the Committee shall bedfpromptly
by the Board.

7.2 Committee Action.

The Committee shall act at meetings by affirmatreée of a majority of the members of the Committéry
action permitted to be taken at a meeting may kentavithout a meeting if, prior to such action, att®n consent to tt
action is signed by all members of the Committeg surch written consent is filed with the minuteghed proceeding
of the Committee. A member of the Committee shatlvote or act upon any matter which relates sdielgimself o
herself as a Participant. The Chairman or any atinber or members of the Committee designatethdoyChairma
may execute any certificate or other written digactton behalf of the Committee. Notwithstanding tbeegoing, th
Committee may delegate specific functions or dubes specific Committee member or members.

7.3 Powers and Duties of the Committee

The Committee shall enforce the Plan in accordandd its terms, shall be charged with the ger
administration of the Plan and shall have all peaegcessary to accomplish its purposes, includingnot by way ¢
limitation, the following:

(@) to construe and interpret the terms and provisain$is Plan and to remedy or correct any ambigs
omissions or inconsistencies contained therein;

(b) to compute and certify to the amount and kind ofdfiés payable to Participants and their Benefiegr
(c) to maintain all records that may be necessaryh®administration of the Plan;

(d) to provide for the disclosure of all informationdatihe filing or provision of all reports and statmts tc
Participants, Beneficiaries or governmental agenageshall be required by applicable law;

(e) to promulgate, administer and enforce such ruleste regulation of the Plan and procedures fo
administration of the Plan as are not inconsisiétt the terms hereof;
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() to appoint an administrator or any other agent, emdlelegate to them such powers and duti
connection with the administration of the Planres Committee may from time to time prescribe;

(g) to take all actions, and provide any necessaryardeor directions, with respect to any insuraraeies
obtained by an Employer relating to the Plan; and

(h) to take all actions set forth in a Trust agreement.

7.4 Construction and Interpretation .

The Committee shall have full discretion to constand interpret the terms and provisions of themPWwhict
interpretation or construction shall be final andding on all parties, including but not limited &m Affiliate or an'
Participant or Beneficiary. The Committee shall adster such terms and provisions of the Plan coedance with ar
and all laws applicable to the Plan.

7.5 Information .

To enable the Committee to perform its functiohg, Company shall supply full and timely informatitanthe
Committee on all matters relating to the Compensatif all Participants, their death or other caofstermination, an
such other pertinent facts as the Committee mayineq

7.6 Compensation, Expenses and Indemnity

(@) The members of the Committee shall serve withoaotpensation for their services hereunder.

(b) The Committee is authorized at the expense of thagany to employ such legal counsel as it may
advisable to assist in the performance of its dutiereunder. Expenses and fees in connection athdministration «
the Plan shall be paid by the Company, to the éxtert the Committee does not authorize paymemn faoTrust (il
accordance with the terms of a Trust).

(c) The Company shall indemnify and hold harmless tbeQittee and each member thereof, the Boa
Directors and any delegate of the Committee whansemployee of the Company against any and all resqs
liabilities and claims, including legal fees to eledl against such liabilities and claims arising @iutheir discharge
good faith of responsibilities under, or incideat the Plan, other than expenses and liabilitiesngr out of willful
misconduct. This indemnity shall not preclude sdgtther indemnification as may be available undesuranc
purchased by the Company or provided by the Compamger any bylaw, agreement or otherwise, as
indemnification is permitted under applicable law.

7.7 Disputes.

(@) Claims and Appeals Procedures
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Claims and appeals for participation or benefitdarthe Plan shall be filed in accordance with pdures establish
by the Committee or its designee. Except to thergxthe Committee provides otherwise, the procedofelaims an
appeals shall be set forth in the Summary of tha Pl

(b) Limitations on Bringing a Legal Action .

A legal action relating to a claim or right to b&teunder the Plan may be brought by, or on bebfla Participant «
Beneficiary only during a certain period. This peribegins after the appeal process has ended padagraph (t
above and ends 120 days thereafter. However, @vaot may a legal action be brought by, or on befiah Participar
more than one (1) year after the date when thacikemt knows (or should have known) of the existenf, or th
underlying facts allegedly supporting the clainright which is the basis of his or her claim oreasisn for benefits ¢
payments under, or relating to, the Plan; providealyever, that, if the formal claim or appeal igh@g unde
paragraph (a) or (b) above at the end of the ohgedr period, then such 120-day limitation rulalsapply.

(c) Impact of Delayed Payments under Code Section 409A

Notwithstanding the foregoing, if a Claimant fileslaim within 90 days after the latest date onclvta payment cou
be made to him or her under the Plan and the $edll®A Rules, and the claim or appeal has not lesalver
favorable to the Claimant by the 160th day aftehdatest date, the Claimant may take further eeiment measures
collect payments which the Claimant asserts aredawehim or her under the Plan; provided, howettea, if sucl
action is not taken within 180 days after suchdtatiate, the Claimant's action will not be presuteeble prompt und
the Section 409A Rules and this paragraph (d) siwalapply.
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ARTICLE 8
MISCELLANEOUS

8.1 Unsecured General Creditor.

Participants and their Beneficiaries, heirs, susoes and assigns shall have no legal or equitaiiiés, claims
or interests in any specific property or assetthefCompany. No assets of the Company shall be ureddr any tru:
(other than a Trust), or held in any way as calidteecurity for the fulfilling of the obligationsf the Company und
this Plan. Except as provided in a Trust, any dhafadhe Company's assets relating to the Plafi Beaand remain, tt
general unpledged, unrestricted assets of the Coynfgde Company's obligation under the Plan shalinerely that ¢
an unfunded and unsecured promise of the Compapgyanoney in the future, and the rights of theiBigants an
Beneficiaries shall be no greater than those oécun®d general creditors. It is the intention & @ompany that tr
Plan (and any Trust) be unfunded for purposesefibde and Title | of ERISA.

8.2 Restriction Against Assignment.

The Company shall pay all amounts payable hereunnlgrto the person or persons designated by the &
not to any other person or corporation. No pad Barticipant's benefits hereunder shall be lidri¢he debts, contrac
or engagements of any Participant, his or her Beiaey, or successors in interest. Except as maebeired by a vali
and recognizable qualified domestic relations otdeter ERISA, a Participant's benefits hereundall slot be subje:
to execution by levy, attachment, or garnishmentoprany other legal or equitable proceeding. A iBigdnt o
Beneficiary shall not have any right to alienateti@pate, sell, transfer, commute, pledge, encundreassign ar
benefits or payments hereunder in any manner wiagso If any Participant, Beneficiary or successomterest i
adjudicated bankrupt or purports to anticipateeredie, sell, transfer, commute, assign, pledgejreber or charge a
distribution or payment from the Plan, voluntardy involuntarily, the Committee, in its discretiomay cancel suc
distribution or payment (or any part thereof) tdarthe benefit of such Participant, Beneficiarysaccessor in intere
in such manner as is consistent with applicable law

8.3 Withholding .

There shall be deducted from each payment made timel€lan or Trust or any other Compensation payi&
the Participant (or Beneficiary) all taxes whicle aequired to be withheld by the Company in respestuch payme
or this Plan. The Company shall have the rightaduce any payment (or Compensation) by the amoluctst
sufficient to provide the amount of said taxes.

8.4 Amendment, Modification, Suspension or Termination

The Board of Directors may amend, modify, suspenteoninate the Plan in whole or in part by adapte
written instrument, except that no amendment, niatibn, suspension or termination shall have atsoactive effe
to reduce the amount of a Participant's vested Ratrement Benefit that has accrued as of the dathe amendmei
In addition, the Committee
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has the right to amend any Plan provision as l@angny such amendment does not cause a materiehsem the cos
incurred by the Company in connection with the Planthe event that this Plan is terminated, ai€lpent's veste
Total Retirement Benefit shall be distributed te tarticipant under the terms of the Plan in encteas of the date
termination and in compliance with the Section 40R4es.

8.5 Governing Law .

This Plan shall be construed, governed and adranedtin accordance with the laws of the State ozdha
without regard to its conflict of law provisionsdaexcept to the extent that its laws are preembpyethe laws of th
United States of America and, where applicable Sbetion 409A Rules.

8.6 Receipt or Release

Any payment to a Participant or the Participangmé&iciary in accordance with the provisions of Bien shal
to the extent thereof, be in full satisfaction df daims against the Committee and the Compangl{aing claim:
unrelated to this Plan). The Committee may reqsireh Participant or Beneficiary, as a conditioncpoent to suc
payment, to execute a receipt and release to dSteatt.e

8.7 Notices.

All notices or other communications by a Participtm the Company in connection with the Plan sha
deemed to have been duly given when received bpéueetary of the Company or by any other persaigdated b
the Company for the receipt of such notices or rotlmenmunications, in the form and at the locatipecified by th
Company.

8.8 Headings and Gender.

The headings to Sections in the Plan have beendadl for convenience of reference only. The mase
pronoun shall include the feminine and the singtiar plural, whenever appropriate. Except as otisernexpress
indicated, all references to Sections in the Pleall $e to Sections of the Plan.

8.9 Plan Not a Contract of Employment.

The Plan does not constitute a contract of employraad participation in the Plan does not give Riigible
Executive or Participant the right to be retainedhe employ of, or in a particular position wigm Employer or a rig
or claim to any benefit under the Plan, unless sigttt or claim was specifically achieved under tiiens of the Plan.

8.10 Construed as a Whole

The provisions of the Plan shall be construedwhlae in such manner as to carry out the provistbeseof an
shall not be construed separately without relatootine context.

8.11 Severability .
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If any provision of this Plan unrelated to its sgatnder Title | of ERISA as an unfunded plan naaired for |
select group of management or highly compensateployes is held to be invalid or unenforceable bgoart o
competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not ircipthe validity or enforceability of the remainipgovisions of th
Plan.

8.12 Successors

The terms and condition of the Plan and any Trhatl e binding on the Employers and their sucassanc
assigns.

8.13 Privilege.

The Company, Board, and Committee may engage aftsyaccountants, actuaries, consultants, and other
service providers to advise them on issues relatéfie Plan and their responsibilities hereunddreMthey do so, the
adviser's client is the Company, Board, or Commjttes applicable, and not any Eligible ExecutiatiBipant, or
Beneficiary. The Company, Board, and Committeel dieaéntitled to preserve the attorney-client peye and any
other privilege accorded to communications witleevise provider, and all other rights to maintaamtdentiality, to
the full extent permitted by law. No Eligible Exdime, Participant, or Beneficiary shall be perndtte review any
communication between the Company, Board, or Cotem(including any of their representatives, agentielegates
and any of their attorneys or other service prawddath respect to whom a privilege applies, untesmdated by a
court order.
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Article 1
Introduction

About the Plan

(a) Avnet, Inc., a New York corporation, established Avnet Restoration Plan effective January 1, 2@d.2gstore
certain retirement benefits that cannot be provigeder the Avnet Pension Plan, by reason of thidiraquirec
by Sections 401(a)(17) and 415 of the Code.

(b) The Plan is unfunded and is maintained primarihyth@ purpose of providing deferred compensatiorafeelec
group of management and highly compensated emoyée Plan shall not be subject to the partiaymedind
vesting, funding, or fiduciary requirements (P&t8, and 4 of Title I) of ERISA.

(c) Benefits due under the Plan shall be payable fl@general assets of the Company or, in the ssteadion of
the Plan Committee, from the assets of the EmployarTrust. All benefits under the Plan are sulfj@the
claims of the Company's general creditors in treneof the Company's bankruptcy or insolvency.

Effective Date
Except as otherwise expressly provided, the Plaffestive as of January 1, 2012.
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Article 2
Definitions

Definitions

For purposes of the Plan, unless the context gleanecessarily indicates the contrary, the follmwvords and
phrases shall have the meaning set forth in thieidehs below. Capitalized terms that are not aedi herein shall hay
the same meaning as under the Avnet Pension Plan.

(@)

(b)
()

(d)
()

(f)

(9)
(h)

“ Affiliate ” means the Company and any other entity that isooild be, aggregated and treated as a single
employer with the Company under Section 414(bxpof the Code; provided, however, that an ownershi
threshold of at least 50% shall be used hereumdézad of the 80% minimum ownership threshold waatld
otherwise apply under such sections of the Code.

“Avnet Pension Plai” means the Avnet Pension Plan, as in effect and éedefnom time to timi

“Beneficiary” means the Participant's beneficiary under the AlPeeision Plan; provided, however, that if the
Participant has a vested benefit under the SERMBdmeficiary under this Plan shall be his benaficunder th
SERP.

“Board” means the Board of Directors of the Comp

“Cause” means, for a Participant, the Participant's grassanduct; breach of any material term of any
employment agreement with the Company or an Aftétianaterial violation of the Company's or an Adfie's
code of conduct; willful breach, habitual neglectv@anton disregard of his duties; or convictioraa/ criminal
act.

“Change of Control” means the occurrence of any of the following evagnsvided that such event constitutes
a change in ownership or control under Section 406Bthe Code:

(1) The acquisition by any individual, entity or grofwathin the meaning of Treas. Reg. 8 1.409A-3(ijN})
(B)) of stock of the Company that, together withather stock held by such individual, entity oogp,
constitutes more than 50% of either: (A) the tlhetstanding shares of common stock of the Compa
(B) the combined voting power of the then outstagdioting securities of the Company entitled toevot
generally on the election of members of the Boprdyided, however, that the following transactions
shall not constitute a Change of Control under plaisagraph (1): (x) any acquisition directly froine t
Company (excluding an acquisition by virtue of éxercise of a conversion privilege), (y) any
acquisition by the Company, and (z) any acquisibiprany employee benefit plan (or related trust)
sponsored or maintained by the Company or an Aféli

2) The individuals who constitute the Board are repdbduring any 12-month period by new Board
members whose appointment or nomination was naireed by a majority of the individuals who were
members of the Board immediately before such 12timpariod; or

3) The sale or other disposition of substantiallyolihe assets of the Compa

“Code” means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amu

“Company” means Avnet, Inc., a New York corporation, and sungcessor there
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(i)

()
(k)
()

(m)

(n)

(0)

(p)

(a)

(r
(s)

(t)

(u)

v)

“Eligible Employee” means an individual who (1) is an “eligible empleyender the Avnet Pension Plan and
(2) is part of a select group of management andificompensated employees who are designated [®idne
Committee as eligible to accrue benefits undeiPtiaa.

“Employer” means the Company and any Affiliate that has adofpie Avnet Pension Pl
“ERISA” means the Employee Retirement Income Security At®d4, as amende

“Interest Credit” means the interest credited to a Participant'sdratgin Account for a Plan Year, as descr
in Section 4.01(b).

“Interest Crediting Rate” means, for any Plan Year, the annual interest tingdbercentage for such Plan Y
for Post-2010 Balances under the Avnet Pension PAanof January 1, 2012, the Interest CreditingeRe14%
per year.)

“Participant” means an individual who has commenced, and noedepatrticipation in the Plan in accordance
with Section 3.01.

“Payment Date” means, for a Participant, the date as of whichPmticipant's benefit under the Plan is
scheduled to be paid, as prescribed by Section Edy2a Participant who is also a participant | 8ERP, the
Payment Date shall be the “payment calculation’ddgtermined under the SERP.

“Plan” means this Avnet Restoration Plan, as set forthihend amended from time to tir
“Plan Committee” means the committee responsible for administehieg™an, as described in Section £
“Plan Year’ means the plan year under the Avnet Pension

“Qualified Plan Limits” means the limits on benefits that may accrue qudig under a tax-qualified defined
benefit plan pursuant to Section 401(a)(17) ofGoee and Section 415 of the Code.

“Restoration Account” means, for each Participant, the book-entry accdestribed in Section 4.01. The
establishment of a Restoration Account shall netllteén assets being set aside for the benefingfiadividual.
Immediately after the Participant's Payment Ddie balance of his Restoration Account shall be.zero

“Restoration Contribution Credit” means the amount contributed to a Participant'solRegn Account each
Plan Year as described in Section 4.01(a).

“Separation from Service’ means the date of an individual's “separation fsemvice” (within the meaning of
Section 409A(a)(2)(A)(i) of the Code) with the Eropér and its Affiliates, as determined by the Conypiza
accordance with Treas. Reg. 8§ 1.409A-1(h)(1). koppses of the Plan:

(1) An individual who is on a leave of absence (with &xpectation that he will return) and does noehav
statutory or contractual right to reemployment shaldeemed to have had
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(w)

)

a Separation from Service on the first date thatase than six months after the commencement df suc
leave of absence. However, if the leave of absendee to any medically determinable physical or
mental impairment that can be expected to lash fmontinuous period of six months or more, and such
impairment causes the individual to be unable téop@ the duties of his position of employment aya
substantially similar position of employment, thregeding sentence shall be deemed to refer to a 29-
month period rather than to a six-month period; and

(2) A sale of assets to an unrelated buyer that resu#ts individual working for the buyer or one t« i
affiliates shall constitute a Separation from Ssgvior such individual unless the Company, with the
buyer's written consent, provides otherwise iningitbefore the closing of such sale.

“SERP” means the Avnet Supplemental Executive Officerir&®aent Plan, as in effect and amended from
time to time.

“Trust” means a grantor trust established pursuant tesadgreement or other written instrument that {@es
that the assets of such trust are subject to clafrareditors of the Company in the event of itakvaptcy or
insolvency, (b) states that such trust shall evacable until all claims for benefits under thand, programs,
agreements, and other arrangements covered byrsistinave been satisfied, and (c) complies wi¢h th
applicable provisions of Section 409A of the Code.

Rules of Construction

(@)

(b)
()

(d)

(e)

(f)

(9)

Gender and NumbeWords used in the masculine gender shall be deé¢onefer to females as well as males.
Unless otherwise expressly provided, words useddrsingular form shall include the plural form,evh
appropriate, and vice versa.

Include. The words “include” and “includingshall mean including, but not limited

Statutes and Requlation&ach reference to a statute or regulation ordiatutory or regulatory provision shall
refer to that provision (or to a successor provisibsimilar import) as currently in effect, as arded, or as
reenacted, and to any regulations and other fogudince of general applicability issued thereunder

Laws. Each reference to a law shall include any statetgulation, rule, court case, or other requiregmen
established by an exchange or a governmental atytiooragency, and applicable law shall include taylaw
that imposes requirements in order to avoid adviasseonsequences.

Headings Headings at the beginning of articles and sestimreof are for convenience of reference, shalbe
considered a part of the text of the Plan, and sledlinfluence its construction.

Context. The provisions of the Plan shall be construed a$ole in such manner as to carry out the prowssio
and purpose thereof, and shall not be construeataigy without relation to the context.

Timing of Payments
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1) The phrase “as soon as practicable after” or amylasi phrase shall mean the earliest administritive
practicable date after the relevant date or eywot/ided that, in accordance with Treas. Reg. §9443
(b), such date shall be no later than the latén dfie last day of the calendar year in whichrglevant
date or event occurs or (ii) the 90th day followthg occurrence of the relevant date or event.

2) To the extent that any payment under the Plan reapdide within a specified number of days, or as
as practicable, on or after any date or the oconug®f any date or event, the date of payment biall
determined by the Company or the Plan Committets isole discretion, and not by any Participant,
Beneficiary, or other individual.
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Article 3
Eligibility, Participation, and Vesting

Eligibility and Participation

(@)

(b)

()

(d)

Eligibility to participate in the Plan shall be lit®d to a select group of management and highlypsorsated
employees who are identified and classified byRlam Committee as Eligible Employees.

An individual who is designated as an Eligible Eaygle shall enter the Plan as of the date deterntipede
Plan Committee; provided that such date shall beamnber than the later of (1) January 1, 20142dthe
Participant's most-recent entry date under the AReasion Plan. The entry date for each Participhall be as
reflected in the Plan's records, unless the Planritee or the Board determines that such recafiisct an
administrative error.

If a Participant is entitled to benefits under bitis Plan and the SERP, his benefit under the SgERBther a
retirement benefit, disability benefit, or deatmétt) shall be offset by his benefit under thiaRlSuch offset
shall be determined in accordance with the terntb@SERP.

An individual who becomes a Participant shall caundi to be a Participant until all benefits payabider the
Plan to him and his Beneficiaries have been pafdlinif a Participant's Separation from Serviaeors before
his benefit under the Plan has become vested,dllecglase to be a Participant upon such Separfton
Service.

Vesting

(@)

(b)

()

No benefit shall be payable under the Plan untdsas become vested under this Section 3.02 oroBetD2
(relating to termination of the Plan).

Except as provided in subsection (c), below, ottiSe&.02 (relating to termination of the PlanRarticipant
shall be vested in his benefit under the Plan drilis Retirement Income under the Avnet Pensiani®$
vested. If the Participant is not vested at thetohhis Separation from Service, his Restorationcint shall b
forfeited.

If a Participant's employment with the Company Affdiates is terminated involuntarily and witho@ause
within two years after a Change of Control, hisdfégrunder the Plan shall be vested.
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Article 4
Amount and Payment of Benefits

Amount of Benefits

A Participant's benefit under the Plan is expressetthe balance of his Restoration Account. Sutdnba shall equal
the sum of the Participant's accumulated Restar&mntribution Credits and Interest Credits, axdeed in this
Section 4.01.

(a) Restoration Contribution Credit\ Restoration Contribution Credit shall be adtteéach Eligible Employee's
Restoration Account for each Plan Year in whichEhigible Employee is both an Eligible Employee and
Participant in the Plan. Such Restoration ContrdouCredit shall be added as of the same timeeas th
Contribution Credit for such Plan Year is addeth® Eligible Employee's Cash Balance Account utiger
Avnet Pension Plan, and shall be equal to the exdesny, of--

1) The Contribution Credit that would be added toHEhgible Employee's Cash Balance Account under tf
Avnet Pension Plan for such Plan Year if not f& Qualified Plan Limits, less

2) The actual Contribution Credit added to the Eligieimployee's Cash Balance Account under the Avne
Pension Plan for such Plan Year.

(b) Interest Credits

(1) For each Plan Year that ends before a ParticipBayment Date, an Interest Credit shall be addédsto
Restoration Account as of the last day of such Fkear. Such Interest Credit shall be equal to the
Interest Crediting Rate for such Plan Year timesttalance of the Participant's Restoration Accasrui
the first day of such Plan Year.

2) For the Plan Year in which the Participant's Paynbete occurs, an Interest Credit shall be addéduisto
Restoration Account immediately before his Payniate. Such Interest Credit shall be equal to the
amount described in paragraph (1), above, multghe a fraction, the numerator of which is the nemb
of full calendar months elapsed during such PlaarYbefore the Participant's Payment Date and the
denominator of which is 12.

Form and Time of Payment
A Participant's vested benefit under the Planr(if)ahall be paid as follows:

(a) Except as required by subsection (b), below (mejgtid participants in the SERP), such Participareisted
benefit shall be paid in a lump sum on the later of

(1) The first business day of the seventh calendar Imibvatt begins after the Participant's Separatiom fr
Service, or

2 The first business day of the first calendar mahét starts after the Participant's 55th birth
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(b) If the Participant is also a participant in the $ERis vested benefit under the Plan shall be gigilde time and
in the form prescribed by the SERP. Except as wiiserprovided by the SERP in the case of disal{#tyd
subject to Section 4.04 (Death Benefits)), suchecebenefit shall be paid as follows:

1) The balance of the Participant's Restoration Acteball be converted to an actuarially equivalenies
of 120 equal monthly installments, payable oveyéérs, commencing as of the Participant's “paymen
calculation date” under the SERP. The amount df snenthly installments shall be calculated usirgy th
“present value interest factor” prescribed by tBR8 as of the “payment calculation date” under the
SERP.

2) The Participant shall receive 24 monthly paymesdsh equal to the monthly amount calculated under
paragraph (1), above, commencing at the time pbestby the SERP. The smonth delay rule require
by Section 409A of the Code shall be administeneithé same manner as prescribed by the SERP: ea
monthly installment that is required to be delagbdll be paid at the time prescribed by the SER#, w
interest to the extent prescribed by the SERP.

(3) On the date prescribed by the SERP, the presem wdlthe remaining 96 payments shall be paid in a
lump sum. Such present value shall be calculatéiseimanner prescribed by the SERP, using the san
interest factor as is used for the calculation dieed in paragraph (1), above. (To the extent timat
SERP requires payment in the form of 120 monthdyalttments, the benefit under this Plan shall bBkso
paid in 120 monthly installments, and each instafitrshall be equal to the amount required by papk
(1), above.)

Rehired Employees

The time of payment of benefits to any Participahb has had a Separation from Service shall naffeeted in any
way by a subsequent rehire. For example, if a ¢patnt has a bona fide Separation from Servicesadbsequently
rehired, the vested benefit (if any) that accruefie such rehire shall be paid at the time artterform prescribed by
Section 4.02, above, without regard to the Padiais rehire.

Death Benefits

(a) If a Participant dies before his Payment Date ottlg benefit payable under the Plan shall be a hsom
payment to the Participant's Beneficiary. Such paynshall be equal to the vested balance, if anheo
Participant's Restoration Account and, subjecttmssction (b), below, shall be made within 90 daysr the
Participant's death.

(b) If a Participant is also a participant in ®ERP, and such Participant dies after his Separatbon Service and
before the last payment required by Section 4.08(b)ade, the payments required by Section 4.q@2¢b)f
such payments have already started, any remaiipig@nts) shall be paid to his Beneficiary at theetand in
the form prescribed by the SERP.
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Article 5
Plan Administration

Plan Administrator
The Plan shall be administered by the Plan Comejittdich shall be the Committee that is responddile
administering the Avnet Pension Plan (as presciityeithe Avnet Pension Plan) or its designee.

Authority, Powers, and Responsibilities of Plan Comittee

(@)

(b)

(©)

The Plan Committee shall have the same authowtyeps, and responsibilities with respect to therRlsithe
Committee responsible for administering the Avneri$ton Plan has with respect to the Avnet Pendam; P
provided, however, that obligations imposed by $2yt3, and 4 of Title | of ERISA (including ERISA'
fiduciary responsibilities) shall not apply withrspect to the Plan. For the avoidance of doubt, authority,
powers, and responsibility include the power tostare and interpret the terms and provisions oPtla@ and t
remedy or correct any ambiguities, omissions, comsistencies contained therein. Any interpretatibtne Plai
and any decision on any matter within the discretibthe Plan Committee that is made by the Plami@Giitee
in good faith shall be binding on all persons.

Any question with regard to the Plan Committeethauity, power, or responsibilities shall be resmivn a
manner consistent with the provisions of the AvPension Plan that set forth the authority and nesipdities
of the Committee responsible for administeringAlvaet Pension Plan (subject to this Plan's exemgtiom the
requirements of Parts 2, 3, and 4 of Title | of ER). Such provisions are incorporated into the Ban
reference.

The Company and Affiliates shall indemnify the P@Gommittee against any and all liabilities, setiens,
judgments, losses, costs, and expenses (includaspnable legal fees and expenses) of whateverkit
nature that may be imposed on, incurred by, orssagainst the Plan Committee by reason of thiermeance
or nonperformance of the Plan administration fuorctf such action or inaction did not constitutess
negligence or willful misconduct. The foregoinghigf indemnification shall be in addition to othaghts of th
Plan Committee by law or by reason of insuranceeaye of any kind, but shall not provide for dugdion. The
Company may, at its own expense, settle any clasaréed or proceeding brought against the Plan Gibeeno!
any of its members when the Company determiness#dtdément appears to be in the best interesteof
Company.

Claims, Appeals, and Litigation

(@)

(b)

Claims and Appeals Procedures

Claims and appeals related to participation or fiesnender the Plan shall be filed and resolveddnordance
with the procedures that apply for claims and ajspaader the Avnet Pension Plan. Such procedueeseéarre
to herein collectively as the “claims procedure.”

Litigation .

(1) No Applicable Claim (as defined in subsection low) may be filed in any court or in any otheruim
until the claimant has exhausted the claims proweckferenced in Section 5.03(a). Any Applicable
Claim shall be filed in a court described in sulisec(3),
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below, within the Applicable Limitations Period preibed by subsections (4) and (5), below. No
Applicable Claim may be filed after such Applicabienitations Period.

2) An “Applicable Claim”is:

(A) A claim or action to recover benefits allegedly duneler the provisions of the Plan or by reason
of any law;

(B) A claim or action to clarify rights to future bensfunder the terms of the PI
(C) A claim or action to enforce rights under the Plax

(D) Any other claim or action brought by a person wéiseeks to be, or is a successor to a current
former (I) employee (within the meaning of Sect8{6) of ERISA) of an Employer or an
Affiliate, (Il) participant (within the meaning @ection 3(7) of ERISA), or (Ill) beneficiary
(within the meaning of Section 3(8) of ERISA) that-

(i) Relates to the Plan; a

(ii) Seeks a remedy, ruling, or judgment of any kindresian Employer, the Plan
Committee, the Plan, the trustee, or any othewiddal or entity involved with
administering or providing services to the Plan.

(3) A court described in this subsection (3) shall be of the following court
(A) The United States District Court for the districtwhich the Plan is principally administer

(B) In the case of an action brought by an individuaintiff, the United States District Court for the
district in which such plaintiff resides; or

(C) In the case of an action brought by more than daietdf, the United States District Court for t
district in which the largest number of plainti{tsr in the case of a putative class action, the
United States District Court for the district in ifh the largest number of putative class mem|
resides or is reasonably believed to reside.

If any Applicable Claim is filed in a court othdran a court described in this subsection (3), tae,Rny
Plan affiliates, and all alleged Plan Participaartd Beneficiaries shall take all necessary stepave th
action removed to, transferred to, or refiled woart described in this subsection (3).

(4) The “Applicable Limitations Period” for any Applibe Claim shall begin on the following date (the
“Limitations Start Date”):

(A) In the case of an Applicable Claim to recover biéaeilegedly due to the claimant from the Plar
or to clarify the claimant's rights to future batefrom the Plan, the earliest of (i) the date the
first benefit payment was actually made, (ii) tla¢edthe first benefit payment was allegedly due
or (iii) the date an Employer, the Plan
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Committee, or the Plan first repudiated the allegigiedhation to provide such benefits. A
repudiation described in clause (iii) may be madthe form of a direct communication to the
Participant or claimant€.g., denial of a claim under the administrative revieferenced in
Section 5.03(a)) or a more general oral or writemmunication related to benefits payable u
the Plan (for example, summary of the Plan or mions thereof, a benefit statement, or an
agreement or offer letter); or

(B) In the case of any other Applicable Claim, theieatldate on which the claimant knew or shoul
have known of the material facts on which suchnelar action is based, regardless of whethe
claimant was aware of the legal theory underlymgApplicable Claim.

(5) The Applicable Limitations Period for any ApplicalClaim shall end on the second anniversary of the
Limitations Start Date for such Applicable Claimmppided, however, that-

(A) If a request for administrative review pursuanextion 5.03(a) is pending when the Applicable
Limitations Period expires, the deadline for filisgch Applicable Claim shall be extended to the
date that is 60 calendar days after the final démeluding a deemed denial) of such claim on
administrative review; and

(B) If paragraph (4)(B), above, applies, the Applicdblaitations Period shall end no later than six
years after (i) the date of the last action on Wtsach claim or action is based or (ii) in the oaf
an omission, the latest date on which such omissioitd have been cured, without regard to
whether the claimant knew or should have knowmtlaégerial facts on which the claim or action
is based.

(6) The Applicable Limitations Period described in tBisction 5.03(b) replaces and supersedes any
limitations period that otherwise might be deemgepliaable under state or federal law in the abs@fice
this Section 5.03(b). A claim or action filed aftee expiration of the Applicable Limitations Petishall
be deemed time-barred; provided, however, thaPtae Committee shall have discretion to extend the
Applicable Limitations Period upon a showing of egtional circumstances that, in the opinion of the
Plan Committee, provide good cause for an exten3iba exercise of this discretion is committed lsole
to the Plan Committee, and is not subject to review

7) In the event of any Applicable Claim brought byoarbehalf of two or more claimants, the requireraent
of this Section 5.03(b) shall apply separately wéhpect to each claimant.
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Article 6
Payment Rules

Funding and Obligation to Pay

(@)

(b)

All benefits under the Plan shall be paid by thenpany; provided that the Company may cause benefiis
paid by an Employer or a Trust. If a Participasbgbarticipates in the SERP and the offset requiyeitie SER
for benefits payable under this Plan results inniiebenefit payable under the SERP being lessth®an
proceeds of any insurance policy under the SERPatiegpayable to the Participant or his beneficitrg exces
of such insurance proceeds over the net benefalpayinder the SERP shall be applied toward payofehe
Participant's benefit (or, if applicable, the dela¢imefit payable on behalf of the Participant) urites Plan.

In the event that a Change of Control occurs onminent, the Company shall contribute, or caudaeto
contributed, to a Trust, cash, marketable secariteinsurance policies in an amount equal testhne of the
balances of all Restoration Accounts under the Btaof the date of the Change of Control (whetherod
vested).

No Assignment or Alienation

(@)

(b)

Except as provided in this Section 6.02(a), no bepayable under this Plan shall be assignedienatec

(1) Benefits may be assigned pursuant to a domesétitioes order that the Plan Committee determines
satisfies the qualification requirements of Sectlad(p) of the Code; provided, however, that untbes
Plan Committee determines otherwise, a domesttioelk order shall be qualified only if (i) a qdid
domestic relations order also applies to the apble Participant's benefit under the Avnet PenBilam,
and (ii) the domestic relations order for this PFlenonsistent with the corresponding qualified dstit
relations order for the Avnet Pension Plan.

2) The Company and each Employer may reduce benefitsriuhe Plan to the extent that they determine
necessary or appropriate to recover a debt owdlebarticipant or Beneficiary to the Company or an
Affiliate, or to remedy any injury caused by thetRgpant or Beneficiary to the Company or an Aé#ie.
Any offset shall be applied in accordance withdpelicable requirements of Section 409A of the Code

A Beneficiary who is entitled to receive a benafider the Plan may disclaim his right to such hiébgffiling a
disclaimer that satisfies the requirements to fgualified disclaimer” under Section 2518 of thedemo later
than nine months after the death of the Particigatiie Plan Committee receives a qualified disot (as
defined in Section 2518 of the Code) from any Bieteafy, the Participant's Beneficiary under therP$aall be
determined as if the disclaiming Beneficiary haeldeceased the Participant.

Withholding

All amounts payable under this Plan are subjeutitioholding for all federal, state, and local taxasd all other
amounts relating to tax or other payroll deductj@ssthe Company may reasonably determine shoukdtbkeld.
Regardless of the amount withheld, the Particighatl be solely responsible for

Avnet Restoration Plan

2013 Restateme Pagel2




paying all required taxes (other than the emplgydrare of employment taxes) on all payments amel gtompensatio
(including imputed compensation) and benefits mediunder this Plan.

Payment Satisfies Claims

Any payment to a Participant or the Participangsdiciary in accordance with the provisions of ten shall be, to
the extent thereof, in full satisfaction of alliohs against the Plan Committee, the Company, thpl&rar, and the
Affiliates (including, in each case, claims unrethto this Plan). As a condition precedent to amyngent, the Plan
Committee may require the recipient to executecaipt and release to such effect.

Payment to Minors and Incompetents

If any person is a minor or unable to care fordffairs because of illness or accident, unlesshaglalified guardian c
other legal representative has been appointedpayiynent due under the Plan to that person mayidefpathe benefi
of such person, to his spouse, parent, brotheersw other person deemed by the Plan Committéave incurred
expenses for such person. Such payment, to thetakereof, shall discharge all liability for sugpyment under the
Plan.

Doubt as to Identity or Whereabouts

(a) If, after reasonable efforts, the Plan Committeeniable to determine the whereabouts of any pezsttied to
payment hereunder, the required payment to sudopethall be deemed made at the Payment Datehand t
Plan Committee shall take (or cause to be takés)egs that it determines to be reasonably apjatepto avoid
a violation of Section 409A of the Code.@., withholding income taxes at the time of each dedpayment,
and depositing the amount withheld with the InteR@venue Service). For purposes of the precedintesce,
notice by registered mail sent to such person's regent address (as reflected in the Plan recstus) be
deemed to constitute reasonable efforts to loaatk person. Subject to the requirements of Sedfd®A of the
Code, if such person subsequently makes a progien &b the Company for such sum, the Company mag in
discretion pay to such person the net amount (aftbiholding) of the deemed payment described i 8ectior
6.06.

(b) If a payment is made to a Participant or Benefijcas provided under the Plan, the payment is riotmed as
being undeliverable, and the check on which then@y is made is not presented for payment befaeltieck
expires, then the amount of the check may be tedeHowever, if such Participant or Beneficiarpsequently
makes a proper claim for the amount of the uncabkedfit check, the Company may in its discretgsue a
replacement check (net of withholding).

Discretion to Accelerate Payment
The Plan Committee shall have discretion to acatdgrayments of benefits under the Plan to thenefaad only to th
extent) permitted by Treas. Reg. 8 1.409A-3(j)(4).

Overpayments

If any overpayment of benefits is made under tla@ Rhe recipient of the overpayment shall be reguio return the
overpaid amount plus reasonable interest. To ttenéthat the Company is unable to recover thepaygnent, any
future benefit payments shall be reduced untilaberpayment and reasonable interest are recoveradded that any
offset shall be applied in accordance with the ipple requirements of Section 409A of the Codes fidnegoing
remedy is not intended to be exclusive.
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Article 7
Amendment and Termination

Amendment and Termination

(a) The Company may amend, modify, suspend, or termithgt Plan in whole or in part by resolution of Beard.
Any such resolution may designate authority toRke Committee or an officer of the Company to adop
amendments that are consistent with the Boarddutesn. Except to the extent required by law oetfectuate
the intent that this Plan not provide benefits othan as required to restore amounts that caroooti@ under
the Avnet Pension Plan by reason of the Qualifiedh RBimits, no amendment, modification, suspensarn,
termination shall have any retroactive effect uae the balance of a Participant's Restoratioroéat

(b) The Plan Committee is authorized to adopt any amend that it determines is necessary or appropiaate
comply with an applicable law or to improve admiration of the Plan; provided that no such amendrakall
cause a material increase in the Company's cqgsbefding benefits under the Plan.

Vesting and Payment Upon Termination

If the Plan is terminated, the Plan benefit of eRahticipant who is employed by the Company or &ilidte on the
termination date shall be fully vested. The Plam@uttee shall have discretion to liquidate all rémray benefits in
accordance with the applicable provisions of Tréaeg. 8 1.409A-3(j)(4)(ix).

Avnet Restoration Plan
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Article 8
Miscellaneous

Plan Not a Contract of Employment

The Plan does not constitute a contract of employraed participation in the Plan does not give Basticipant the
right to be retained in the employ of, or in a maar position with, an Employer or Affiliate orraght or claim to any
benefit under the Plan, except to the extent sigth or claim has accrued and is nonforfeitableaurile terms of the
Plan.

Governing Law

This Plan shall be construed, governed, and adtares in accordance with the laws of the Staterafoha, without
regard to its conflict of law provisions and excepthe extent that its laws are preempted byahe lof the United
States of America.

Section 409A of the Internal Revenue Code

(@) Intent to Comply With Section 409AThis Plan shall be construed and interpretedistam with the intent to
comply with the requirements of Section 409A of @ede such that there are no adverse tax consesgjenc
interest, or penalties as a result of any amouiat grapayable under this Plan. Any ambiguity oransistency il
the provisions of this Plan shall be resolved cstesit with such intent.

(b) No Liability . The Company makes no representation or warraggrding the Plan's compliance with the
requirements of Section 409A of the Code, eithdoim or in operation. None of the Company, itsilidtes, or
any of its representatives, agents, or advisel§lshaesponsible for any tax imposed on any irdiral under
Section 409A of the Code or any other tax law innExtion with benefits accrued or payable undePihe.

Severability

If any provision of this Plan is held to be invatidunenforceable by a court of competent jurisaiictsuch holding
shall not impact the validity or enforceability thie remaining provisions of the Plan; provided, boer, that if the
Plan's status as an unfunded plan maintaineddele&t group of management or highly compensatqdogmes is
invalidated, the entire Plan shall be invalidated.

Successors
The terms and conditions of the Plan and any Bhali be binding on the Employers and their suarssand assigns.

Complete Statement of Plan

This instrument contains a document is a completement of the terms of the Plan and may be nmemjiuspended,
revoked, or terminated only as provided in ArtiéléAn individual's right to any benefit under thiarPshall be
determined in accordance with the terms of thigumsent, as amended (and not any other documeathgement, or
understanding); provided, however, that this imagat shall be applied and interpreted without régarany scrivener
error (as described in the next following sentemaéhis instrument or any other document of thenPThe
determination of whether a scrivener's error hasiwed shall be made by the General Counsel oftdmpany in the
exercise of his best judgment and sole discrebased on his understanding of the intent of the g2op as the settlor
of the Plan, and taking into account such evidewcigten or oral, as he deems appropriate or helphe
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General Counsel of the Company is authorized teiecoany scrivener's error that he discovers mitistrument or in
any other document of the Plan. No person other tina Board, the Plan Committee, or a person tonwthe Plan
Committee has delegated interpretive authorityl $teale any authority to interpret this instrumenaay other
document of the Plan.

Privilege

The Company, Board, and Plan Committee may engégmeys, accountants, actuaries, consultantsotret service
providers to advise them on issues related to ldwe &d their responsibilities hereunder. When tt@go, the adviser
client is the Company, Board, or Plan Committeeg@dicable, and not any Eligible Employee, Pgvaait, or
Beneficiary. The Company, Board, and Plan Commétesl be entitled to preserve the attorieégnt privilege and ar
other privilege accorded to communications witleevise provider, and all other rights to maintaamfidentiality, to
the full extent permitted by law. No Eligible Empk®e, Participant, or Beneficiary shall be permiti@deview any
communication between the Company, Board, or Plamr@ittee (including any of their representativegras or
delegates) and any of their attorneys or otherseproviders with respect to whom a privilege @&mplunless
mandated by a court order.
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Earnings:

Income (loss) from continuing
operations before tax
Add fixed charges

Total Earnings (loss)

Fixed charges:
Interest on indebtedness
Amortization of debt expense
Interest component of rent expense

Total fixed charges

Exhibit 12.1

Avnet, Inc.
Computation of Ratios of Earnings to Fixed Charges

June 29, 201! June 30, 201: July 2,2011 July 3,2010 June 27, 200¢
(in thousands)

549,26t 790,78: 870,96t 585,08:  (1,094,96)
141,98 124,52 123,98: 85,56 103,30
691,25 915,30 994,94 670,64 (991,66
107,65 90,85¢ 92,45: 61,74 78,66t
2,97t 2,787 2,62¢ 2,31 3,17
31,36: 30,87 28,90 21,49¢ 21,46
141,98 124,52 123,98: 85,56 103,30
4.8 7.4 8.0 76

* Earnings were deficient in covering fixed chargpys$1.09 billion for the fiscal year ended June 2009.



Avnet, Inc.

Foreign and Domestic Subsidiaries

Company Name

Abacus Group Limited

Alpha 3 Manufacturing Ltd

Ascendant Software Technology (India) Private Ladit
Ascendant Technology B.V.

Ascendant Technology d.o.o. Beograd
Ascendant Technology Do Brasil Servicos Em Tecnal@g Informacéo Ltda.
Ascendant Technology Holdings UK Limited
Ascendant Technology Limited

Avnet (Asia Pacific Holdings) Limited

Avnet (Australia) Pty. Ltd.

Avnet (Holdings) Ltd

Avnet (NZ)

Avnet (Shanghai) Limited

Avnet (Tianjin) Logistics Ltd.

Avnet Abacus Limited

Avnet AG

Avnet Asia Pte Ltd

Avnet ASIC Israel Ltd

Avnet Australia No. 2 Pty Ltd

Avnet B.V.

Avnet Beteiligungs-Verwaltungs GmbH

Avnet Chile S.A.

Avnet Components Brasil Participa¢des Ltda.
Avnet Components Israel Limited

Avnet Computer Service (Hong Kong) Limited
Avnet Computer Service (Macau) Limited
Avnet de Mexico, S.A. de C.V.

Avnet de Puerto Rico, Inc.

Avnet Delaware Holdings, Inc.

Avnet Delaware LLC

Avnet do Brasil LTDA

Avnet Electronics Marketing (Australia) Pty Ltd
Avnet EM

Avnet EM Holdings Japan Kabushiki Kaisha
Avnet EM Japan (Asia) Limited

Avnet EM Sp. z.0.0.

Avnet Embedded Industria e Comercio Ltda
Avnet EMG AG

Avnet EMG Elektronische Bauelemente GmbH

Exhibit 21

Jurisdiction

England
England
India
Netherlands
Serbia
Brazil
England
England
Hong Kong
Australia
United Kingdom
New Zealand
China
China

Hong Kong
Switzerland
Singapore
Israel
Australia
Netherlands
Germany
Chile

Brazil

Israel

Hong Kong
Macao
Mexico
Puerto Rico
Delaware
Delaware
Brazil
Australia
Russian Federation
Japan
Singapore
Poland
Brazil
Switzerland
Austria




Avnet EMG France
Avnet EMG GmbH
Avnet EMG ltaly S.r.l.
Avnet EMG Ltd

Avnet Erste Vermoegensverwaltungs GmbH & Co. KG

Avnet Europe Comm. VA
Avnet Finance B.V.

Avnet France S.A.S.

Avnet Holding Anonim Sirketi
Avnet Holding B.V.

Avnet Holding Europe BVBA
Avnet Holding Germany GmbH
Avnet Holding South Africa (Pty) Limited
Avnet Holdings (Australia) Pty. Limited
Avnet Holdings UK Limited
Avnet Holdings, LLC

Avnet Iberia S.A.

Avnet India Private Limited
Avnet Integrated, Inc.

Avnet International (Canada) Ltd.
Avnet International, LLC

Avnet Italy Srl

Avnet Japan Co., Ltd.

Avnet Kopp (Pty) Limited

Avnet Korea, Inc.

Avnet Limited

Avnet Logistics (Shenzhen) Ltd.
Avnet Logistics B.V.B.A.

Avnet Logistics do Brasil Ltda.
Avnet Logistics GmbH

Avnet Logistics Limited

Avnet Logistics Pte. Ltd.

Avnet Malaysia Sdn Bhd

Avnet Nortec A/S

Avnet Nortec AB

Avnet Nortec AS

Avnet Nortec Oy

Avnet Pacific Pty Limited

Avnet Partner Solutions (Malaysia) Sdn. Bhd.

Avnet Partner Solutions, S. de R.L. de C.V.
Avnet Philippines Pty Ltd., Inc.

Avnet Receivables Corporation

Avnet S.r.l.

Avnet s.r.o

Avnet Solutions Pte. Ltd.

Avnet Solutions Sdn. Bhd

France
Germany
Italy

United Kingdom
Germany
Belgium
Netherlands
France
Turkey
Netherlands
Belgium
Germany
South Africa
Australia
United Kingdom
Delaware
Spain

India

New York
Canada
Delaware
Italy

Japan
South Africa
Korea, Republic of
Ireland
China
Belgium
Brazil
Germany
England
Singapore
Malaysia
Denmark
Sweden
Norway
Finland
Australia
Malaysia
Mexico
Philippines
Delaware
Italy

Czech Republic
Singapore
Malaysia




Avnet Sp. z.0.0.

Avnet Sunrise Limited

Avnet Technology (Thailand) Ltd.

Avnet Technology Electronics Marketing (Taiwan) ddd.
Avnet Technology Hong Kong Limited

Avnet Technology Solutions (ASEAN) Pte. Ltd.

Avnet Technology Solutions (Australia) Limited

Avnet Technology Solutions (China) Ltd

Avnet Technology Solutions (India) Private Limited
Avnet Technology Solutions (Malaysia) Sdn. Bhd.
Avnet Technology Solutions (Singapore) Pte. Ltd.
Avnet Technology Solutions (Thailand) Ltd.

Avnet Technology Solutions (Tianjin) Ltd

Avnet Technology Solutions (Vietham) Company Lirdite
Avnet Technology Solutions A/S

Avnet Technology Solutions Argentina S.A.

Avnet Technology Solutions B.V.

Avnet Technology Solutions Brasil S.A.

Avnet Technology Solutions Chile, S.A.

Avnet Technology Solutions Colombia S.A.S.

Avnet Technology Solutions Ecuador, S.A.

Avnet Technology Solutions GmbH

Avnet Technology Solutions Handelsgesellschaft irh.b.
Avnet Technology Solutions Kft

Avnet Technology Solutions Limited

Avnet Technology Solutions S.R.L.

Avnet Technology Solutions s.r.o.

Avnet Technology Solutions Sanayi Ve Ticaret Anoi8irketi

Avnet Technology Solutions SAS

Avnet Technology Solutions Venezuela, C.A.
Avnet Trader S.A.

Avnet TS Ireland Limited

Avnet TS Italy S.r.l.

Avnet TS Services Limited

Avnet TS Spain, S.L.

Avnet Unidux (HK) Limited

Avnet Unidux (Malaysia) Sdn. Bhd.

Avnet Unidux (Singapore) Pte. Ltd.

Avnet Unidux (Thailand) Company Limited
Avnet Verwaltungs GmbH

Beijing Vanda Yunda IT Services Co., Ltd
Bell Microproducts Brazil Holdings, LLC

Bell Microproducts GmbH

Bell Microproducts Mexico Shareholder, LLC
BFI-IBEXSA International LLC

BrightStar Partners, Inc.

Poland
Hong Kong
Thailand
Taiwan
Hong Kong
Singapore
Australia
China
India
Malaysia
Singapore
Thailand
China
Vietnam
Denmark
Argentina
Netherlands
Brazil
Chile
Colombia
Ecuador
Germany
Austria
Hungary
United Kingdom
Romania
Slovakia
Turkey
France
Venezuela, Bolivarian Republic
Chile
Ireland
Italy
United Kingdom
Spain
Hong Kong
Malaysia
Singapore
Thailand
Germany
China
Minnesota
Germany
Florida
Delaware
lllinois




BSP Software LLC

CAMP Marketing-Service GmbH
Canvas Systems B.V.

Canvas Systems UK Limited

Canvas Systems, LLC

Chinatronic Technology Limited
Client Solutions Limited

CM Satellite Systems, Inc.

Dritte TENVA Property GmbH Nettetal
DSP Solutions Limited

Eastele Technology China Limited
EBV Beteiligungs-Verwaltungs GmbH
EBV Elektronik ApS

EBV Elektronik d.o.o.

EBV Elektronik France SAS

EBV Elektronik GmbH & Co. KG

EBV Elektronik International GmbH
EBV Elektronik Kft

EBV Elektronik Limited

EBV Elektronik M

EBV Elektronik OU

EBV Elektronik S.r.l.

EBV Elektronik S.R.L.

EBV Elektronik s.r.o.

EBV Elektronik SAS

EBV Elektronik sp. z 0.0.

EBV Elektronik Spain S.L.

EBV Elektronik spol. s r.o.

EBV Elektronik Ticaret Limited Sirketi
EBV Elektronik TOV

EBV Elektronik, Druzba Za Posredovanje D.O.O.
EBV Elektronik, Unipessoal Lda,
EBV Management GmbH
EBV-Elektronik GmbH

Electrolink (PTY) Ltd

Electron House (Overseas) Limited
Enlaces Computacionales, S. de R.L. de C.V.
Erste TENVA Property GmbH Gruber Stral3e
Flint Distribution Holdings Limited
Flint Distribution Limited

G2 Holdings Corp.

Genilogix LLC

Hirel Co., Ltd

Horizon Technology Group Limited
Import Holdings LLC

Instituto de Educacion Avanzada, S. de R.L. de C.V.

Illinois
Germany
Netherlands
England and Wales
Georgia

Hong Kong
Ireland

New York
Germany

Hong Kong
Hong Kong
Germany
Denmark
Serbia

France
Germany
Germany
Hungary

Hong Kong
Russian Federation
Estonia

Italy

Romania
Slovakia
France

Poland

Spain

Czech Republic
Turkey

Ukraine
Slovenia
Portugal
Germany
Austria

South Africa
United Kingdom
Mexico
Germany
England and Wales
England
California
Delaware
Japan

Ireland
California
Mexico




Interactive Technology Limited
Internix Hong Kong Limited
Internix Incorporated

Internix Thai Limited

J.C. Tally Trading Co., Ltd.
Kent One Corporation

Magirus Aktiengesellschaft
Magirus Austria GesmbH
Magirus France

Magirus International GmbH
Magirus Middle East FZ-LLC
Magirus Nederland BV
Magirus Systems Integration
Magirus UK Ltd

Memec (Asia Pacific) Limited
Memec Group Holdings Limited
Memec Group Limited

Memec Holdings Limited
Memec Pty Limited

Mexico Holdings LLC

PDSI B.V.

PDSI Singapore Pte. Ltd.
Pepperweed Consulting Corporation
Pepperweed Consulting, LLC
Pride Well Limited
Procurement Hub Pte Ltd

PT Avnet Datamation Solutions
ROUND2 INC.

Round2 Technologies, Incorporated
RTI Holdings Limited

RTI Technology China Limited

SEC International Holding Company, L.L.C.
Shanghai FR International Trading Co., Ltd.
Société Civile Immobiliére du 22 rue de Dames
Soluciones Mercantiles, S. de R.L. de C.V.

Source Electronics (HK) Limited
Source Electronics Asia Limited
Tekdata Interconnections Limited
Telmil Electronics, Inc.

Tenva Belgium Comm. VA

Tenva Financial Management B.V.B.A.

Tenva TS Holdings Limited
Thomas Kaubisch GmbH
TSSLink, Inc.

Unidux Inc.

Vanda Computer & Equipment Company Limited

Virgin Islands, British
Hong Kong

Japan

Thailand

Taiwan

Delaware
Germany

Austria

France

Germany

United Arab Emirates
Netherlands
France

England and Wales
Hong Kong

United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
Australia

California
Netherlands
Singapore
Delaware

Indiana

Virgin Islands, British
Singapore
Indonesia
Delaware

Texas

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

New Hampshire
China

France

Mexico

Hong Kong

Hong Kong
England and Wales
Delaware

Belgium

Belgium

United Kingdom
Germany
California

Japan

Hong Kong




Vanda Computer System Integration (Shanghai) Companited
Vanda IT Solutions & Systems Management Limited
WBT Systems Limited

WBT Systems, Inc.

Wiseasia Computer Service (Macau) Company Limited
WiseAsia.com Limited

YEL Electronics (China) Limited

YEL Electronics (Shanghai) Limited

YEL Electronics (Shenzhen) Ltd

YEL Electronics Hong Kong Limited

YEL Electronics Pte Ltd

YEL Electronics Sdn Bhd

ZWEITE TENVA Property GmbH Im Technologiepark

China
Virgin Islands, British
Ireland
Delaware
Macao
Hong Kong
Hong Kong
China
China
Hong Kong
Singapore
Malaysia
Germany



Exhibit 23.1

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accountingirm

The Board of Directors
Avnet, Inc.:

We consent to the incorporation by reference inréggstration statements No. 333-184871 on FormaBeéBNos. 33-64765, 333-17271, 333
45267, 333-45735, 333-55806, 333-112057, 333-112882-112063, 333-140903, 333-171291 and 333-178n87orm S8 of Avnet, Inc. @
our report dated August 9, 2013, with respechdonsolidated balance sheets of Avnet, Inc. abdidiaries as of June 29, 2013 dunthe 3(
2012, and related consolidated statements of tipesa shareholders' equity, and cash flows fohedche years in the thragar period ende
June 29, 2013 , the related financial statemeredudl, and the effectiveness of internal contrardinancial reporting as afune 29, 201
which report appears in the June 29, 2013 annpalten Form 10-K of Avnet, Inc.

/sl KPMG LLP

Phoenix, Arizona
August 9, 2013



Exhibit 31.1
CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
I, Richard Hamada, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on FormKL6f Avnet, Inc.

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not comtaynuntrue statement of a material fact or omgttade a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgtsiunder which such statements were made, nistadisg with respect to the peri
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statemeamd other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operstand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgtfe periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officer(spdrare responsible for establishing and maintgmisclosure controls and procedures (as
such term is defined in Exchange Act Rules 13ajl&td 15d-15(e)) and internal control over finahmégorting (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) forriagistrant and have:

a. designed such disclosure controls and procedareaused such disclosure controls and procedotee designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatneg to the registrant, including its consolidhibsidiaries, is made known
to us by others within those entities, particulahlying the period in which this report is beingmared;

b. designed such internal control over finanaglarting, or caused such internal control overrfaial reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repodiand the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in atamoce with generally accepted accounting princjples

c. evaluated the effectiveness of the registraligdosure controls and procedures and presenttisi report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contatntsprocedures, as of the end of the period cousyéhis report based on
such evaluation; and

d. disclosed in this report any change in thestegmt's internal control over financial reportih@t occurred during the
registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the regig's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an ahneport) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyead, the registrant's internal control over finahcéporting; and

5. The registrant's other certifying officer(sdrhave disclosed, based on our most recent eti@huaf internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant's auditors and thdatanmnmittee of the registrant's board of direct@spersons performing equivalent
functions):

a. all significant deficiencies and material weagses in the design or operation of internal céotrer financial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the regig's ability to record, process, summarize @&pbrt financial information;
and

b. any fraud, whether or not material, that ineslynanagement or other employees who have a sigmifiole in the registrant's
internal control over financial reporting.

Date:August 9, 2013
/s/ RICHARD HAMADA
Richard Hamada
Chief Executive Officer




Exhibit 31.2
CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
I, Kevin Moriarty, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on FormKL6f Avnet, Inc.

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not comtaynuntrue statement of a material fact or omgttade a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgtsiunder which such statements were made, nistadisg with respect to the peri
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statemeamd other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operstand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgtfe periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officer(spdrare responsible for establishing and maintgmisclosure controls and procedures (as
such term is defined in Exchange Act Rules 13ajl&td 15d-15(e)) and internal control over finahmégorting (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) forriagistrant and have:

a. designed such disclosure controls and procedareaused such disclosure controls and procedotee designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatneg to the registrant, including its consolidhibsidiaries, is made known
to us by others within those entities, particulahlying the period in which this report is beingmared;

b. designed such internal control over finanaglarting, or caused such internal control overrfaial reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repodiand the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in atamoce with generally accepted accounting princjples

c. evaluated the effectiveness of the registraligdosure controls and procedures and presenttisi report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contatntsprocedures, as of the end of the period cousyéhis report based on
such evaluation; and

d. disclosed in this report any change in thestegmt's internal control over financial reportih@t occurred during the
registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the regig's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an ahneport) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyead, the registrant's internal control over finahcéporting; and

5. The registrant's other certifying officer(sdrhave disclosed, based on our most recent eti@huaf internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant's auditors and thdatanmnmittee of the registrant's board of direct@spersons performing equivalent
functions):

a. all significant deficiencies and material weagses in the design or operation of internal céotrer financial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the regig's ability to record, process, summarize @&pbrt financial information;
and

b. any fraud, whether or not material, that ineslynanagement or other employees who have a sigmifiole in the registrant's
internal control over financial reporting.

Date:August 9, 2013
/sl KEVIN MORIARTY
Kevin Moriarty
Chief Financial Officer




Exhibit 32.1

Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350
(as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarban€&xley Act of 2002)

In connection with the Annual Report on Form 104¢ the year ended June 29, 2013 (the “Repolt’Richard Hamada, Chief Execut
Officer of Avnet, Inc., (the “Company”) hereby dértthat:

1. The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) or 15(d), as applicable, of the SaesrExchange Act of 193
and

2. The information contained in the Report fairly pmets, in all material respects, the financial ctadiand results of operations
the Company.

Date:August 9, 2013
/s/ RICHARD HAMADA
Richard Hamada
Chief Executive Officer




Exhibit 32.2

Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350
(as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarban€&xley Act of 2002)

In connection with the Annual Report on Form 10eK the year ended June 29, 2013 (the “RepdrtRevin Moriarty, Chief Financial Office
of Avnet, Inc., (the “Company”) hereby certify that

1. The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) or 15(d), as applicable, of the SaesrExchange Act of 193
and

2. The information contained in the Report fairly pmets, in all material respects, the financial ctadiand results of operations
the Company.

Date:August 9, 2013
/sl KEVIN MORIARTY
Kevin Moriarty
Chief Financial Officer




